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ABOUT CABBEEN

BRFE

Cabbeen is a leading Chinese menswear designer brand.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the design of men’s apparel, footwear and accessories,

brand management, and wholesaling, consignment and retailing

of menswear in the People’s Republic of China.
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RNRER
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

HEADQUARTERS IN CHINA

Cabbeen Apparel Building
No. 379 Shougouling Road
Tianhe District

Guangzhou 510507

PRC
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HONG KONG

Unit A&B, 26/F, Billion Plaza I

10 Cheung Yue Street,
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Kowloon

Hong Kong
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AND TRANSFER OFFICE
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3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road,
P.O. Box 1586, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1110,

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
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Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITOR
KPMG, Certified Public Accountants
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Bockius
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBERE

Financial highlights
Revenue

Gross profit

Profit from operation
Profit for the year

Earnings per share
(RMB cents)
— Basic
— Diluted

Dividend per share (HK cents)

— Interim dividend
— Final dividend
— Total dividend

Profitability ratios
Gross profit margin

Operating margin

Net profit margin
Return on total assets
Return on equity®
Liquidity ratios
Current ratio

Average inventory

turnover days®
Average trade and bills

receivables turnover days®

Average trade and bills
payables turnover days®

Capital ratio
Interest coverage ratio®
Net debt to equity ratio®”
Gearing ratio®
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RMB’000
AR®TR

1,273,473
578,743
310,842
210,243

31.71
31.68

13.2
4.8
18.0
45.4%
24.4%
16.5%

10.0%

17.9%

2.7

189

87

243

15.6

5.7%
24.5%

2017
—E—tF
RMB’000
AREFIT

1,089,106
537,613
301,336
203,213

29.47
29.45

6.0
8.5
14.5
49.4%
27.7%
18.7%

10.3%

19.3%

2.76
220
103
283

18.2

14.5%
27.3%

Changes

=
%
%

+16.9%
+7.7%
+3.2%
+3.5%

+7.6%
+7.6%

+24.1%

-4.0 ppt
(EIERa
-3.3 ppt
(IR
-2.2 ppt
(EIERa
-0.3 ppt
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-1.4 ppt
(EIERar
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Notes:

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Return on total assets equals net profit for the year divided by the
closing balance of total assets.

Return on equity equals net profit for the year divided by the
closing balance of total shareholders’ equity.

Average inventory turnover days is equal to the average of the
beginning and closing inventory balance divided by cost of sales
and multiplied by the number of days in the year.

Average trade and bills receivables turnover days is equal to the
average of the beginning and closing trade and bills receivables
balance divided by turnover (including value-added tax) and
multiplied by the number of days in the year.

Average trade and bills payables turnover days is equal to the
average of the beginning and closing trade and bills payables
balance divided by costs of sales and multiplied by the number
of days in the year.

Interest coverage ratio equals profit before interest and tax for
one period divided by interest expenses of the same period.

Net debt to equity ratio equals net debt divided by total equity
as of the end of the year. Net debt includes all borrowings net of

cash and cash equivalents.

Gearing ratio equals total debts divided by total equity.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

TO ALL SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Cabbeen Fashion Limited (the “Company”,
stock code: 2030), | am pleased to present the results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group” or “Cabbeen”) for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The business of the Group continued to progress at a
solid pace during the year ended 31 December 2018 amid
macroeconomic headwind. We delivered a revenue growth
of approximately 17% and our e-commerce business
achieved particularly encouraging results. In August 2018,
we also launched a new children’s brand, Cabbeen Love.
Multi-brand strategy has been one of our key strategic
focuses and we will continue to look for opportunities to
broaden our brand portfolio and customer base.

We noticed there had been a sharp shift in consumer
sentiment in the second half of 2018. Market confidence
was generally impacted by Sino-US trade turbulence
and uncertainty on macroeconomic outlook. Consumers
are holding off on spending due to uncertainty about
the future. We expect consumption will continue to slow
in 2019. We are well aware of the challenges ahead.
Accordingly, we will be prudent in expanding shop network
and work on enhancing operation efficiency.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all staff members for their dedication
and contribution, and to our shareholders and business
partners for their support. We will continue with our
endeavor to pursue growth of our business and create
value for our shareholders.

Chairman
Ziming Yang

22 February 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DN (E)

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The apparel industry is highly competitive both in brick-
and-mortar stores and online. In addition, the Group
competes with various national and global apparel retailers
on the basis of quality, fashion, service and price. In
2018, most players in the industry downsized their store
numbers but increased their digital market presence. This
trend is expected to continue in 2019 with more emphasis
on the growth of e-commerce and mobile shopping.
Considering the backdrop of economic slowdown and
customers being cautious on spending, apparel industry
players will be facing a more difficult environment in 2019.
To uphold its competitiveness, the Group is dedicated to
understanding its customers better and offering fashion
products to them which represent good value of money, as
well as to reinforcing the Group’s operation efficiency and
prudent store expansion strategies.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

Cabbeen is a Chinese designer brand. It offers apparel
and accessories for men, women, and children under the
Cabbeen Lifestyle, Cabbeen Urban, Cabbeen Love and
2AM brands. The Group derives its revenue from sales of
its products through franchise stores and online shops.
Most of the products sold under its brand names are
designed by the Group and all of the products sold are
manufactured by independent manufacturers in the PRC.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had 5 wholesale
distributors, 19 consignment distributors and 126 sub-
distributors operating a total of 910 retail shops in
mainland China. The Group operates Wechat store by
itself. In addition, the Group operates online shops on
e-commerce platforms including T-mall, JD.com, vipshop
and sells products to other online distributors.

Retail channel performance

Performance of retail stores operated by the Group, its
distributors and sub-distributors are summarized below.

o Total retail revenue for the year ended 31 December
2018 increased by 4.0% as compared to 2017. The
increase was primarily a result from the increase
in retail revenue from e-commerce platforms by
26.0%.

o Retail sales revenue and same store sales from
physical retail stores for the year ended 31
December 2018 generally remained at the same
level as that of 2017.

o Retail revenue from online shops increased by more
than 26.0% from RMB398.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to RMB503.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

° Cabbeen had 1.8 million Wechat fans and members
as of 31 December 2018 (2017: 1.1 million).

° Average retail discount at physical stores for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately
21.6% (2017: 21.3%).

o Up to 31 January 2019, sell-through rate of the
Group’s 2018 collections was over 68%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENRR DA ()

Stores network

Guizhou
=M

Yunnan
BN 31
Guangxi
i i

14

14
HAINAN
i)

The total number of retail stores increased from 845 as of ZTEEHEHH_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—H
31 December 2017 to 910 as of 31 December 2018. A HI84ASEIEME—ZE—\F+_A=1+—HK
majority of retail stores were in second and third-tier cites 910f ¢ KEH DT E/EMUN =4 - m
and over 37% of the stores were in shopping malls. FRiE 37 % K IEHAL N EH A o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENRR DA ()

Retail network by geographical regions RinBEEFHI T NEERSE
As of 31 December 2018 As of 31 December 2017
B2-3-\E+ZA=1-H HE_T-tEr-A=1-H

Operation model Wholesales  Consignment Total Wholesales Consignment ~ Self-managed
LT I R szt g f# g
Geographical region &
Central China Eh 198 37 235 229 - - 229
Southwesten China 7 62 131 193 53 106 - 159
Southern China B 2 239 262 21 212 1 234
Eastem China ER - 61 61 - 5 - 5
Northern China 2 1 74 75 - 82 - 82
Northwestern China 33t - 67 67 - 64 - 64
Northeastem China 53t - 17 17 - 2% - 2%
Total st 284 626 910 303 541 1 845

Retail outlets by brands % @ 812 NEEEH

B Capbeen Lifestyle _Egﬁ(ﬁﬂ 158 17.4% 70.1% 638 147 17.4% 73.6% 622 1 5
= Cabbeen Urban <& #BTH 12 1.3% 76 0.0% = .
B Cabbeen LOVE RZ&ELOVE 10211.2%
B Multi-brands % mhe
As of 31 December 2018 As of 31 December 2017
R=F—N\F+=-A=+—H R=F—tF+=-A=+—H

Retail outlets by channel & RE& 2 NWEE/EH

u Shopping mall P51 203 22.3% 37.5% 341 20824.6% 31.7% 268
' Department store A& A A
B Street shops | 2017
366 40.2% 369 43.7%
As of 31 December 2018 As of 31 December 2017
R=Z—N\F+=-A=+—H RZF—tF+=-A=+—8H

Retail outlets by city-tiers &t B &0 N E &5

B Tier 1 —4= 125 13.7% 7.1% 65 124 14.7% 6.7% 57
= Tier 2 -5
B Tier 3 =& 424 46.7% 32.5%296 42650.4% 28.2% 238
B Tier 4 usf s
As of 31 December 2018 As of 31 December 2017
R-ZE-—N\F+=-A=+—H R-Z—tF+=-A=+—H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DN (E)

Retail outlets by operation models ZEE KK &5 NWEBEEH

626 68.8%

B Wholesale B2
Consignment X84
B Self-managed B%

2018

Brand building

Virtually all aspects of brand development, from product
design and distribution to marketing, merchandising and
shopping environments, are controlled by the Group.
The Group also keeps direct communications with its
end customers through Wechat platform. It can therefore
monitor their shopping patterns, and provide them with
information about promotional events and new product
launch information.

Design and product development

As of 31 December 2018, the Group’s in-house design
and research and development team consisted of a total of
54 members (2017: 75), including 39 (2017: 29) designers
joining from the mainland China, other Asia countries,
Hong Kong and Europe. The Group also works with
design institutes and contract designers from around the
world. It offered approximately 5,300 new stock-keeping-
units (SKUs) for 2018 product collections (over 3,700
SKUs for 2017 product collections).

Logistics centre

The Group has been investing in its distribution
infrastructures and have upgraded its logistics centres
with semi-automated product conveyor system. Such
upgraded systems enable us to expedite delivery and
achieve higher efficiency and greater accuracy, which
are particularly crucial for the Group’s expanding on-line
retail business. The logistics centre for the Group’s online
business is operated by an external service provider while
the Group manages its logistics centre for offline business.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Omni-Channel

The Group has invested in building omni-channel
capabilities in markets with retail outlets operated by
consignment distributors. Its ERP system facilitates a
single view of inventory across channels, connecting
physical stores directly to Wechat store. The Group
offers an online reservation, pick up in store service to
its customers which allows customers to select in-store
inventory from Wechat platform and collect the product
from a physical store. The Group has also started to fulfil
orders from Wechat stores by shipping products either
from logistics centre or consignment stores. It will continue
to optimize the omni-channel services for better customer
shopping experience.

EEENWR DN (E)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DN (E)

PROSPECTS

There has been a sharp shift in sentiment in the second
half of 2018. Market confidence was generally negatively
impacted by Sino-US trade turbulence and uncertainty
on macroeconomic outlook. Consumers are holding off
on spending due to uncertainty about the future. In 2019,
the Group expects consumption will continue to slow.
Nevertheless, it still believes the e-commerce segment
will continue to be the key driver of the its business.
The Group, accordingly, will focus on expanding its
e-commerce and omni-channel capabilities, and will be
prudent in store expansion and marketing activities. In
addition, the Group will continue to develop its business by
adopting a multi-brand strategy and continue to look for
opportunities to broaden its brand portfolio and customer
base.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue
Revenue by sales channel

Bl =

“E-N\FTHFMALRRE - mBELE
B X PR E HHENE KRB B R T HEE
M NMEE - BRRFETEENE - HEEY
AT - REEBEFR T NFHEKF
BRE TR - BB - AEEREERIE
AR EE F TS P RARAT - Eit - AEE
HERBREERR2REEN - XREFHE
REEHEB T HARIFER © I - REEH
FRRAZRERBEBEREER - Sk
HBEAHmEEE NEPE

5 %5 [0 B
Wz
REEREE DN RE
Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2018 2017
—sE-N\F T+
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREBFIT
Onlineshops mLES 430481 | 283,169
Offline shops N
Wholesales 2 309,812 328,560
Consignment (A=! 535,853 508,722
Self-owned Ek= 1,431 42,263
e 847,096 | 879,545
Less: Products repurchased & : AR
__forconsignment business  fEElE® | 4104 (73,608)
Net Revenue F 1,273,473 1,089,106
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted
to RMB1,273.5 million, representing an increase of 16.9%
or RMB184.4 million as compared with RMB1,089.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017. The increase in the
revenue was mainly attributable to the expansion of the
Group’s online retail channels and a decrease of product
repurchase.

Revenue by brands

EEENRR DA ()

BE-_Z— \Ft+_-_A=1+—HItFEZ Kz
BARK12736ABTT  REE-ZZT—tF
TZA=T—HLEFENAREK1,0801 88
TCIE NN 16.9% KA R 184.4 B E T - Wi
MhEEZHRAEBREAN L TERBRER
ElEER A ©

% M8 o B =
Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFIT
Cabbeen Lifestyle REIKH 1,071,074 84.1 874,713 80.3
Cabbeen Urban REE™ 182,947 14.4 170,186 15.7
2AM == EE 12,700 1.0 20,904 1.9
Others e 6752 05 23308 2.1
1,273,473 100.0 1,089,106 100.0

The Group continues its multi-brand strategies and
provides a wide variety of products to its customers.
During the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018,
Cabbeen Lifestyle continued to be the main brand of the
Group and contributed a majority of the Group’s revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DN (E)

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit was RMB578.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2018, compared to RMB537.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017, representing an
increase of 7.7%, which was attributable to the increase in
sales volume of online platforms.

Gross profit margin decreased from 49.4% for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to 45.4% for the year ended 31
December 2018. The decrease in gross profit margin was
attributable to the increase in provision for sales rebates of
RMB36.8 million and increase in discounts for sales of off-
season products.

Other income

Other income primarily consists of interest income from
bank deposits, government grants and net foreign
exchange differences. The increase in other income from
RMB42.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
to RMB58.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 was mainly due to an increase in government grant
income, which was partly offset by exchange losses due
to depreciation of Renminbi against Hongkong dollar.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses consist of mainly
operating cost for e-commerce sales channels, advertising
and promotion, and logistics and delivery expenses.
Selling and distribution expenses for the year ended
31 December 2018 amounted to RMB179.4 million,
representing an increase of RMB26.0 million or 17.0%,
from that of the year ended 31 December 2017. The
increase was attributable to more promotion expenses
for online platforms and launch of new brands, and an
increase in delivery expenses with increase in sales volume
during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses mainly
comprise staff costs, design, research and development
expenses, management consulting expenses, provision for
inventories and doubtful debts, office rental, depreciation
and amortization charges and other miscellaneous
expenses. Administrative and other operating expenses
for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
RMB146.4 million, representing an increase of RMB20.7
million or 16.5%, from that of the year ended 31 December
2017. The increase in administrative expenses for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was mainly attributable to
an increase in provision for inventories of RMB8.2 million
in 2018 and a reversal of provision for doubtful debts of
RMB14.0 million in 2017.

Profit from operations

The Group recorded a profit from operations of RMB310.8
million (2017: RMB 301.3 million) for the year ended 31
December 2018, representing an increase of approximately
3.2%. Operating margin dropped from 27.7% for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to 24.4% for the year ended
31 December 2018 which was a result of the decreased
gross profit margin.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s
finance costs amounted to RMB19.9 million (2017:
RMB16.6 million) or 1.6% (2017: 1.5%) of the Group’s
revenue. Finance costs represent primarily interest
expenses for a Hong Kong dollar bank loan of a subsidiary
operated in Hong Kong. The increase in interest expenses
was because of an increase in bank loan interest rate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DN (E)

Income tax

For the year ended 31 December 2018, income tax
expenses of the Group amounted to RMB80.7 million
(2017: RMB81.6 million) and the effective tax rate was
27.7% (2017: 28.6%). The slight decrease in effective
income tax rate was attributable to a reduction in provision
for dividend withholding tax.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 increased
by 3.5% to RMB210.2 million from RMB203.2 million for
the year 2017. Net profit margin for the year ended 31
December 2018 was 16.5% (2017: 18.7%). Basic and
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2018 increased to RMBO0.3171 (2017: RMB0.2947) and
RMB0.3168 (2017: RMB0.2945), respectively.

Other key financial ratios

Average inventory turnover days of the Group were 189
days for the year ended 31 December 2018, as compared
to 220 days for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
slight improvements in inventory turnover was because
of an increase in sales volume during the year ended 31
December 2018.

Average turnover days of trade and bills receivables
decreased to 87 days for the year ended 31 December
2018 as compared to 103 days for the year ended 31
December 2017. The decrease was attributable to the
increase in revenue generated from online sales as a
percentage of the Group’s total sales, as the Group offered
shorter credit period for its online sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Average trade and bills payable turnover days were 243
days (2017: 283 days) for the year ended 31 December
2018. This is consistent with the credit period granted by
the Group’s suppliers and the Group’s practice of using
6-month bank bills to settle trade payables.

The Group’s gearing ratio was 24.5% as at 31 December
2018 (2017: 27.3%), being a ratio of sum of bank loans
of RMB287.5 million (2017: RMB288.1 million) to equity.
Such bank loans were denominated in Hong Kong dollar,
of which RMB52.6 million (2017: RMB16.6 million) was
repayable within one year. The slight decrease in gearing
ratio was mainly due to increase in equity.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, financial assets and time
deposits with initial terms of over three months totaling
RMB964.9 million (31 December 2017: RMB945.6 million).

At 831 December 2018, the Group was in net debt position
of RMB67.0 million (31 December 2017: RMB153.5
million). Net debt includes all borrowings net of cash
and cash equivalents. The decrease in net debt as of 31
December 2018 was mainly attributable to increase in
cash proceeds from disposal of financial assets.

The Group recorded net operating cash inflow of
RMB185.3 million (2017: RMB289.5 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The decrease in net operating
cash inflow was mainly attributable to an increase in
inventory and trade and other receivables.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DN (E)

Net cash generated from investing activities for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was RMB22.5 million (2017:
net cash used in investing activities of RMB400.6 million).
Cash outflows of investment activities for the year ended
31 December 2018 included investments in a logistics
centre in Fujian Province and an associate and an increase
in pledged deposits while cash inflows from investing
activities mainly included a decrease in other financial
assets.

Net cash used in financing activities was RMB130.3 million
(2017: cash generated from financing activities of RMB29.7
million) for the year ended 31 December 2018. This mainly
consisted of payments of dividends of RMB122.3 million,
repayment of bank loans of RMB17.4 million and payment
of bank loan interests of RMB18.8 million.

Long term and short term bank loans as of 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2018 were at floating interest
rate and were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. As at
31 December 2018, the Group had unutilized banking
facilities amounted to RMB500 million.

On 10 February 2017, the Group has fully drawn down a
three-year term loan facility of HK$350,000,000. Pursuant
to the facility, the controlling shareholder shall maintain
his equity interest and voting rights in the Company at
a certain level, and at the same time it is subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s
financial ratios. A breach of these undertakings would
result in the drawn down facilities and interest becoming
payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group repaid HK$20,000,000
according to the repayment schedule. As at 31 December
2018, none of the covenants relating to the drawn down
facilities had been breached. The term loan are unsecured
and carried at amortised cost of RMB287.5 million as at
31 December 2018 (2017: RMB288.1 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The Group adopts a set of centralized financing and
treasury policies in order to ensure the Group’s funds are
utilized efficiently. The Group’s liquidity position remains
strong and the Group possesses sufficient cash and
available banking facilities to meet its commitments and
working capital requirements. This strong cash position
enables the Group to explore investment and business
development opportunities when expanding its market
share in mainland China.

The Group’s primary objectives for managing its capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to provide returns
to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder’s returns that might be possible with higher
level of borrowings and the advantages and security based
on a sound capital position, and makes adjustments
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

The Group mainly operates in the mainland China with
most of the transactions originally denominated and
settled in RMB. On the other hand, majority of the Group’s
bank loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
held in group companies outside the mainland China. In
addition, the Group pays dividends in Hong Kong dollars.
Accordingly, the Board considers the Group’s exposure
to the fluctuations of the exchange rate is primarily with
respect to Hong Kong Dollars.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DN (E)

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
performing regular reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and to mitigate the impact on
exchange rate fluctuations by entering into currency hedge
arrangement if necessary. During the year ended 31
December 2017 and 2018, no forward foreign exchange
or hedging contracts had been entered into by the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, deposits with certain banks of
approximately RMB240.5 million in total (2017: RMB105.0
million) were pledged as securities for bank loans and
bills payable facilities. The pledged bank deposits will be
released upon the settlement of relevant bank loans and
bills payable.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total capital
commitments of RMB30.1 million (2017: RMB45.9 million),
primarily related to ERP system upgrades and construction
of an office building in Guangzhou City.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, the Group had no
material contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 404 employees
(2017: 402 employees). Total staff costs, including
directors emoluments, for the period amounted to
approximately RMB85.0 million (2017: RMB79.8 million).
Annual increment and year-end performance bonus
mechanism were incorporated in the Group’s remuneration
policy to retain, reward and motivate individuals for their
contributions to the Group. Share options are granted
to eligible employees to recognise their contribution and
provide incentives to achieve better performance in coming
years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 28 March 2019 to Tuesday, 2 April 2019
(both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the
shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2019 AGM”). In order to qualify for attending and voting at
the 2019 AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificate must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar and transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F,,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 27 March
2019.

In addition, subject to the approval of the proposed final
dividend by the shareholders at the 2019 AGM on Tuesday,
2 April 2019, the register of members will be closed on
Tuesday, 9 April 2019 for the purpose of determining
shareholders who qualify for the proposed final dividend. In
order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificate must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar and transfer
office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 8 April 2019.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK4.8 cents (2017: HK8.5 cents) per ordinary share for
the financial year. Including the interim dividend paid for the
year ended 31 December 2018, total dividend payout for
the year is approximately HK$120.3 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB104.2 million) (2017: HK$98.3 million,
equivalent to approximately RMB82.3 million) or a dividend
payout ratio of approximately 50% (2017: 40%). Subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, the final dividend will be paid in
cash on or around 18 April 2019 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company
on 9 April 2019.

EEENWR DN (E)

HERMDBFES
AAREBR-_ZE—NE=ZA-+/\B (EHM)
E-T-NFNA-RA(EHD) (BEMAE
BREAN)EEHERNDBEFERFE - UETE
HEERLBEARAEEREBFAE (=2
—"WERRBFA® ) URE HRENREN
H1p o BAEEBEREE_Z—LERFBEEK
VRS LERE  REREBER-_ZT—NF=
AZ++tB(EH=) TFEE=1T28 #
FIEBPXHERBBIRE—HXERARN
BRNDBEPELERETRBLFELERAR
it AEBEFEFRNER 183RAETMF 17
1B1712-1716 584 -

BN - IR = - FMA—H (E8=)
BN T -NFREBAFASHERIRARE
RE - AARBR-_ZE—HhEMNANB (EH
EERERNBPERLFE  URBRERE
BERWESR AR SRR - BFA BRI
BERARERE  RRSEEN T —IEMWm
ANB(EH—) TFUE=1+281 BHAE
BEXHERBBRE —HRERRBINRG
BEELERBTREFZLARAR - Motk
ABEBEBTEFRNER1SIFAFFALI7TIE
1712-1716 5544 o

REIRE
ETeEZR AV BRFEEIRMT RARKREER
E@RASBI(ZF—+F : 858) ° 7F
EBE-_ZE—N\E+-_A=+—HILFEEEK
NP ERE - 2FRIREL1203BEAET
(HEROARE1042FET) (ZT—+HF:
98.3EEMBIT  HERNWARKE2IBETL)
KB R A50% (T —+F : 40%) o &
RABR _ZT—hEFENA+/\BRAENES
MR —E—NFEMNANBBHIARRKRERAM
MR SRS ARABAR B, - AR A A AR
FERITH IR R BAFE RS LA o

—E-NFER FERMERR A

27



28

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEENWR DN (E)

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of dividends will
be subject to the Company’s discretion. Dividends may
be paid only out of its distributable reserves as permitted
under the relevant laws. Holders of the Shares will be
entitled to receive such dividends pro rata according
to the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the
Shares. Subject to the factors described above, the
Company has adopted a general dividend policy since
the financial year ended 31 December 2018 of declaring
and paying dividends on a semi-annual basis of not more
than 50% of its total net profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company. The Board would review the
Company’s dividend policy from time to time considering
factors including but not limited to debt covenants, capital
investment and business plan.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics in the firm belief
that they are essential for enhancing investors’ confidence
and maximizing shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews
its corporate governance practices from time to time in
order to meet the rising expectations of stakeholders,
and to comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements as well as fulfill its commitment to excellence
in corporate governance.

After reviewing the Company’s corporate governance
practices and the relevant regulations of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
(the “CG code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the Board is
satisfied that the Company complied with the CG code
provisions for the entire year ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith and in
the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
The Board has established four Board committees, being
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee (each a “Board Committee” and collectively
the “Board Committees”), to oversee different areas of
the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ziming Yang, Mr. Siu Keung Ng and Mr.
Ronggin Ke and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, Mr. Honghui Chen
and Mr. Ming Shu Leung.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EEER®RE ()

Their biographical details and (where applicable) their family
relationships are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 49
to 55 in this annual report. A list of the Directors identifying
their roles and functions are available on the websites of
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Ziming Yang, the chairman of the board (the
“Chairman”) and an executive Director of the Company, is
the brother-in-law of Mr. Rongqgin Ke, who is an executive
Director of the Company. Save as disclosed herein, there
are no other financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships among members of the Board.

The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and
strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and
financial performance and reviews the corporate
governance standard of the Group. It also decides
on matters such as annual and interim results, major
transactions, director appointments or re-appointments,
investment policy, dividend and accounting policies. The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the
daily operations of the Group’s businesses to the executive
Directors and members of senior management. The
functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed
periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices on corporate
governance and legal and regulatory compliance of the
Group, and the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management. The
Board also reviews the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report to ensure compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent
access to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
duties. Independent professional advice can be sought to
assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the
Group’s expense upon their request.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon
their first appointment, the directorships or other positions
they are concurrently holding at other companies or
organizations. These interests are updated on an annual
basis as and when necessary.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee. Each Board Committee has its defined and
written terms of reference approved by the Board covering
its duties, powers and functions. Their terms of reference
are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties, including access
to management or professional advice if considered
necessary.

(i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 8
October 2013. The Audit Committee comprises
three Independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, Mr. Honghui Chen, and
Mr. Ming Shu Leung. Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, who
has appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as
the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to assist the Board in providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management
systems, and relationship with external auditors
of the Group, overseeing the audit process and
performing other duties and such responsibilities
as assigned by the Board. The Audit Committee
meets with the Company’s external and internal
auditors, and reviews their audit plans, the internal
audit programs, the results of their examinations
as well as their evaluations of the system of risk
management and internal control.
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EERERHE (R)

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during BERLZEERNBE_T—N\FT+H
the year ended 31 December 2018. Major work :—I— Eﬁifﬁﬁﬁﬁ//’?é\% BizE
completed by the Audit Committee during the year BERNFATKNEETIERRE :
includes:
. reviewed the Group’s annual report, interim . ERNAKENTFR - PHPTBKE
financial information and annual financial B R FERBHRE
statements;
. reviewed significant accounting and audit . EHNFESTTRZEER
issues;
. reviewed the external auditor’s qualifications, . FRINEZBEHER BYLH

independence and performance;

° reviewed the external auditor’s management °
letter and the management’s response;

° reviewed annual internal audit plans; °
o assisted the Board to evaluate on the °
effectiveness of financial reporting procedures

and internal control system;

o advised on material event or drawing the o
attention of the management on related risks;

° reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of °
the Group’s systems of internal control and

risk management; and

° reviewed connected transactions entered into °
by the Group or subsisting during the year.
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(ii)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on
8 October 2013. The Remuneration Committee
comprises two independent non-executive Directors
and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Yung Kwok
Tsui, Mr. Ming Shu Leung and Mr. Siu Keung Ng. Mr.
Yung Kwok Tsui is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The principal responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the overall
remuneration structure and policy for all Directors
and senior management as well as the specific
remuneration packages for the executive Directors
and senior management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent process for developing
such remuneration policy. No Director takes part
in any discussion on his own remuneration. The
Company'’s objective for its remuneration policy is
to maintain fair and competitive packages based
on business requirements and industry practice. In
order to determine the level of remuneration and
fees paid to members of the Board, market rates
and factors such as each director’s workload,
performance, responsibility, job complexity and the
Group’s performance are taken into account.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2018 and has
reviewed the remuneration policy and structure
relating to the Directors and senior management
of the Company and the Company’s share option
scheme.

(ii)
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EERERHE (R)

The remuneration of the members of the senior
management of the Group by band for the year
ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

Remuneration bands

BE-_Z—)\FE+-_A=+—HIEE
REEE S AEBESREIRERK S KB
SHEINWT -

Number of persons

< EE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,00078 7T 9
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T E 1,500,000 7 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T E 2,000,000 87T 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to
be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing
Rules are set out in notes 6 and 7 to the financial
statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

(iii) Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established
on 8 October 2013. It comprises one executive
Director and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ziming Yang, Mr. Honghui
Chen and Mr. Ming Shu Leung. Mr. Ziming Yang
is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The principal responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee are to review the composition of the
Board, including its structure, size and diversity
at least annually to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Group. It is also
responsible for considering and recommending to
the Board suitably qualified persons to become
a member of the Board, monitor the succession
planning of Directors and assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee will also give consideration
to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below)
when identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board, and the Board will
review the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below),
S0 as to develop and review measurable objectives
for the implementing the Board Diversity Policy
(as defined below) and to monitor the progress on
achieving these objectives.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2018 and
reviewed the size, diversity and composition of the
Board.

(iii)
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EEER®RE ()

(iv) Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee was
established on 8 October 2013. It comprises two
executive Directors and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Keung Ng, Mr.
Qiang Wei, Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui and Mr. Ming Shu
Leung. Mr. Qiang Wei resigned as an executive
Director on 19 May 2018. Mr. Siu Keung Ng is the
Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee.
The principal responsibilities of the Corporate
Governance Committee are to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance, the training and continuous
professional development of the Company’s
Directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, and to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Corporate Governance Committee held one
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2018
and has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance
policies and practices and sufficiency of training to
the Company’s Directors and senior management.

BOARD MEETINGS

Board meetings are held regularly and at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. For regular Board
meetings, notices of at least 14 days are given to facilitate
maximum attendance of the Directors and agenda with
supporting papers are sent to Directors not less than 3
days before the relevant meeting is held. Directors may
propose to the Chairman or the Company Secretary to
include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings.
At the meeting, the Directors are provided with the relevant
documents to be considered and approved. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comments and records respectively within a reasonable
time after the board meeting is held. Minutes of Board
meetings are taken by the Company Secretary or a duly
appointed secretary of the Board meeting and are open for
inspection by any Director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERRE (R)

The table below sets out the attendance of each Director F&RZFFISEFHEFARITHRFAF RS
at the annual general meeting (the “AGM”) and the ([RRBFAE))  ExggzlhEtEzxsg
meetings of the Board and other Board committees held ZEE®ZMIEMN -

during the year:
Meetings attended/held
i/ #7eE
Corporate
Audit Remuneration  Nomination  governance
AGM Committee  committee ~ committee  committee
rEER
RRAFAE ENZEE HMZERE REZ8e Z88
Executive Directors HTER
Mr. Ziming Yang BERLE 1 67 NATER NATER 22 NANER
Mr. Siu Keung Ng ROBFE 1/1 M NATER 22 NATER 1/1
Mr. Ronggin Ke ARREE 0/ 57 NATER NATER NATER  NATER
Mr. Qiang Wei Xyt 0/1 1 NATMER  NATER  NATER il
(resigned on (R=F-NE
19 May 2018) AATHAEHE)
Independent non-executive B FH{TES
Directors
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui RABEE 1 7 22 22 NATER 1
Mr. Honghui Chen REELE 0/1 6/7 22 NATER 22 NATER
Mr. Ming Shu Leung REESE 0/1 I 2/2 2/2 2/2 il

ZE-NEFER FERHHERAA
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EERERHE (R)

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 28 October 2016, subject to his
retirement and re-election at annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
a person may be appointed as a Director either by the
shareholders in general meeting or by the Board. Any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors
or to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until the next
following general meeting, and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required
to retire by rotation at least once every three years at the
annual general meeting, and are eligible for re-election by
the shareholders.

BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find
individuals of high integrity who have a solid record of
accomplishment in their chosen fields and who possess
the qualifications, qualities and skills to effectively represent
the best interests of the Group and its Shareholders.
Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise good
judgment, and to provide practical insights and diverse
perspectives. Candidates also will be assessed in the
context of the then-current composition of the Board, the
operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this
assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection
with its assessment and recommendation of candidates
for director, consider diversity (including, but not limited
to, gender, race, ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and
such other factors as it deems appropriate given the then-
current and anticipated future needs of the Board and
the Company, and to maintain a balance of perspectives,
qualifications, qualities and skills on the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee considers the following
qualifications at a minimum to be required of any Board
members in recommending to the Board potential new
board members, or the continued service of existing
members:

o the highest professional and personal ethics;

° broad experience in business;

° ability to provide insights and practical wisdom
based on their experience and expertise;

° commitment to enhancing shareholder value;

° sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties;

their service on other boards of public companies
should be limited to a reasonable number;

° compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
and
° ability to develop a good working relationship with

other Board members and contribute to the Board’s
working relationship with senior management of the
Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 8
October 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of diversity of Board members. While all Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis,
the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the needs of the Company’s business. Selection
of candidates will be based on the Company’s Board
Nomination Policy and a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The Board also aspires
to having an appropriate proportion of directors who
have direct experience in the Group’s core markets and
distribution channels,

The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the
Board and also the needs of the Board without focusing
on a single diversity aspect.
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EERERHE (R)

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING
AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders and have exercised their duties with care,
skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the
Group. All Directors are provided with monthly updates
on the Company’s performance and financial position
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties. In addition, briefings and updates
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements are provided to
the Board during Board meetings to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. In November 2018, the Company,
together with its legal adviser, organized a training session
to provide the Directors with an update on the Listing
Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
separate and are not performed by the same individual
as this ensures better checks and balances and hence
better corporate governance. Mr. Ziming Yang holds the
position of the Chairman, who is primarily responsible
for strategic positioning. Mr. Siu Keung Ng serves as the
Chief Executive Officer, who is primarily responsible for the
operations and business development of the Group.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the Independent Non-executive Directors is
to provide independent and objective opinions to the
Board, giving adequate control and balances for the
Group to protect the overall interests of the shareholders
and the Group. They serve actively on the Board and its
committees to provide their independent and objective
views.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive Directors, representing more than one-
third of the Board. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has submitted
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the
contents of such confirmations, the Company considers
that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions (the
“Securities Dealing Code”). Upon specific enquiries,
all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the relevant provisions of the Securities Dealing Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

Senior management who, because of their office in
the Company, are likely to be in possession of inside
information, have also been requested to comply with the
provisions of the Securities Dealing Code when dealing in
the Company’s shares.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lai Wah Wong, the Company Secretary of the
Company, is a full-time employee of the Group and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. She
also serves as the secretary of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Corporate Governance Committee and other board
committees as organised by the Board from time to time.
Ms. Wong is responsible for advising the Board through
the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer on
governance matters.
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EERERHE (R)

During the financial year, the Company Secretary complied
with the relevant professional training requirement under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biographical details of
the Company Secretary is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 49 to 55 in the annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure
the Company maintains a sound and effective risk
management and internal control system. The Group’s
internal control system is designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and unauthorized disposition
and to manage operational risks. Review of the Group’s
internal controls covering major financial, operational
and compliance controls, as well as risk management
functions. The controls built into the risk management
system are intended to manage, not eliminate, significant
risks in the Group’s business environment.

The Group’s risk management framework includes the
following elements:

° identify significant risks in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those risks
on the Group’s business;

° develop necessary measures to manage those
risks;

° monitor and review the effectiveness of such
measures.

The implementation of risk management framework of
the Group was assisted by the Group’s internal audit
department so that the Group could ensure new and
emerging risks relevant to the Group’s operation are
promptly identified by management, assess the adequacy
of action plans to manage these risks and monitor and
evaluate the effectiveness of the action plans. These are
on-going processes and our Audit Committee reviews
periodically the Group’s risk management systems.
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Audit committee reported to the Board the implementation
of the Group’s risk management and internal control policy
which, among other things, included the determination
of risk factors, evaluation of risk level the Group could
take and effectiveness of risk management measures.
Based on the reports from the Group’s internal control
department and the Audit Committee, the Board considers
the Group’s risk management and internal control system
is adequate and effective and the Group has complied with
the provisions on risk management and internal controls
as set out in the CG code.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN
PREPARING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s accounts which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash flows for the
year and in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board, and the Companies Ordinance. The
Company has selected appropriate accounting policies
and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Board considers
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
business for the foreseeable future and not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may affect the business of the Company or cast doubts on
its ability to continue as going concern.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

KPMG has been appointed as the external auditor of
the Company. The Audit Committee has been notified of
the nature and the service charges of non-audit services
performed by KPMG and considered that such services
have no adverse effect on the independence of the
external auditor.

EEERRE (R)

BERZEENEFEERAEENRRERE N
NEBEZBERNIITIEN - Hh BREERER
A% - i AEBE AN RBRAR RERE
BIEBNERILE - RIBASE AR ZEM &
BERZBERE  EFERA AKENEAR
EEMABEERARBEE MBRANKED
BT EERSTRIPTENZ BRI Kk A RRE
fR3C -

ES8ERTEMBRE

EXeHAASEEIRERE ST EES
= MR 1 ) BIER B A 3R Al R A RHR DI RN
RAFRE - EEQTRBRAKERAFENE
B~ FENMRERE - ARRIERIEFE
A HE M AHERESENSITHRRLE
BERA - EXERA/AEEFEBERRERNA
RARRBELLHER - B NABAERAIRER
ERNNAEBRBST AR R FHELERENRRE
B EH AR EAR T EEEE

SIS BB

ENHGTMEBMERZER/RNRRNIINE
BN - BEREZE S BASESHSAIE
BT RFOFZBRGOEERRGEE - RBA

B RRGE SN R BNV IB L & (7 I B R
2,

—E-NFER FERMERR A

43



44

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EERERHE (R)

During the year, the fees payable to KPMG or its affiliated
firms comprise service charges for the following:

Statutory audit EEBEZ
Review of interim results FRPEHES
Internal control review NEPES R B
Other non-audit services H M FERET AR

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection and appointment of the
external auditor during the year under review.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Mr. Ziming Yang, Acute Result Holdings Limited (“Acute
Result’), Ascend Fame Limited (“Ascend Fame”), Prime
Ascend Limited (“Prime Ascend”) are the controlling
shareholders (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) of
the Company (the “Controlling Shareholders”). Each
of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the
Company that none of them is engaged in, or interested
in any business (other than the Group) which directly or
indirectly competes or may compete with the business
of the Group. To protect the Group from any potential
competition, the Controlling Shareholders have given an
irrevocable non-compete undertaking in the Group’s favour
on 8 October 2013 (the “Deed of Non-competition”).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In order to properly manage any potential or actual
conflict of interests between the Group and the
Controlling Shareholders in relation to the compliance
and enforcement of the non-compete undertaking, the
Company has adopted the following corporate governance
measures:

(@ the independent non-executive Directors will
review, on an annual basis, the compliance with the
undertaking given by the Controlling Shareholders
under the Deed of Non-competition;

(b) the Controlling Shareholders undertake to provide
all information requested by the Company which is
necessary for the annual review by the independent
non-executive Directors and the enforcement of the
Deed of Non-competition;

(© the Company will disclose decisions on matters
reviewed by the independent non-executive
Directors relating to compliance and enforcement
of the non-compete undertaking of the Controlling
Shareholders under the Deed of Non-competition in
the annual reports of the Company; and

(d) the Controlling Shareholders will make an annual
declaration on compliance with their undertaking
under the Deed of Non-competition in the annual
report of the Company.

The Directors consider that the above corporate
governance measures are sufficient to manage any
potential conflict of interests between the Controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates and the
Group and to protect the interests of the shareholders, in
particular, the minority shareholders.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the
Company that he/it has complied with the Deed of Non-
competition. The independent non-executive Directors
of the Company have reviewed the status of compliance
and enforcement of the Deed of Non-competition and
confirmed that all the undertakings thereunder have been
complied with.
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BARE (H)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance
structure, enable all its shareholders an equal opportunity
to exercise their rights in an informed manner and allow all
shareholders to engage actively with the Company. Under
the Company’s articles of association, the shareholder
communication policy and other relevant internal
procedures of the Company, the shareholders of the
Company enjoy, among others, the following rights:

(i)

(ii)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Participation at general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide
an opportunity for direct communication between
the Board and the shareholders. The Company
encourages the participation of the shareholders
through annual general meetings and other general
meetings where the shareholders meet and
exchange views with the Board, and to exercise
their right to vote at meetings. The Company shall
arrange notices of meetings and circulars containing
details on proposed resolutions to be sent to
the shareholders no less than 20 business days
before the meeting. At general meetings, separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors.

Enquiries and proposals to the Board

The Company encourages shareholders to attend
Shareholders’ meetings and make proposals by
either directly raising questions on both operational
and governance matters to the Board and Board
Committees at the general meetings or providing
written notice of such proposals for the attention
of the Company Secretary at the registered office
of the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at
Unit A&B, 26 Floor, Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue
Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon or via email to
ir@cabbeen.com.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

(i) Convening extraordinary general

meetings

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene
an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the
Directors or the Company Secretary and deposited
at the registered office of the Company in Hong
Kong currently situated at Unit A&B, 26 Floor,
Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue Street, Cheung
Sha Wan, Kowloon for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Directors for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days
of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions under the Company’s
articles of association or the Companies Law, Cap
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures for
Shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings other than a proposal of a person for
election as director. Shareholders may follow
the procedures set out above to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for any business
specified in such written requisition.

(iii)
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EEER®RE ()

(iv)

The notice of annual general meeting together with
the accompanying circular setting out the relevant
information as required under the Listing Rules
are sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business
days prior to the meeting. Poll voting has been
adopted for decision-making at Shareholders’
meetings to ensure that each share is entitled to
one vote. Details of the poll voting procedures are
set out in the circular sent to Shareholders prior to
the meeting and explained at the commencement
of the meeting. Voting results are posted on the
Company'’s website on the day of the annual general
meeting.

Procedures for proposing a person for
election as a Director

Pursuant to the Article 85 of the articles of
associations of the Company, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be
eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a Notice (as defined therein) signed
by a Member (as defined therein) (other than the
person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election
and also a Notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the Registration
Office provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such Notice(s) are given, shall
be at least seven (7) days and that (if the Notices
are submitted after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election)
the period for lodgment of such Notice(s) shall
commence on the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company during the year ended 31

December 2018.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ziming Yang (%5 %28), aged 47, is the founder of our
Group. He is also the Chairman of our Company. He was
appointed as an executive Director on 3 November 2011.
Mr. Yang is primarily responsible for our overall corporate
strategies, planning and business development, and leads
our design and research and development team.

Mr. Yang first started his fashion and wholesale of apparel
business in April 1992. In October 1997, Mr. Yang began
to design and wholesale our Cabbeen branded apparel.
Mr. Yang has over 20 years of experience in design. He
has been one of the most famous designers in China, who
won the award for “Best Menswear Designer’™ (fxf£FE %
:&5HEM) at the China International Fashion Week* (#
BREFZEIE) in 2009 and “The 14th China Fashion Design
Top Award™ (F14/E+ BEIRFERET £ TEE), which is the
top honor in apparel design in China in 2010. Mr. Yang
was accredited as “2010 Quanzhou Economic Figure”
(20105 & R M 48 A %) and was the member of the 10th
China Young Entrepreneurs Association (5 /& B & F
PEXRBEEE)in 2010. In 2011, he was the chairperson
of Shishi Youth Chamber of Commerce’s Council (G &im
SERFEHEEE LK), honorable president of Shishi Textile
& Garments Commerce Chamber’s Council (4 i T #7 4% AR
HEeBE@LZEER) and a committee member of the
11th Committee of All-China Youth Federation (2
EFBEeeE+—EZ8ELE). In 2012, Mr. Yang was
the first president of the Fashion Designers’ Association of
Fujian Province* (fR2& IRERFTAIHEE —fE2K) and
the honorable president of Quanzhou APEC Commerce
Chamber’s Council* (RMAPECEKEHEZEER). In
March 2013, Mr. Yang became the consulting professor
of Beijing Institute of Fashion Technology (1t R ARZEZ
B). In April 2014, Fujian Normal University (@226 &K
E) appointed Mr. Yang as a guest professor. In addition,
Mr. Yang is currently the vice president and a member
of the standing committee and the arts committee of
the China Fashion Designers Association (4 BJAREE %
sTEI%®). Mr. Yang has been the vice president of the
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EEREREEEBERE (H)

standing committee of the China Garment Association*
(FBIARE % E) since October 2013. In April 2013, Mr.
Yang was awarded as 2012 Innovative person of China
textile industry* (2012 R EI&H4% 1T FE EIFT A by The
Association of China Textile Industry* (F1 B#%h 4% T %84
=

Mr. Yang received his EMBA in Sun Yat-Sen University (4
LLRE2) in June 2011. Mr. Yang is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Rongain Ke (f]#5$X) who is also our executive Director.

Mr. Siu Keung Ng (R43&), aged 48, is one of the
founding members of our Group and has been appointed
as an executive Director of our Company on 18 February
2013. Mr. Siu Keung Ng is primarily responsible for our
overall corporate planning and strategy execution and
is the chief executive officer of our Group since July
2010. Mr. Ng has over 15 years of experience in various
aspects, including business operation, management,
sales, procurement, financial and human resource. Mr. Ng
has been with our Group since 1997. Mr. Ng obtained his
bachelor’s degree in material engineering majoring in forge
craft and equipment from Shanghai Jiao Tong University (L=
YFREAAE) in July 1992.

Mr. Ronggqin Ke (f1#588), aged 44, is one of the founding
members of our Group and has been appointed as an
executive Director of our Company on 18 February 2013.
Mr. Ronggin Ke is primarily responsible for our supply
chain management and financial management. Mr. Ke
has over 15 years of experience in various aspects,
including manufacturing, product design and research and
development and procurement. Mr. Ke has been with our
Group since 1997.

Mr. Ke obtained his diploma certificate in business
administration from Hunan University of Technology (/4
F T %K) in January 2008. Mr. Ke was accredited as
“2011-2012 Top Ten Professional Managers of Apparel
Industry in Guangdong Province” (2011-2012F EE R
BIREITETEBZESEA) in August 2012. Mr. Ronggin
Ke is the brother-in-law of Mr. Ziming Yang. He completed
the EMBA program at Lingnan College of Sun Yat-Sen
University (1 1L A2 285 2 F5) in June 2013.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Qiang Wei (£58), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive Director of our Company on 18 February 2013.
Mr. Qiang Wei resigned as an executive Director on 19
May 2018. Mr. Wei was primarily responsible for the
finance and operation of our Group. Mr. Wei has over 15
years of experience in finance and accounting. Prior to
joining us, Mr. Wei was an accountant in Guangxi Bobai
County Foreign Trade and Economic Company* (E 1%
HE M E 548/ 7)) from January 1997 to October
1998. He was then worked in the finance department of
Guangzhou Complacent Industrial Co., Ltd. (BMkz=H
[R A Al) from November 1998 to October 2002. From April
2003 to March 2004 and from March 2004 to September
2008, Mr. Wei had been the finance manager and finance
director, respectively, in Guangzhou Sai De Electrical
Equipment Co., Ltd.* (EMEEHEREBR A F) and
Foshan U Right Garment Co., Ltd. (BBlL{EEARE AR A
7). Mr. Wei joined our Group in December 2008 as the
financial director of Cabbeen Clothing (China) Limited and
took in charge of the company’s finance.

Mr. Wei completed a self-taught accounting diploma
course in April 1999 held by the Commission of Selftaught
Higher Education Examination of Guangxi Zhaung
Autonomous Region (BEAMHEERESZHEBEE
AZ E®), and subsequently obtained the Medium Level
Accountant title granted by Ministry of Finance of the
PRC in May 2002. Mr. Wei obtained his master degree in
business administration from Jinan University in December
2017.
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EEREREEEBERE (H)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui (#&&El), aged 50, is our
independent non-executive Director and was appointed
to our Board on 18 February 2013. Mr. Tsui has over 20
years of extensive experience in auditing and accounting,
including experience from corporations and an international
accounting firm. Mr. Tsui joined Ju Teng International
Holdings Limited (EBEIEFZARBR A F]) (stock code:
3336) in August 2004 and has been the company’s
executive director and chief financial officer since its
listing in the Stock Exchange and served as the company
secretary from August 2004 to March 2017. He has also
respectively been an independent non-executive director
of Shenguan Holdings (Group) Limited (##7E12R% (£ E)E
R /A 7A]) (stock code: 829) since September 2009, SITC
International Holdings Company Limited (/&£ BFE 5 i A
R/ 7)) (stock code: 1308) since September 2010, 361
Degrees International Limited (361 BIFREBR A 7)) (stock
code: 1361) since September 2012 and Intron Technology
Holdings Limited (3R1EBEHZIZERAR A R]) (stock code:
1760) since June 2018, all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Tsui obtained his bachelor’'s degree of business in
accounting from Curtin University of Technology in August
1992 and his master’s degree of corporate governance
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December
2007. Mr. Tsui has been a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since February 1997, a
member of Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand since June 2000, and a member of CPA Australia
since September 1996. He has also been a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since
December 2007 .
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Honghui Chen (PR &), aged 47, is our independent
non-executive Director and was appointed to our Board
on 18 February 2013. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of
extensive experience teaching universities in the fields
of management, economics and corporate social
responsibility. From July 1993 to June 2003, Mr. Chen
worked in Wuhan University of Science and Technology,
primarily teaching management and economics. From
July 2008 till now, Mr. Chen has worked in Sun Yat-Sen
University, primarily teaching courses including strategic
management and corporate social responsibility. Mr.
Chen had been granted the title of deputy professor
from April 2004 to July 2008 and has been subsequently
granted the title of professor since July 2008. Mr. Chen
had also been the deputy dean of Lingnan College in
Sun Yat-Sen University from November 2007 to March
2012 and has been the director of the Research Center
for Corporate Social Responsibility at Lingnan College
of Sun Yat-Sen University* (FILKBEER SR PHET D
FEEMEHRLEE) from July 2009 and the chair of the
Department of Business Management at Lingnan College
of Sun Yat-Sen University* (4 [LIK 2228 & S0 48 5 18
ZE1E), respectively. From 2004 till now, Mr. Chen has
done various researches on the topics of corporate social
responsibility and strategic management and economics
efficiency, which were subsidies by the PRC or local
government. The essay written by Mr. Chen in 2007 was
accredited as the Second Prize of The Philosophy and
Society Science Outstanding Achievement in Guangdong
Province* (ER&A B2 2R 2EFMR-FH).

Mr. Chen has been the independent director of
Guangdong Telepower Communication Co., Ltd.* (&
RRREEMEMRDERAR) from January 2012 to
December 2015. Mr. Chen has also been the independent
director of Guangzhou Grandbuy Co., Ltd. (/M E &R
BB BR A 7)) (SZSE Stock Code: 002187) since September
2016 and of China National Accord Medicines Corporation
Ltd (BR AR EME M B R A R) (SZSE Stock Code:
0020028) on 14 March 2017, both companies are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chen obtained the Qualification of Teacher of the PRC
in 1996. He also obtained his doctoral degree in enterprise
management from Zhejiang University in June 2003.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEEBERE (H)

Mr. Ming Shu Leung (R #1&), aged 43, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 18 February
2013. Mr. Leung founded internet private equity fund
Harmony Capital as Founding Partner on January 2018.
Mr. Leung has been the company secretary of China ITS
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. (FREREBRAERBRAF),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1900), since January 2008 and the chief financial officer
of this company from January 2008 to January 2018. He
has also been an independent non-executive director of
Comtec Solar Systems Group Limited (#8547 KF56E &
S E=EAR AR (stock code: 712) since June 2008 and
Sun.King Power Electronics Group Limited (stock code:
580) since March 2017, both companies are listed on the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Leung has over 15 years of experience in the areas
of corporate finance and accounting. Mr. Leung started
his professional career at PricewaterhouseCoopers in
Hong Kong as an auditor in 1998. He then worked at
the global corporate finance division of Arthur Andersen
& Co. in Hong Kong, which subsequently merged with
PricewaterhouseCoopers, until December 2000. From
July 2001 to February 2003, Mr. Leung also worked as
a business consultant in Market Catalyst International
(Hong Kong) Limited, where he advised companies on
issues of strategy, organization and operations. Mr. Leung
then spent approximately three years from February
2003 to January 2006 at CDC Corporation, a NASDAQ-
listed company, as a senior manager in the mergers and
acquisitions department, and as the chief financial officer
of China.com Inc., a subsidiary of CDC Corporation and
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. From February
2006 to October 2006, Mr. Leung served as the chief
financial officer of Beijing Xinwei Telecom Technology
Co., Ltd., a related party of KEEERIERH AR AT
(Datang Telecom Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed
on The Shanghai Stock Exchange) which is engaged in
the development of telecommunication standard and
manufacture of telecommunication equipment. From
November 2006 to January 2008, he served as the chief
financial officer of Beijing Lingtu Spacecom Technology
Co., Ltd (JtREEEFARHEER AT, a subsidiary of
Beijing Lingtu Software Co., Ltd (It REBEEHHFH A
R 7)), a PRC digital mapping and navigation software
company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Leung obtained his bachelor’s degree in arts with
first class honor in accountancy from The City University
of Hong Kong in June 1998 and a master’s degree in
accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
November 2001. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (FCCA) and a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (FCPA).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Lai Wah Wong (EE#), aged 44, is the chief
financial officer of our Group. Ms. Wong is also
our company secretary and one of the authorized
representatives of our Company. Ms. Wong joined our
group in April 2012 and is primarily responsible for our
overall financial management and company secretarial
affairs and coordination of investor relations. Ms. Wong
has over 15 years of experience in auditing, tax and
financial management. Prior to joining us, she had worked
in international accounting firms and other companies
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Ms.
Wong obtained her bachelor’s degree of arts in accounting
at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1997 and
master’s degree of science in corporate finance at The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 2014.
She is also a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and is domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office
at Unit A&B, 26/F, Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Group’s
principal place of business is in the PRC.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are wholesaling and
retailing of branded menswear and related accessories
in the PRC. The principal activities and other particulars
of the subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, aggregate
sales to the Group’s largest and five largest customers
accounted for 11.5% (2017: 11.9%) and 38.5% (2017:
42.5%), respectively, of the Group’s total revenue for the
year.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five
largest suppliers of OEM products accounted for 11.5%
(2017: 13.6%) and 28.3% (2017: 33.4%), respectively, of
the Group’s total purchases from suppliers for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (who or
which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest
in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the latest five financial years is set out on
page 259 of the annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s
affairs as at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 93 to 258 of the annual
report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the
Group are set out in note 26 to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately RMB99.9 million.

DIVIDEND

On 1 August 2018, the Company declared an interim
dividend of HK13.2 cents (2017: HKB.0 cents) per ordinary
share for the six months ended 30 June 2018. The
Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK4.8 cents (2017: HK8.5 cents) per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2018.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to RMB85,000 (2017: RMB659,000).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EXEHE(R)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Details of acquisitions and other movements of non-
current assets (including investment property, other
property, plant and equipment, interests in leasehold land
held for own use under operating leases and intangible
assets) are set out in notes 9 to 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements. Shares were issued during the year
on exercise of share options.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business overview and financial
performance

The review of the Group’s business and financial
performance for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
provided in the section “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business
operations of the Group, some of which are inherent to
fashion business and some are from external sources.
Major risks are summarized below.
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(i)

(ii)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Fashion risk

Our success depends on our ability to define
products trends and anticipate, gauge and react to
changing consumer demands in a timely manner.
Failure to anticipate and respond timely to changing
consumer preferences could lead to lower sales
and excess inventory levels. With respect to each
design concept, it is important to have the right
volume of stocks and strike the right balance in the
mix between fashion basics and the latest trends.
To track the acceptance of our fashion concept
in the market closely, we introduce products in
different batches throughout the season and will
further shorten the product development cycle in
order to reduce the lead time between production
and delivery to customers. In addition, shopping
patterns and the length of product seasons can vary
in different parts of mainland China. Fashion designs
which are popular in one province of mainland China
at a given time may not be as popular in another
local market.

Intense competition

We compete not only with local Chinese menswear
brands, but also with other international fashion
brands. Areas of competition include product
designs, production costs, marketing programs,
customer services. If we do not respond timely to
our competitors, our costs may increase or the
consumer demand for our products may decline
and our revenue and profits would decrease.

(i)

(ii)

EXEHE(R)

FF i R

BRI EURA T PR IE R B8 2 -
TEA - FHEI REFEE T E (LR EE
EESKEEE ST o RBETERIIL N B 8 11N
ET LB E B B S 4f o] ge PR R R M0 8H
ERELRBRBENFEKYE - RRIEE

%&ﬁﬁm’?fk Mﬁﬁi’&%
%EJE%&% EmITIB S 2 AR
HEVHZEEE - AEYEMREMA

SRESEMS ENEXEE - HAR
—FApPHHER - WiE— TR
EmFEIBEEH - DU D EmEE RN
TEPZERERE ot - BRI R
EmEEEHRERP RN AREH
Hh I T 22 o 5O RE IR R AE R B P 3t R 1
‘é{ﬂ /uuﬁﬂ”]ﬁ—ir%?&ﬁ? E;\Eﬁ 1
B ISmRIT °

BB
HFMBFHFMEREFEARLER
mhg - TR E A EERE R R o 35
MR B IR E MR« EEKA - &
.:JrilJ&%)EHEﬂW (GEEAIREZYSUST ¥

BEHTFORE - BB
ibﬂigﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@é%%ﬁi?% * LA
K3 AFIr) e Kom FRL > -

—E-NFER FERMERR A

59



60

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EXEHE(R)

(iii)

(iv)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Macroeconomic environment

The risk exists that negative macroeconomic
changes may result in negative changes in the
business environment. Fashion products may be
considered as discretionary items for customers.
Slower consumer spending may result in reduced
demand for our products, reduced orders from our
distributors, order cancellations, higher discounts,
increased inventories, lower revenue and margins. It
is therefore important that the Group is aware of any
such changes of economic environment and adjusts
its store opening plan, buying volume and business
plan under different market conditions.

Supply chain

We do not own or operate any manufacturing
facilities and depend upon independent
manufacturers to produce all of our products and
materials. Any disruption in the supply of fabric, raw
materials and products from suppliers may cause
problems in our supply chain. We have no long-term
contracts with any of our suppliers and we may
need to compete with other companies for fabrics,
raw materials and apparel products. Nevertheless,
we have developed long-standing relationships
with a number of our vendors so as to minimize
the impact from any supply disruptions and ensure
we can locate alternative suppliers of comparable
quality at a reasonable price all the time. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, 28.3% (2017:
33.4%) of our products were produced by our top
five suppliers and we have more than five years’
business relationship with these suppliers.
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v)

(vi)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Financial conditions of our distributors

We extend credit to our distributors based on as
assessments of their financial conditions, repayment
history and sales performance of the retail outlets
operated by them, generally without requiring
collateral. To assist in the scheduling of production
of our products, our customers could place orders
four to five months ahead of delivery under our
sales fair ordering system. These advance orders
may be cancelled and the risk of cancellation may
increase when dealing with distributors struggling
with financial difficulties. A slowing economy could
also adversely affect the financial conditions of our
customers, which in turn could have an adverse
effect on our results of operation. In addition,
product sales are dependent in part on an appealing
store environment to attract consumers, which
requires continuing investments by distributors.
Distributors that experience financial difficulties may
fail to make such investments and result in lower
sales and orders for our products.

Information system

We are dependent on information technology
systems and networks, including the internet and
third-party hosted services across many of our
operating activities, including sales and distribution,
ordering and purchases, sales and distribution,
inventory management in all retail outlets,
e-commerce business, customer relationship
management, digital marketing and financial
reporting. Any material disruption or slowdown of
our IT systems, including a disruption or slowdown
caused by our failure to successfully upgrade our
systems, system failures, viruses or cyber attacks
could cause a loss of data or operation interruption.
Therefore, we invest continuously in our IT and
ERP system so as to keep up with the technology
security and availability and integrity of critical
operation data.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EXEHE(R)

(vii)

(viii)

Reputational risk

Cabbeen is one of the leading Chinese fashion
causal designer brands and our success depends
on our ability to maintain and enhance our brand
image and reputation. Maintaining and promoting
our brands will depend on our product design,
marketing efforts and product quality. In addition,
effect of our marketing activities depends on
our ability to adapt to the rapid changing media
environment, including social media and online
advertising campaigns. Should existing and potential
customers lose confidence in Cabbeen/or one of
its brands, or in the industry in general, because
of negative publicity, the Group’s sales would
decrease. To safeguard and manage the brand,
it is important that the Group continues to uphold
its brand value, corporate image, product safety
and maintain high business ethics. In addition,
it is also important that communication with our
shareholders, customers and other stakeholders is
accurate, transparent and reliable.

Weather

Extreme weather conditions in the areas in which
our retail stores, suppliers and customers are
located could adversely affect our operating results
and financial condition.

Key Relationships

(i)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Employees

To remain competitive in the retail apparel industry,
we must attract, develop, and retain skilled
employees in our design, merchandising, supply
chain, marketing, and other functions.
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(ii)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

We strive to motivate employees with a clear
career path and opportunities for advancement
and improvement of their skills. We provide
pre-employment and on-the-job training and
development opportunities to our staff members.
The training programs cover areas such as
managerial skills, sales and production, customer
services, quality control, sales fairs planning,
workplace ethics and training of other areas relevant
to the industry.

We conduct employee engagement survey across
its Hong Kong and mainland China operations once
a year. We seriously consider all those valuable
feedback from our employees for enhancing
workplace productivity and harmony.

In addition, we offer competitive remuneration
packages to employees and have also adopted
share option schemes to recognize and reward the
contribution of the employees to the growth and
development of the Group.

Suppliers

We have developed long-standing relationships
with a number of our vendors and take great care
to ensure that they share our commitment to quality
and ethics. We carefully select our OEM and require
them to satisfy certain assessment criteria including
track record, experience, financial strength,
reputation, ability to produce high-quality products
and quality control effectiveness. We also require
our OEMs to comply with our anti-bribery policy.

(ii)
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(iii) Distributors

We sell our products to end customers through
third-party distributors. We work with our
distributors like we are business partners and
ensure we share the view for upholding our brand
value and customer services, specifically focusing
on attracting and retaining customers in order to
drive sales growth. We and our distributors reach an
agreement on retail sales target and store expansion
plan before they place their orders. We require
our distributors and sub-distributors to comply
with our retail policies, including but not limited to
nationwide product retail selling price, standard
store images, promotional activities and use of our
ERP system. We also monitor the financial condition
and repayment history of our distributors, and retail
sales performance of the stores operated by them.

(iv) Customers

We are committed to offer a broad and diverse
range of inspiring, value-for money, good-quality
fashion with our various brands to our customers.
We also stay connected with our customers. We
maintain our VIP database and have ongoing
communications with our customers through mainly
social media. We also work with our distributors
and provide training to their key sales personnel to
provide quality and value-added customer services
at retail channel.

Environmental Policies

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural
resources. We strive to minimize our environmental impact
by saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office
supplies and other materials. We also require factories
of our OEM to operate in strict compliance with the
relevant environmental regulations and rules and possess
all necessary permission and approval from the relevant
Chinese regulators.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company'’s subsidiaries in the mainland China while the
Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our
establishment and operations accordingly shall comply
with relevant laws and regulations in the mainland China
and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December
2018 and up to the date of this report, we have complied
with all the relevant laws and regulations in the mainland
China and Hong Kong.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of
the Company as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2018 and at any time up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ziming Yang (Chairman)

Mr. Siu Keung Ng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Rongain Ke

Mr. Qiang Wei (resigned on 19 May 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui
Mr. Honghui Chen
Mr. Ming Shu Leung
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Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 28 October 2016 subject to his
retirement and re-election at annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.
The details of the remuneration of each of the Directors
are revealed on note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the Directors’ biographies have been set out
on pages 49 to 55 of the annual report. In accordance
with article 84 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr Ronggin Ke and Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui will retire from
the Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract
with the Group which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions”
and note 29 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance to which the Company, or any of
its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year under review.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions”
and in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements,
there had been no contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors of the Company had any interest
in any competing business with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries during the year under review. Each
of the Controlling Shareholders has complied with the
non-compete undertaking given by them to the Company
under the Deed of Non-competition on 8 October 2013.
The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the status of compliance and enforcement
of the non-compete undertaking and confirmed that all
the undertakings thereunder have been complied with
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company,
applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur or sustain in the execution of their duties in their
offices. Such permitted indemnity provision has been in
force throughout the year under review. The Company
has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions for the year as disclosed
in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements also
constituted connected transactions as defined under
the Listing Rules, which are required to be disclosed in
this report in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of such connected transactions (as defined
under the Listing Rules) are set out below:

Lease of properties from Junyuan Development
Company Limited (A # T BRRZ R B R A A7)
(“Junyuan Development”) (the “Leases”)
Junyuan Development is wholly owned by Mr. Ziming
Yang, the Chairman and executive Director and Controlling
Shareholder (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) of the
Company. Junyuan Development is therefore a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Group entered into lease agreements with Junyuan
Development on 31 May 2017 to lease certain premises
at Shishi City, Fujian Province, from Junyuan Development
for a term of one year commencing from 1 June 2017 to
31 May 2018 (the “2017 Leases”). Total rental payable
by the Group under the lease agreements amounted to
RMB2,836,934.28, details of which were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 31 May 2017.

Upon expiry of the 2017 Leases, the Group entered into
new lease agreements with Junyuan Development on 31
May 2018 to continue to lease the relevant premises for
another year from 1 June 2018 to 31 May 2019 (the “2018
Lease”). Total rental payable by the Group under the 2018
Lease amounted to RMB1,729,150. The 2018 Lease
were fully exempt from the annual review, independent
Shareholders, approval and all disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they were
entered into on normal commercial terms, the applicable
percentage ratios (as defined under the Listing Rules) were
less than 5% and the aggregate annual amount payable
by the Group to Junyuan Development during the year
ended 31 December 2018 (including the relevant amount
paid under the 2017 lease) was less than HK$3,000,000.
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The transactions contemplated under the 2017 Leases
and 2018 Leases constitute continuing connected
transactions on the part of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31
December 2018, total rental paid or payable by the Group
under 2017 Lease did not exceed the caps as disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 31 May 2017,
and total rental paid or payable by the Group under 2017
Lease and 2018 Lease totalled RMB2,111,209.

Opinion from the independent non-executive
Directors on the connected transactions

The Directors (including all independent non-executive
Directors) have reviewed the above connected transactions
and confirmed that these transactions were entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

) on normal commercial terms or better; and

3) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them and on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of the aforesaid connected
transactions.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the Company

Number of

Name of director shares held

B4

FisEREBE

EERETBTHRAERESFER

R-EBE-N\E+-A=+—0 E=RAQTA
FTETRAEBRARAIREEH LB (TER
FBHERIEEG ((HEREBERG) FEXVEL)
MR - RGN REEE T EERERAK
NAMREEFRAERAIFEB2EBTEZE
st Ra iR RO E - SRR _E AR AR R -
T8l LB ITAESETELRR HMIZESTE
(TEXSFH ) BRITHEARNRE) R A iE
wmEABWT ¢

RAEQTWER

Number of

underlying
shares Approximate
comprised percentage of
in options® shares in issue®
BREMRSR FERTRH
HRRGEE O i SER AL
Mr. Ziming Yang®S 15 5K 5 A et 405,243,209 200,000 405,443,209 60.64%
Mr. Siu Keung Ng ROBEE 2,926,000 1,300,000 4,226,000 0.6321%
Mr. Rongain Ke RIS 3,850,000 2,300,000 6,150,000 0.9198%
(1) Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are wholly-

owned and controlled by Mr. Ziming Yang and Mr. Ziming Yang
is therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares in which
Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are interested.

2) Multiplus International Limited (“Multiplus”) is owned as to
99% by Ms. Liting Ke and 1% by Mr. Ziming Yang. By virtue of
a shareholders’ agreement dated 31 July 2012 by and between
Ms. Liting Ke and Mr. Ziming Yang in addition to the voting right
attached to the share Mr. Ziming Yang holds in Multiplus, he also
has the right to control the exercise of the voting rights attached
to all the shares in Multiplus held by Ms. Liting Ke. Accordingly,
Mr. Ziming Yang is deemed to be interested in all the shares in
which Multiplus is interested.
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©)) Ms. Liting Ke was granted 200,000 share options pursuant to
Share Option Scheme (as defined below) of the Company.

(4) Mr. Ziming Yang is the spouse of Ms. Liting Ke. Accordingly, Mr.
Yang is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Ms.
Liting Ke is interested.

) These represent interest in underlying shares of the Share Option
Schemes granted (as defined below) by the Company.

(6) Based on a total of 668,593,000 issued shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2018.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none
of the Directors and the chief executives of the Company
and their respective associates had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, the persons or corporations
(not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO were as follows:

FTERRNVEDZRKR

RZZE—N\F+A=+—8 A TFALHE
B (FEFHARAEIZTHRAE) RAAF
fin BRI P EAREE S LR EERDS
XV &85 2 & 3 73 BRI SRR AN A B 4K FR 3k AT 8%
RiZBE S M ERDIE B IHERERTHFEE
O AERIORE -

Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding

Capacity/Nature of interest Shares interest®
FRESD
51 RERtE RGEE Botk®
Ms Liting Ke!"@® Interest in a controlled corporation/ 405,443,209 60.64%
RBE L e Interest of spouse
WREEERNER /T ENER
Acute Result?® Beneficial owner 242,493,209 36.27%
P e ERBEAA
Ascend Fame®® Beneficial owner 52,500,000 7.85%
AE BREAA
Keen Network®® Beneficial owner 31,500,000 4.71%
el BREAA
Prime Ascend®® Interest in a controlled corporation 31,500,000 4.711%
TR @ REEE N ER
Multiplus® Beneficial owner 78,750,000 11.78%
2o BREAA
) Ms. Liting Ke is the spouse of Mr. Ziming Yang. Accordingly, Ms. (1) MBER T /G EHALENERS - At - FERE

Liting Ke is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Mr.
Ziming Yang is interested.

2) Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are wholly-
owned and controlled by Mr. Ziming Yang and Mr. Ziming Yang
is therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares in which
Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are interested.
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Multiplus is owned as to 99% by Ms. Liting Ke and 1% by Mr.
Ziming Yang. By virtue of a shareholders’ agreement dated 31
July 2012 by and between Ms. Liting Ke and Mr. Ziming Yang, in
addition to the voting right attached to the share Mr. Ziming Yang
holds in Multiplus, he also has the right to control the exercise
of the voting rights attached to all the shares in Multiplus held
by Ms. Liting Ke. Accordingly, Mr. Ziming Yang is deemed to be
interested in all the shares in which Multiplus is interested.

Keen Network Holdings Limited (“Keen Network”) is owned
as to 33.33% by Prime Ascend, 33.33% by Dominant Success
Holdings Limited (“Dominant Success”) and 33.33% by Rosy
Connect Investments Limited (‘Rosy Connect”). Prime Ascend
is directly and wholly-owned by Mr. Ziming Yang. Dominant
Success is directly and wholly-owned by Mr. Siu Keung Ng.
Rosy Connect is directly and wholly-owned by Mr. Ronggin Ke.
Mr. Ziming Yang, Mr. Siu Keung Ng and Mr. Rongagin Ke are
executive Directors of the Company.

By virtue of a shareholders’ agreement dated 31 July 2012 by
and among the shareholders of Keen Network, in addition to the
voting rights attached to the shares in Keen Network that it holds,
Prime Ascend also has the right to control the exercise of the
voting rights attached to all the shares in Keen Network held by
other shareholders. Accordingly, Prime Ascend is deemed to be
interested in all the shares in which Keen Network is interested.

Based on a total of 668,593,000 issued shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018,
the Directors were not aware of any other person or
corporation having an interest or short position in shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a pre-initial public offering share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
on 8 October 2013 for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
Group.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme on 8 October 2013 for the purpose of rewarding
certain eligible persons for their past contributions and
attracting and retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going
relationships with, such eligible persons who are significant
to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the performance, growth or success of the Group.
Options to subscribe for an aggregate of 8,520,000 shares
(the “Shares”) of the Company (the “Pre-IPO Share
Options”) were granted on 8 October 2013. The exercise
price per Share is HK$2.024, being 80% of the initial
public offering price. No further option could be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme after 8 October
2013. All Pre-IPO Share Options granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme may be exercised during the
option period commencing from the first anniversary of the
Listing Date to the date falling 10 years from the grant date
of the Pre-IPO Share Options and can only be exercised in
the following manner:

(i) 30% of each Pre-IPO Share Options may be
exercised from the first anniversary of the Listing
Date;

(ii) 60% of each Pre-IPO Share Options may be
exercised from the second anniversary of the Listing
Date; and

(iii) 100% of each Pre-IPO Share Options may be
exercised from the third anniversary of the Listing
Date.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEERE (H)

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Options as at 31 December
2018 are as follows:

R-ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HE
BB ¢

RAFIBER

Exercised
Outstanding during  Lapsed during Outstanding
asat theyearended the year ended as at
1 January 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2018 2018 2018
R® 8z 8z JiS
—E-N\F —E-N\E§ —B-N\F —E-N\¥
-B-B +=ZB=t-B +=ZA=t-B +=A=+-H
e RATHE LEERTE LFEEEAN e RATHE
Directors =
Mr. Siu Keung Ng ROBEE 900,000 - - 900,000
Mr. Ronggin Ke BN G 700,000 - - 700,000
Mr. Qiang Wei Xy 700,000 700,000 - -
(resigned on (RZZE-N\F
19 May 2018) AATHNBET)
Others Hith 3,899,000 629,000 1,720,000 1,550,000
Total @t 6,199,000 1,329,000 1,720,000 3,150,000

M1 ERZSERAREERBREETER S
HERE A A0 BO A9 U TR (E /5 2.55 B T ©

Note 1: The weighted average closing price of the corresponding Shares
immediately before the dates on which these Pre-IPO Share
Options were exercised is HK$2.55.

BEBX A AFEESABRETET TETH
A% 170 #2815 3,150,000 i% © 1h A G H Bi AR A
A2 BT AR 4281 (BN 668,593,000 AZA% 1D ) #9
0.47% °

The total number of Shares available for issue under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 3,150,000,
representing approximately 0.47% of the total number of
Company'’s issued Shares as at the date of this report, i.e.
668,593,000 Shares.

ZE-NEFER FERHHERAA
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EXEHE(R)

No share options granted under the Per-IPO Share
Option Scheme were canceled during the year ended 31
December 2018.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 8
October 2013 for the purpose of rewarding certain eligible
persons for their past contributions and attracting and
retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going relationships
with, such eligible persons who are significant to and/
or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
performance, growth or success of the Group. Subject
to the earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme
in accordance with the rules thereof, the Share Option
Scheme shall remain in force for a period of ten years
commencing on 28 October 2013.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include any proposed,
full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any Directors or
proposed Director (including non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; any direct or indirect shareholder of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and any advisers,
consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries. The maximum number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue as at the Listing Date, i.e.
70,000,000 Shares.

No option may be granted to any participant of the Share
Option Scheme such that the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted to that person in any 12-month
period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the
Company’s issued share capital from time to time.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
as determined by the Board and not exceeding 10 years
from the date of the grant. There is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised;
however, the Board may, subject to the provisions of the
Listing Rules, in its absolute discretion when offering the
grant of an Option impose any conditions, restrictions or
limitations in relation thereto in addition to those set forth
in the Share Option Scheme as it may think fit. Participants
of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay the
Company a nominal consideration in total HK$1.00 upon
acceptance of the grant on or before 30 days after the
offer date. The exercise price of the options is determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less
than whichever is the highest of:

(@ the nominal value of a Share;

(b) the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the offer
date; and

(c) the average closing price of a Share as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five Business Days (as defined in the Listing Rules)
immediately preceding the offer date.

EEERE (H)

BREATNEFSEENHRREBRERTS
M RFBERTT(E - BRI TN SBEREL B
HIRERT 104 - BB ART A —EHRT
AT AT - BRI ETARBIRE - mEFES
RBRE  AT2EBBMNEER HBRERE
FERCRERT S PrEt 2 L1 hn A AR AR A0 (L MA] 16k
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEERE (H)

Details of movements in the share options as at 31 RZ-ZE—N\F+=A=1+—HBREEREZ
December 2018 which have been granted under the Share X HEIBERAER S B FFBUOT
Option Scheme are as follows:

Granted Exercised Cancelled
Qutstanding during the during the duringthe  Outstanding
asat year ended year ended year ended asat
1January  31December  31December 31 December  31December  Exercise  Date of Exercisable
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 Price  grant period
iy B2 B2 B2 iy

“E-\E  CE-\f ZEF-\& CE-\f CE-)\F
-A-B fZA=t-B t+ZB=t-H t=A=t+-R +ZA=t-H
WAGHE  LEEEEY  LEEDAE  LEEDEE WATHE

Directors

£2

Mr. Siu Keung Ng - 400,000 - - 400,000 354 13June 2018 13 June 2023 - 12 June 2028

ROBRE “Z-\ERAT=R ZE-=E/AfzHZ
ZZ-\&rATZA

Mr. Rongain Ke 800,000 - - - 800,000 219 3August 2017 3 Aug 2022 - 2 Aug 2027

B “T-ENAZR  E--ENAZRE
“EHENAZA

Mr. Ronggin Ke = 800,000 = = 800,000 354 13June 2018 13 June 2023 - 12 June 2028

LAk “E-\ErATZR ZZ-=EARfzRZ
2o N\ERATCR

Employees 5,200,000 - - 400,000 4,800,000 219 3August 2017 3 Aug 2022 - 2 Aug 2027

= “T-+E\AZB —E--F)\BZRE
“E-+E\AZH

Employees - 6,200,000 - - 6,200,000 354 13June 2018 13 June 2023 - 12 June 2028

Fe “T-N\ERBTZR ZEoZEARTCRE
“2oN\ERATCR

Total 6,000,000 7,400,000 - 400,000 13,000,000

&5t

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares RAME AH - RIFEREFTSIAIHEZTH
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was %17 2% 69,600,000 % * HHER AR AL
69,600,000, representing approximately 10.41% of the  #ITARARL)10.41% - AR HEGH 2] &) TR F HA
Company’s issued share capital, and the remaining life #RMNFZTN\@EA - HEZ-_FT—/\F+H
of the Share Option Scheme was about 4 years and =+—HIEFEWEREBAREEIT DA
8 months. No share options granted the Share Option  IR#ERRX °

Scheme were lapsed during the year ended 31 December

2018.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2018



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The closing price of the Company’s Shares on the Stock
Exchange on 12 June 2018, being the business day
immediately before the date of the grant of 7,400,000
share options by the Company on 13 June 2018, was
HK$3.58 per Share.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in “Share Option Schemes” above, at
no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director of the Company
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debt securities (including debentures) of the Company
or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes organized by the PRC municipal and
provincial government authorities for the Group’s eligible
employees in the PRC, and operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.
Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 24
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There were no significant events after the reporting period
of the Group.

EEERE (H)

RRABBPR-_F—-NFNATZHCH
ERARAR-_ZE-N\FRAT=ZBKRH
7,400,000 13 AR R < ‘& 5 B ) B AT 2 UL
MERFAI.58BTT °

EERERODEEZENLZH

Br EX TRERERT 8] FTIREEE SN - RERIE
RS - MEREAARREZTHRSEEH
FLBORACF TR B B U AR B R 2
[RIERE MR AER - MRS EREFT
% AR HERARSEEANBARL
BE2EFIVEMRRARRESEANE
AR B SRR EL A A B H B (2 UEF R 77 (B
TRIEHERE) MR -

EIRHE
AEBERAEESERNTREESEL2HAPE
& R T BT 4 A AR 4 0 R E R FUR IR AR AT
2 WARERELHS2HERTHIELTESE
gl o ZERNGTEIMFIBE NG M B IRE M
5E24 o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EXEHE(R)

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 have been audited by KPMG, who
shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
KPMG as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Ziming YANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 February 2019
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Cabbeen Fashion Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Cabbeen Fashion Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 93 to 258,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BUGHMRE

B ZBETRE
HFERMERIARR
(REIEF#BZMA BRI E])

=R

BMEEZINEANFEIBEE258E & k&
BRAR(ERADREMBAR (TEEE])
MR M HRE R BERREBER-F
—N\F+-A=t—"BNGEEFBIRREE
EZAULFENGES Ba MM E R aRE -
RARREHREGARERER - UNEE
B HERME - BRI ESFTHEME -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BAUGHARE (R)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BAGHMERE (R)

Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FERR

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 170.

D E ARSI 2 RE 170 AR EFHHE °

The Key Audit Matter
BARERSEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNEESLE

Revenue principally comprises sales of menswear
goods to distributors and via consignees.
WEF2aERSHEEBRIERHESEKS

an °

Each year, the Group enters into a framework
distribution agreement or a consignment
agreement with each distributor or consignee
and manufactures and sells its products in
accordance with the terms of separate purchase
orders.
ERESFREZHHPIR BB LIERD HH
R - WRBESIRERT B RTEE K&
HEHREMR °

For sales to distributors, once the products are
collected from the designated warehouse by the
distributor, the control of the goods is considered
to have been transferred to the distributor and
revenue is recognised at that point.

AP EEELNHEENS - Em—BEBDHEE
RIETRERN  FASmOEHIEFREADE
BT oiEn - WRZEEEERRE

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue included the following:

BAFHE KSR B ZEFEEA N E

o assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s key
internal controls over revenue recognition;

AL EIRER MU R S A EPIE I ER
it B BRI

o inspecting agreements with distributors and
consignees, on a sample basis, to understand
the terms of the sales transactions including
the terms of delivery and acceptance,
applicable rebates arrangements and any sales
return arrangements to assess the Group’s
revenue recognition criteria with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
BREBEAEERE HE S HE MARHEE A BE - LA
THRHERZIHNGR  BRIMNEEXHKE
O EANONT B REREERE T - #
m2EZRITEFERNBRENE SEEHUK

IR |

—E-NFER FERMERR A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B2 HATR = ()

Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FERR

D E RS2 RE 170 AR S FHHE °

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 170.

The Key Audit Matter
FEREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNEESE

For sales via consignees, once the products are
sold to end users by the consignee, the control of
the goods is considered to have been transferred
to the consignee and revenue is recognised at
that point. The Group receives confirmations
from consignees on a monthly basis of both the
transaction amounts and balances due to the
Group.

HBEEREBELNHEN S - Em—BEBR
HEETRmAP  AEEmOZEGIEFEAD
ERTRER - WRZEERER KR - E5E
BRARRREREER SR LENEEBIA
ERRTERE -

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and because
there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the
timing of recognition of revenue by management
to meet specific targets or expectations.
BIFER AR REREZER  BRKAR
BEEBENEREVIEREZ - MEPLLERE
AERNE B RS R A R W s iR A
BRR -

o assessing, on a sample basis, whether
revenue transactions recorded during the
financial year had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period by comparing the
transactions selected with relevant underlying
documentation, including goods delivery notes
or monthly confirmations from consignees and
the terms of sale as set out in the distribution or
consignment agreements;
BREAEEFBULEMER S EBBXIFX
- BREEEEIREREFEFNEAERER
7> XA 8 17 3 P B ) 8 5 R AR - AT AR O BA IR
FEALHENPW R HEECREE # I B
R

o assessing, on a sample basis, whether
specific revenue transactions around the
financial year end had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period by comparing the
transactions selected with relevant underlying
documentation, including goods delivery notes
or monthly confirmations from consignees and
the terms of sale as set out in the distribution or
consignment agreements;
BREAEEFBUEBRAEISHEEAIIFX
- AREEENIREREENEGABERER
7> $H A B 17 P 8 ) BH B K - AT AR
FERAMNENEERRER HEEERNEE
B BAREI RERR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
ﬁlﬁ%ﬂgﬂiiﬁi (mﬁ)

Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FERR

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 170.

BRI AR N2 B 170 BHYB B -

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BARERSEE EERPHEEGE
o assessing, on a sample basis, whether sales

rebates during the financial year had been
recognised in the appropriate financial period
by reconciling the movements in sales rebates
accruals, recalculating the sales rebates
recognised during the financial year on the
basis of the terms as set out in the distribution
or consignment agreements and comparing
sales rebates payments during the financial
year to confirmations from distributors or
consignees and other relevant underlying
documentation;
BREAEEF B AETIHELNEE  BIE
2 $H S BH 177 5 P B B0 IR R E ST s T E R B B AR
EAERRHEERH - MBI BFEE AN
EEHRERE 2 HE R EEmERE &
H AR S 153 - SHEREE R AR HE
EHR S EREE 8 BURAR R

o identifying significant credit notes issued and

sales returns from the sales ledger after the
financial year end and inspecting relevant
underlying documentation to assess if the
related revenue had been accounted for in the
appropriate financial period in accordance with
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
BRI B FEREEHERTAELNER
ERENHEERE - WinEEAX X §®
et AN =TS ERBRITE T ERIAR
EREE T BHARAR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B2 HATR = ()

Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FERR

D E RS2 RE 170 AR S FHHE °

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 170.

The Key Audit Matter
FEREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNEESE

o inspecting significant manual adjustments
to revenue during the reporting period,
enquiring of management as to the reasons
for such adjustments and comparing details
of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.
BENBERANH WS IIENERFERE
mMEREERELERARNIER ML BHARE
15 HEAE R S U o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BUGBERE (K)

Valuation of inventories

FEME

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 161.
LA RN 17 R 161 BRISEHEUR °

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BARELEE EEZPNEER X

Sales of inventories in the fashion industry can | Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
be volatile with consumer demand changing | inventories included the following:

according to current fashion trends. B A EERENEZEFBREATIE
MIVHEEFT K REEE IR RSB E m 2
g RRITENTFEIESTRENIERE - . assessing whether the inventory provisions at
the reporting date were calculated in a manner
The Group typically sells or disposes of off- consistent with the Group’s inventory provision
season inventories at a markdown from the policy by recalculating the inventory provisions
original price to make room for new season based on percentages and other parameters
inventories in its stores. Accordingly, the actual in the Group’s inventory provision policy and
future selling prices of some inventories may fall considering the application of the Group’s
below their purchase costs. inventory provision policy with reference to
EEE—MRITELEXREATHE + UREE the requirements of the prevailing accounting
HWAFEFEBLEEM - Bt - ETEFENER standards;
RIREBRGENEERBHR o BESSEEFERBHRENB DL REAMBE
BN ERERERZER TN ENNRTE
Management considers several factors in EZREEBGFEREBBENER - #UANER
determining the appropriate level of inventory RERHNGTERBRGREERBTERE
provisions, including inventory ageing, historical BR8N AHFE
rates of sales at normal price levels and at
markdown prices, and the channels available for | e assessing, on a sample basis, whether items
selling off-season inventories. in the inventory ageing report were classified
EREENETHEENGFEREKTIREEZIER within the appropriate ageing bracket by
= BREERR REREHRKERERER comparing the barcode tags for the inventory
BEELIHEEXUREERSTHEENR ARE o items selected with relevant purchase
documents;

BEAEEE BB AMETFER B NRHRE
EARRRE Xt - AT EREK RS T HIEA
ERBANEENIRERAR

o performing a retrospective review by comparing
the carrying values of inventories as at 31
December 2017 with sales prices achieved
during the current year, to assess the reliability
of management’s write-down and provisioning
process;

ERE T —+F+ A=+ —HZFEERE
BEAFE 2 EEETHE @ (EHEBRE A
A S TR R OB S B IR AE < AT SR

—E-NFER FERMERR A




88

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B2 HATR = ()

Valuation of inventories

FEME

BREE TS IRAN T 17 RE 161 EHIEETHUE °

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 161.

The Key Audit Matter
FEREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNEESE

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter because of the significant judgement
exercised by management in determining the
appropriate levels of inventory provisions which
involves predicting the amounts of inventories
which will be unsold at the end of each season
and the markdowns necessary to sell such off-
season inventories on a discounted basis through
outlets and other channels in future years. Both
of these factors can be inherently uncertain and
could be subject to management bias.

BMEFEREINREAREZEE  AREEE
EETESNTFEREKFRITEEAHE - M
ERFREARNESEEERAENFEHE LR
ARBFBEBIHEREMREERELHELFE
FEERBIELNF - ZFREHFEER T
HEM - WReX BIEERIFTRR

evaluating the Group’s inventory provision
policy by comparing management’s expectation
of the amounts of inventories which are unlikely
to be sold in the foreseeable future at current
prices and the corresponding expectation of
markdowns with historical sales amounts and
markdown data for the current and prior years
provided by management; and

BB ERBE N ARAI BN ] R RIEZE A
EREHENTFEHRENTE KRNI NTEL
HEREMRHNE A BEFENELH
EHELRFTHNEE HEEEENTFERER
R R

enquiring of the management and senior
members of the sales team about any expected
changes in plans for markdowns or disposals
of off-season inventories and comparing the
carrying value of inventories to actual prices for
sales transactions subsequent to the reporting
date on a sample basis.
MERERHERGHNSREEASAREEH
FrsRIEAEFEEINEAAERES - I
BEAEENBRFEREERRS A HRIHEE
R BN BRER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

INFORMATION OTHER THAN

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BAUGHARE (R)

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B2 HATR = ()

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ng Yu Hei.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 February 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeRBRHEMZERER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z2 —F— \F+_-A=+—HI F)E
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A E#57)

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —F—tF
(Note)
(BF&E)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR®ETTT
Revenue I %5 2 1,273,473 1,089,106
Cost of sales SHE R (694,730) (551,493)
Gross profit EF 578,743 537,613
Other income E g A 3 58,100 42,786
Share of loss of an associate 7 —EHE & A ) 2 &8 (190) -
Selling and distribution HE R IERX
expenses (179,423) (153,392)
Administrative and other TR EMEERS
operating expenses (146,388) (125,671)
Profit from operations S g 310,842 301,336
Finance costs BB 4(a) (19,891) (16,555)
Profit before taxation BRBE A% A 4 290,951 284,781
Income tax expense PRISIFI 5(a) (80,708) (81,568)
Profit for the year F Rz F 210,243 203,213
Attributable to: U&7 MG -
Equity shareholders of KRR AR
the Company 211,888 201,883
Non-controlling interests PR S (1,645) 1,330
Profit for the year FREF 210,243 203,213
—E—\FFR FEREFERLA A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
GeBRRkHMEERSRE (B)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 # 2 —F—/\F+_-A=+—HIL F)Z
(Expressed in Renminbj) (A B #SITR)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
(Note)
(BFEE)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR®ET T
Other comprehensive FREMZEYKE
income for the year
ltem that may be reclassified AJREREZEFHIE
subsequently to profit or loss:  E|18z5HIER -
- Exchange differences on - BE R B AHIEIN
translation of the financial E A 0lrpE Es
statements of operations HIPE 5 Z 58
outside the mainland
China 1,200 (2,340)
Total comprehensive FRE2EWGZEE
income for the year 211,443 200,873
Attributable to: LU & 75 e -
Equity shareholders of NN RIERARER
the Company 213,088 199,543
Non-controlling interests R (1,645) 1,330
Total comprehensive FRE2EWGZEE
income for the year 211,443 200,873
Earnings per share BREFN(ARED) 8
(RMB cents)
Basic R 31.71 29.47
Diluted e 31.68 29.45

Mz : AEBER T NF—A—BEXEREEHT
BIREERFE 155 R AR M B HmE LR F o5 -
RIEFTEIEN BB A LREERTEEH2
B o BHIFE1(C) °

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 January
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).

£ 1002 258 A FTH M it A ST R FR AR
20 - BEEN AR RS EMRSFES
KT EE 26(b) °

The notes on pages 100 to 258 form part of these
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company are set out in note 26(b).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBRRE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN EESI)

2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E—+F
(Note)
(BF&E)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®ET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment property B 9 39,607 -
Other property, plant and B - BE KA
equipment 10 59,326 73,076
Interests in leasehold land EME NFEERZ
held for own use under HET 7R
operating leases 11 22,811 23,312
Intangible assets mEEE 12 37,393 40,218
Prepayments for acquisiton — WEBME K& 2
of plant and equipment SCANE/OE 1,039 9,744
Interest in an associate R—EEE AR 2w 13 49,349 -
Other loans receivable H bl E R 15 - 64,118
Deferred tax assets EETIRE E 16(b) 33,257 26,158
R BN 242,782 | 236,626
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 383,578 337,052
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H b B FKIE 18 506,393 445,829
Other financial assets HemERE 19 60,000 253,159
Deposits with banks with REISBEB=EA
original maturity date BIERTTIF 3K
over three months 443,944 452,860
Pledged bank deposits BEEMRITHER 20 240,485 105,015
Cash and cash equivalents ~ R& MIREEHEY 21 220,484 134,593
S SR 1,854,884 1,728,508
Current liabilities REEE
Bank borrowings RITE 22 52,566 16,636
Trade and other payables 8 5 R HAFER IR 23 597,395 590,042
Current taxation BEAT 18 16(a) 34,895 19,929
R ST 684,856 | 626,607
_Netcurrentassets RBEEFE | 1,170,028 | 1,101,901
Total assets less current EEHERRBAEE
liabilities 1,412,810 1,338,527
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank borrowings RITIERK 22 234,886 271,461
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIBAE 16(b) 4,168 11,770
) 239,054 | 283,231
SE-N\EER | FERHERAD
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
FERBMRRE (F)

(Expressed in Renminbi) (WAA B #5177 )

2018 2017
—sE—-N\EF —E—+F
(Note)
(FftE)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,173,756 1,055,296
CAPITAL AND RESERVES E#XKkf#iE 26
Share capital &N 5,214 5,203
Reserves e 1,112,743 1,018,653
Total equity attributable AARERBR
to equity shareholders FE GRS
of the Company 1,117,957 1,023,856
Non-controlling interests  JEIEfR X 55,799 31,440
TOTAL EQUITY MR 1,173,756 1,055,296

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 22 February 2019.

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 January
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c).

Mr. Siu Keung Ng
RAEESE
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

TR RBTTEE

The notes on pages 100 to 258 form part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REREREER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 = F— 1 F+ = A=+—HIFZ

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A E#57)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KARERRREL
Capital Non-
Share  Share redemption  Capital Statutory Exchange Refained controlling
capital  premium feserve feserves  reserve - feserve profits Total interests
Bx  BbeE BE  EARBE ieEE ENRE  REWA a3t
RMBOOO RMB'000  RMB000 000 RMB'OO0  RMB00D  RMB'OOD RMBOO RMB'000
ARETT ARETT I . ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETRH
Asat1 January 2017 H=%-tE-5-H 558 4712 /A T I 1 S WA - BT
Changes in equity HoE-1%
for 017: i3y
Proft for the year EREH - - - - - - 01883 201,883 1330 203218
Ot comprehensive EREMZENE
income for the year - - - - -y - 23 - 23
Tota comprehensive EmREMGLE
__ comeforteyear o Tototoomo M 0183 109543 1330 20878
Dividend declared RN 260) - - - - - - [06418  (66419) - (66419
Shares fsted inder REERE
share apfion scheme Ak 2600 L1 - {100 - - - 92 - %2
Tanler betweenresenes EREA - - - (430) - - 40 - - -
Equiy-setted fEaiEhEh
hare-based BERIRS
ransactions 4b) - - - 360 - - - 360 - 360
Appropriaton o ERETRE
statutory resnves - - - - 6,161 - 616 - - -
Shres repurchased EORD 2600 (384) - 384 - - -0 (9229 R iy
Captal mected by FERER A
non-contraling inferests - - - - - - - - N0 300
fsat3 December 2017 HE—+F
ad iy 018ty t2F=+-ER
E-)\E-A-B() 5008 6,060 B4 N8 465 (450 928920 1023856 31440 1,085206
Changes in equity AE-NE
for 2018; MEREE .
Proftfor the year il - - - - - - 288 211888 (1645 21043
Other comprehensive EREMZENG
income for the year - - - - - 1,200 - 1,200 - 1,200
Totd comprefensive EMREMELE
__ comefortveyear o f o ttomooomo M0 2B 23088 (164) 201448
Dividend declared RN 260) - - - - - - (12238 (122328 - (1223
Shares fsted inder RaERET
share option schieme Bk 26(0)i 3% - (o72) - - - -
Tanslor etweenresenes AR - - - (145 - - 1454 - - -
Equiy-setted ERLER
share-based RERIRS
fransactions ) - - - 1,167 - - - 1,167 - 1,167
Appropriaton o BRETRE
statutory reserves - - - - 4131 - ) - - -
Capial ected by HERERTE
non-controling interests - - - - - - - - 26004 26004 |
As at 31 December 2018 RE-NETZF=1-A 5214 9,195 B4 41040 49706 (3394 1015808 1,117,057 55799 1,173,756
Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 January Pz AEBERZZT—N\F— A —HEXEAEKRH
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative THMEERNE 155 RER IR E LR L5 -
information is not restated. See note 1(c). BIEBFMEENBESE  IREERTESHE

B o BHIFE1(C) °

The notes on pages 100 to 258 form part of these financial 25 100 & 258 B F#{ i 5T A2 S W 15z AH K
statements. i
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
GRRERER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 = F— N\ F+=A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbj) (A B #SITR)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
(Note)
(F3E)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®ETTT
Operating activities KEEH
Cash generated from operations & & EEFT1SIR & 21(b) 264,869 374,344
Income tax paid EASPTISH (79,594) (84,800)
Net cash generated RETHRBERSE
from operating activities 185,275 289,544
Investing activities REEE
Payment for the purchase of BB « BE &
property, plant and BAB
equipment (29,574) (43,211)
Payment for the purchase BEEFEEMNK
of intangible assets (3,612) (10,522)
Payment for leasehold land ~ FHEE A 2 HHE T HI{TH
held for own use - (494)
Proceeds from disposal of HEYE - BER
property, plant and BRABPTIS A
equipment 6,021 2,873
Net (increase)/decrease of JREIEAR 8 = & A
deposits with banks with HIERTTIF 3K
original maturity date over () /R FEE
three months 8,916 (177,460)
Net decrease in pledged EHEBIRITIER
bank deposits BAFER (135,470) 134,053
Proceeds from disposal HESREE 2 FTS5IA
of financial assets 333,702 21,634
Payments for the purchase ~ BB & RIEENK
of financial assets (141,000) (250,835)
Proceeds from repayment e H e U E sk 65,840 -
of other loans receivables FriSs0R
Investment in an associate AR E AT (50,000) -
Loans to minority shareholder a8 IR E X - (25,610)
Loans to third party ME=FREER - (63,005)
Loans to an associate m— g A RREER (47,840) -
Interest received U S 15,539 11,933
Net cash generated from/ REFEFE,(FTH)FRE
(used in) investing
activities 22,522 (400,644)
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Financing activities

Proceeds from bank

BEEE

RITIEFKPTIFA

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

GERERER(E)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 = F— 1 F+ = A=+—HIFZ
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A E#57)

2018
—E-N\F

RMB’000
ARBT T

2017
—T—tF
(Note)

(PHEE)
RMB’000
ARBTT

borrowings 21(c) - 324,749
Repayment of bank EERRITER

borrowings 21(c) (17,372) (147,095)
Dividends paid EfRE 26(b) (122,328) (66,418)
Interest paid ERFE (18,827) (15,898)
Proceeds from issue BITIRD FT1S RUR

of shares 26(c)(iii) 2,174 952
Payment of share B& BB

repurchase 26(c)(ii) - (92,298)
Capital contribution by LRpEEING]

non-controlling interests EIERE R A

of subsidiaries 26,004 30,110
Payment of other H SRR AT ER

borrowing cost - (4,367)
Net cash (use in)/ BESEE (FTA) e

generated from FRE

financing activities (130,349) 29,735
Net increase/(decrease) ReERBESEEY

in cash and #hn CRd) BE

cash equivalents 77,448 (81,365)
Cash and cash equivalents R—HA—BMHEER

at 1 January REZEY 134,593 222,885
Effect of foreign exchange HNERE R B B

rate changes 8,443 (6,927)
Cash and cash equivalents R+=BA=+—H

at 31 December NWRERRSEEY 21(a) 220,484 134,593

Note: The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 January
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative

information is not restated. See note 1(c).

The notes on pages 100 to 258 form part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR R M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK?”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Annual Report 2018

1

FTESHEE

(a)

BREH

AZEV BRI RBABERE
B B 755 3R o 2 B (T BB B 755 3%
SR mARR o B R R
SREABERBARSTEES
g ([EReEREEE |) R
EY PTG 5@ A R 8 1 B R B 75 SR o
R B 2R (TR g
R ) R - RFEVBHRERIT
HEBBAAHRDIHEREER
ENRBBHARZMBRAT]
(TEBBR]) B EmARRD
BERABRERTE - NEBEMRAE
DETBORKELT -

Rt EREEECEMET
el RGBT BRI R E %
A ZFLERNAEERITEF
HARE B R A R AT HR AR AN © Y
108 BEHE RERZFR
REFNEMNSATHRESNE
£ AR AERZEWBRERA
[REREVE B SR g st B A
SSEIER o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the Group's
interest in an associate.

These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the nearest
thousand, as the Group’s principal activities
were carried out in the PRC. RMB is the
functional currency for the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the mainland
China. The functional currency of the
Company and the Company’s subsidiaries
outside the mainland China are Hong Kong
dollars.

These financial statements are prepared
on the historical cost basis except that
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss which are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies below
(note 1(g)).

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1 FESTTEHER®E)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the
financial statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 30.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of new
IFRSs and amendments to IFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments

(ii) IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

(iii) IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period, except for the
amendments to IFRS 9, Prepayment features
with negative compensation which have been
adopted at the same time as IFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

IFRS 9, Financial instruments,
including the amendments to
IFRS 9, Prepayment features
with negative compensation

IFRS 9 replaces |IAS 39, Financial
instruments: recognition and
measurement. It sets out the
requirements for recognising and
measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or
sell non-financial items.

The Group has applied IFRS 9
retrospectively to items that existed at
1 January 2018 in accordance with the
transition requirements. The Group has
recognised the cumulative effect of
initial application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at 1 January 2018.
Therefore, comparative information
continues to be reported under IAS 39.

There is no impact of transition to IFRS

9 on retained earnings and reserves at
1 January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)
(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments,

including the amendments to
IFRS 9, Prepayment features
with negative compensation
(Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect
of the changes to previous accounting
policies and the transition approach
are set out below:

a. Classification of financial assets
and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 categorises financial
assets into three principal
classification categories:
measured at amortised cost,
at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI)
and at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL). These supersede
IAS 39’s categories of held-to-
maturity investments, loans and
receivables, available-for-sale
financial assets and financial
assets measured at FVPL. The
classification of financial assets
under IFRS 9 is based on the
business model under which
the financial asset is managed
and its contractual cash flow
characteristics. Under IFRS
9, derivatives embedded in
contracts where the host is a
financial asset in the scope of
the standard are not separated
from the host. Instead, the hybrid
instrument as a whole is assessed
for classification.

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

FESBER (@)
EHRESE (2

(i) EERMBERESERNF

REMIA, BEBERET
BHREERFEIFE
AABHEZENAE
FF ()
BRBEETHRES N
BERENEE RTEN
E—FHFBHIT

BEARTRE

P @
30|

=~
m

»
W KD

B R B 7% 3R 5 £ A
FORBEMEED
R=ZREERH ]
BARAGTE - BR
HEF AR EER
@ MR ERF AR
& ZEDBIARE
PR & 5T 2RI 395%
HEER - DRIARE
EIEMRE BERR
MR ~ AT E
TREENMRAFE
ARG ETRE
E - BRI iE %
RIEORIB TSR
BENBIDENER
TREENEBKEN
REBHRERER
B RIBBIR M 55
HEERFE W - MR
ARFPESTRAIE
TE METARE
HHBEAN—EE
BMEE  AlAITE
TATMEEARTH
AHR - MEHES
TARREBEETT
fmo¥E

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A

105



106

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B= 1715 E )

P UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments,
including the amendments to
IFRS 9, Prepayment features
with negative compensation
(Continued)

a.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Classification of financial
assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

The following table shows
the original measurement
categories for each class of
the Group’s financial assets
under IAS 39 and reconciles
the carrying amounts of those
financial assets determined
in accordance with IAS 39 to
those determined in accordance
with IFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(i

IFRS 9, Financial instruments,
including the amendments to
IFRS 9, Prepayment features
with negative compensation

(BBITIERESS » UAARKEST)

FESHBE®)
(c) EBESF &)
() EIBRBBHREENSO

ST A, BEERY
BHREENFIRNIE
AREHEZENAE

(Continued) 1B (E)

a. Classification of financial a. TREELRTSHRE
assets and financial liabilities BN (&)
(Continued)

IAS 39 IFRS9
carrying carrying
amount at amount at
31 December 1 January
2017 Reclassification 2018
RZB-tfF R=%-
+=A=t-8 -A-A
Gl sge ] F‘%‘ﬁﬁ Bk
$ 3958 ERIE %A
TREE ENoR TRAE
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL
Financial assets carried BRERRTIRN
at amortised cost tREE
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEY 134,593 - 134,593
Trade and other receivables B5 Rt RIGE 445,829 - 445,829
Deposts with banks ith orignal ~—~ REISRB=AAK
maturty date over threemonths  $R{77%23% 452,860 - 452,860
Pledged bank deposits EERETER 105,015 - 105,015
Prepayments for acquisition WERRE RS ENERTE
of plant and equipment ‘ 9,744 - 9,744
Other loan receivables (note ()~ EtEMER (Mizk() 64,118 (47,245) 16,873
1,212,159 (47,245) 1,164,914
Financial assets carried at FVPL 22\ P A BiiH RN
tREE
Convertile loan (note (j) Bz eAGR) 5159 47245 52,404
Wealth management products BB R (HfzE i)
(note (i) 60,000 188,000 248,000
65,159 235,245 300,404
Financial assets classified REREEAZ0HET
as available-for-sale under PRATHLENCHEE
[AS 39 (note (ii) (HoE i)
Avallable for-sale financial assets ~ AEHESREAE 188,000 (188,000) -
“E-N\FFER | FEBSHERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(B= 1715 E )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

P UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments,
including the amendments to
IFRS 9, Prepayment features
with negative compensation

(Continued)

a.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Classification of financial
assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

Notes:

(0

The Group recorded the loan
receivables at present value
amounted to RMB 47,245,000
as non-current other loans
receivable while the conversion
option, amounted to RMB
5,159,000, as other financial
asset at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) as at 31
December 2017 under IAS 39.

The loan embedded the
conversion option should
be treated as a single hybrid
financial instrument under IFRS
9 because derivative embedded
in contracts where the host is
a financial asset in the scope
of the standard are never
separated. Considering the
business model and contract
cash flow characteristic of the
convertible loan, the Group
classified it to FVTPL which is
measured at fair value at initial
recognition and subsequently at
fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)
(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments,

including the amendments to
IFRS 9, Prepayment features
with negative compensation

(Continued)

a. Classification of financial
assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

At the date of initial application,
an entity recognised any
difference between the fair value
of the entire hybrid instrument
and the sum of the fair value of
its components in the opening
retained earnings of the
reporting period.

The fair value of the convertible
loan is equal to the sum of the
fair values of the conversion
option and the loan as at 1
January 2018 so no opening
retained earnings adjustment is
required.

(i) Under IAS 39, seven principal-
guaranteed wealth management
products were classified as
available-for-sale financial
assets. They are classified as at
financial assets carried at FVPL
under IFRS 9.

The measurement categories for
all financial liabilities remain the
same.

The Group did not designate or
de-designate any financial asset
or financial liability at FVPL at 1
January 2018.

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1 FESTTEHER®E)

(c) EFBX2F @)

(i

—E-\FFR

BB ERELEAEI
REMT R, BEERY
BHREENFIRNIE
AREHEZENAE
FF ()

a. EREENEMA

BN (E)

BieE : ()

REXRERR
H - BRNEZR
HEHZHNRE
B MR EEER
BATARFE
HLE A B K 9
N EBZ =
BE o

AEBERAT
BHEA-Z—N
F—A—RBzH
BREATERE
AR - i
fEZAEH BIRR
BRAFE -
(i) g el
RIS 395 - B
HEEMEMNR
RAFHESR
BE - BRERE
% B 75 3 o5 22 A
FOHE TN DM
RIBANTEFA
BRMEE -
METHEaEZEr
BIERI M5 -

R-_E—NF—A
—H AKRELE
1 E SKEUBEEME
MeREEXT®
BERAFETA

=NV
B3 e

FEREHFRA A

109



110

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments,
including the amendments to
IFRS 9, Prepayment features
with negative compensation
(Continued)

b.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Credit losses

IFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in IAS 39 with the
“expected credit loss” (ECL)
model. The ECL model requires
an ongoing measurement of
credit risk associated with a
financial asset and therefore
recognises ECLs earlier than
under the “incurred loss”
accounting model in IAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL
model to the following items:

- financial assets measured
at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables);
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments,
including the amendments to
IFRS 9, Prepayment features
with negative compensation
(Continued)

b. Credit losses (Continued)

- debt securities measured
at FVOCI (recycling);

- lease receivables;

For further details on the Group’s
accounting policy for accounting
for credit losses, see notes 1(n)(i)
and (ii).

The Group has concluded that
there would be no material impact
for the initial application of the
new impairment requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(i) IFRS 9, Financial instruments,
including the amendments to
IFRS 9, Prepayment features
with negative compensation
(Continued)

C. Transition

Changes in accounting policies
resulting from the adoption
of IFRS 9 have been applied
retrospectively, except as
described below:

- Information relating to
comparative periods
112 has not been restated.
Differences in the carrying
——a amounts of financial
assets resulting from
the adoption of IFRS
9 are recognised in
retained earnings and
reserves as at 1 January
2018. Accordingly, the
information presented
for 2017 continues to
be reported under IAS
39 and thus may not
be comparable with the
current period.

- The following assessments
have been made on
the basis of the facts
and circumstances that
existed at 1 January
2018 (the date of initial
application of IFRS 9 by

the Group):
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments,
including the amendments to
IFRS 9, Prepayment features
with negative compensation
(Continued)

c. Transition (Continued)

- the determination
of the business
model within which
a financial asset is
held; and

- the designation of
certain investments
in equity instruments
not held for trading
to be classified as
at FVOCI (non-
recycling).

- If, at the date of initial
application, the assessment
of whether there has been
a significant increase in
credit risk since initial
recognition would have
involved undue cost or
effort, a lifetime ECL has
been recognised for that
financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

IFRS 15, Revenue from
contracts with customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for recognising revenue
and some costs from contracts
with customers. IFRS 15 replaces
IAS 18, Revenue, which covered
revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and
IAS 11, Construction contracts,
which specified the accounting for
construction contracts.

IFRS 15 also introduces additional
qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to
understand the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from contracts with
customers.

The Group has elected to use the
cumulative effect transition method
and has recognised the cumulative
effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening balance of
equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore,
comparative information has not been
restated and continues to be reported
under IASs 11 and 18. As allowed by
IFRS 15, the Group has applied the
new requirements only to contracts
that were not completed before 1
January 2018 (if any).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

IFRS 15, Revenue from
contracts with customers
(Continued)

There is no impact of transition to IFRS
15 on retained earnings at 1 January
2018.

Further details of the nature and effect
of the changes on previous accounting
policies are set out below:

a. Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue arising
from construction contracts
and provision of services was
recognised over time, whereas
revenue from sale of goods
was generally recognised at
a point in time when the risks
and rewards of ownership of
the goods had passed to the
customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from
contracts with customers

(Continued)
a. Timing of revenue recognition
(Continued)

Under IFRS 15, revenue is
recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised
good or service in the contract.
This may be at a single point
in time or over time. IFRS 15
identifies the following three
situations in which control of
116 the promised good or service is
regarded as being transferred
over time:

A. When the customer
simultaneously receives
and consumes the
benefits provided by the
entity’s performance, as
the entity performs;

B. When the entity’s
performance creates
or enhances an asset
(for example work
in progress) that the
customer controls as
the asset is created or
enhanced;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I RR M ()
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESHEBER®)
POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) EFTEXRZH &)
(Continued)

(i) EIERBEREEREA1S
W EFANE (E)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from
contracts with customers

into any of these 3 situations,
then under IFRS 15 the entity
recognises revenue for the sale
of that good or service at a
single point in time, being when
control has passed. Transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership
is only one of the indicators that
is considered in determining
when the transfer of control
OoCCurs.

The adoption of IFRS 15 does
not have a significant impact
on when the Group recognises
revenue from sale of goods
and this change in accounting
policy had no material impact
on opening balances as at
1 January 2018.

(Continued)
a.  Timing of revenue recognition a WHEHEIAHERD
(Continueqd) (%)
C. When the entity’s C. EBNEHYN
performance does not 17/ I K Al
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from
contracts with customers
(Continued)

b.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Significant financing component

IFRS 15 requires an entity to
adjust the transaction price
for the time value of money
when a contract contains a
significant financing component,
regardless of whether the
payments from customers are
received significantly in advance
of revenue recognition or
significantly deferred.

Previously, the Group only
applied such a policy when
payments were significantly
deferred, which was not
common in the Group’s
arrangements with its
customers. The Group did
not apply such a policy when
payments were received in
advance.

[t is not common for the
Group to receive payments
significantly in advance of
revenue recognition in the
Group’s arrangements with its
customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

(i) IFRS 15, Revenue from
contracts with customers
(Continued)

b.

Significant financing component
(Continued)

The adoption of IFRS 15 does
not have a significant impact
on when the Group recognises
financing component from
sale of goods and this change
in accounting policy had no
material impact on opening
balances as at 1 January 2018.

Presentation of contract liabilities

Under IFRS 15, a contract
liability, is recognised when a
customer pays consideration, or
is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is
already due, before the Group
recognises the related revenue,
or when the Group receives
consideration from a customer
and expects to refund some
or all of that consideration
to the customer (i.e. refund
liability). To reflect this change in
presentation, contract liabilities,
including receipts in advance
from customers, unredeemed
loyalty points liabilities and
refund liabilities, with amount
of RMB52,381,000 are now
separately presented under
trade and other payables at 31
December 2018, as a result of
the adoption of IFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(iii)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

IFRIC 22, Foreign currency
transactions and advance
consideration

This interpretation provides guidance
on determining “the date of the
transaction” for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use
on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of
it) arising from a transaction in which
an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency.

The Interpretation clarifies that “the
date of the transaction” is the date
on initial recognition of the non-
monetary asset or liability arising from
the payment or receipt of advance
consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of
recognising the related item, the date
of the transaction for each payment
or receipt should be determined in
this way. The adoption of IFRIC 22
does not have any material impact on
the financial position and the financial
result of the Group.

Annual Report 2018

1

FESHBE®)
(c) EFBEREE (&)
(i) ERUEBREREBZRE

BE2% SEXER
ANAE

R REE [R5 B 4]
REt TS BEIXS
AHIMBENSHETER
LANEE W ER 38 s7 A FRAS A
B ST HEREHE
BE - HIBA (BES
) R EAHIER

ZeBEERI RSB ]
A S ETEN K
EMELHIFEEEEE
HBENVRERBH -
WMRERABEAEBNA
%2 ST S I ERE) IR
ARAERTARESSE
FIAX MR WEA R 5 H
Hi o RNBIFR B s 2
BLZEeRES 22 R Y
R ER (8 ) B B AR B B 7S
RKEVETAEATE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

In the Company's statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (note

1(n)ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group
or Company has significant influence, but not
control or joint control, over its management,
including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). The
cost of the investment includes purchase
price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct
investment into the associate that forms part
of the Group’s equity investment. Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see notes 1(n)
(ii)). Any acquisition date excess over cost,
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

0] the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and
is tested annually for impairment (see note

1(n) (i)

On disposal of a cash generating unit
during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Other investments in debt and
equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments
in subsidiaries and an associate, are set out
below.

Investments in debt and equity securities
are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investment. The investments are initially
stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL) for which transaction
costs are recognised directly in profit or loss.

For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments,
see note 27(e). These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January
2018
Investments other than equity
investments

Non-equity investments held by the
Group are classified into one of the
following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment
is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is
calculated using the effective
interest method (see note 1(x)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and
equity securities (Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1
January 2018 (Continued)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI)
- recycling, if the contractual
cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and
the investment is held within
a business model whose
objective is achieved by both
the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in
fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except
for the recognition in profit or
loss of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated
using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the
investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or
loss.

fair value at profit or loss
(FVPL) if the investment does
not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and
equity securities (Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1
January 2018 (Continued)
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is
classified as FVPL unless the equity
investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an
election to designate the investment
at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive
income. Such elections are made on
an instrument-by-instrument basis, but
may only be made if the investment
meets the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time
of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to retained earnings. It is
not recycled through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and
equity securities (Continued)

(B)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Policy applicable prior to 1
January 2018

Investments in securities held for
trading were classified as financial
assets measured at FVPL. Any
attributable transaction costs were
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
At the end of each reporting period the
fair value was remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

Dated debt securities that the Group
had the positive ability and intention
to hold to maturity were classified
as held-to-maturity securities. Held-
to-maturity securities were stated at
amortised cost (for impairment see
note 1(n)(i) — policy applicable prior to
1 January 2018).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and
equity securities (Continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1
January 2018 (Continued)
Investments which did not fall into any
of the above categories were classified
as available-for-sale financial assets.
At the end of each reporting period the
fair value was remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity
in the fair value reserve (recycling).
Interest income from debt securities
calculated using the effective interest
method were recognised in profit or
loss in accordance with the policies set
out in note 1(x)(ii). Foreign exchange
gains and losses arising from debt
securities were also recognised in
profit or loss. When the investments
were derecognised or impaired (see
note 1(n)(i) — policy applicable prior
to 1 January 2018), the cumulative
gain or loss recognised in equity was
reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Investment property

Investment property is a building which is
owned to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. This includes property
that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at
cost. The cost of a purchased investment
property comprises its purchases price
and any direct attributable expenditures.
Investment property is accounted for using
the cost model and stated in the statement
of financial position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss (see note
1(n)(ii)). The cost of investment property, less
its estimated residual value and accumulated
impairment loss, is depreciated using the
straight-line method over its estimated useful
life as follow:

° Building 20 years
Rental income from investment property is
accounted for as described in note 1(x)(v).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

@)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured. The gain
or loss on remeasurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow
hedge accounting or hedge the net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case recognition
of any resultant gain or loss depends on the
nature of the item being hedged.

Other property, plant and
equipment

The following items of property, plant
and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (note 1(nfiii)):

- buildings held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land classified as
held under operating leases (see note
1(k)); and

- other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of
property, plant and equipment includes the
cost of materials, direct labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located,
and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (note 1(z)).

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

@)

Other property, plant and
equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land
are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years
after the date of completion.

- Leasehold Shorter of 3 -5 years
improvements or remaining term

of the lease

- Plant and machinery 5-10years
- Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
- Furniture, fixtures 3 -5 vyears

and equipment

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

()

Interests in leasehold land held for
own use under operating leases

Interests in leasehold land held for own use
under operating leases represent cost of
acquiring land use rights paid to the PRC’s
governmental authorities. Land use rights are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see note 1(n)(iii)).
Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term of the right which is 48 years.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life
is finite) and impairment losses (note 1(n)(iii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from
the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Computer software 5-10 years
Distribution network
and trademark 20 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

(m)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Both the period and method of amortisation
are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation
of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

Operating lease charges

Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.
Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
terms, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESHEBER®)
POLICIES (Continued)
(n) Credit losses and impairment of n) GEBEREERE
assets

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables

A)

Policy applicable from 1 January
2018

The Group recognises a loss
allowance for expected credit
losses (ECLs) on the following
items:

- financial assets measured
at amortised cost
(including cash and cash
equivalents, trade and
other receivables and
loans to associates);

- debt securities measured
at FVOCI (recycling);

- lease receivables; and

- loan commitments
issued, which are not
measured at FVPL.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial

instruments, contract assets

and lease receivables (Continued)

A)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Financial assets measured at
fair value, including units in
bond funds, equity securities
measured at FVPL, equity
securities designated at FVOCI
(non-recycling) and derivative
financial assets, are not subject
to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the
present value of all expected
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to
receive).

For undrawn loan commitments,
expected cash shortfalls are
measured as the difference
between (i) the contractual cash
flows that would be due to the
Group if the holder of the loan
commitment draws down on the
loan and (i) the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive if
the loan is drawn down.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January

2018 (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following
discount rates where the effect
of discounting is material:

fixed-rate financial
assets, trade and other
receivables and contract
assets: effective interest
rate determined at
initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

variable-rate financial
assets: current effective
interest rate;

lease receivables:
discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease
receivable;

l[oan commitments:
current risk-free rate
adjusted for risks specific
to the cash flows

The maximum period
considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit

risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
(A Policy applicable from 1 January

2018 (Continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group
takes into account reasonable
and supportable information
that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes
information about past events,
= current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.
138

ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these
are losses that are
expected to result from
possible default events
within the 12 months
after the reporting date;
and

- lifetime ECLs: these are
losses that are expected
to result from all possible
default events over the
expected lives of the
items to which the ECL
model applies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I RR M ()
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTEHXR®)
POLICIES (Continued)
(n) Credit losses and impairment of n) FEFEREEREE)
assets (Continued)
() Credit losses from financial () £@MIRE - EHEER
instruments, contract assets HEERREBEZEEE
and lease receivables (Continued) B(E)
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January AN BZZE—N\F—A
2018 (Continued) — B E AR BER
(&

Loss allowances for trade
receivables, lease receivables
and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based
on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at
the reporting date.

For all other financial
instruments (including loan
commitments issued), the
Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk
of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case
the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial

instruments, contract assets

and lease receivables (Continued)

A)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit
risk

In assessing whether the credit
risk of a financial instrument
(including a loan commitment)
has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk
of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed
at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making
this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (i)
the financial asset is 180 days
past due. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable
and supportable, including
historical experience and
forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost
or effort.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial

instruments, contract assets

and lease receivables (Continued)

(A Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

In particular, the following
information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments
of principal or interest on
their contractually due
date;

- an actual or expected
significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected
significant deterioration
in the operating results of
the debtor; and

- existing or forecast
changes in the
technological, market,
economic or legal
environment that have a
significant adverse effect
on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial

instruments, contract assets

and lease receivables (Continued)

A)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

For loan commitments, the
date of initial recognition for the
purpose of assessing ECLs is
considered to be the date that
the Group becomes a party to
the irrevocable commitment.
In assessing whether there has
been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition
of a loan commitment, the
Group considers changes in
the risk of default occurring
on the loan to which the loan
commitment relates.

Depending on the nature of
the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is
performed on either an
individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is
performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk
ratings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial

instruments, contract assets

and lease receivables (Continued)

(A Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each
reporting date to reflect changes
in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for
all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through
a loss allowance account,
except for investments in debt
securities that are measured at
FVOCI (recycling), for which the
loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the fair
value reserve (recycling).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial

instruments, contract assets

and lease receivables (Continued)

A)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest
income

Interest income recognised in
accordance with note 1(x)(ii) is
calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e.
the gross carrying amount less
loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the
Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired.
A financial asset is credit-
impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial

instruments, contract assets

and lease receivables (Continued)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes the
following observable events:

- significant financial
difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract,
such as a default or
delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

- it becoming probable that
the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the
technological, market,
economic or legal
environment that have
an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

- the disappearance of
an active market for
a security because of
financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial

instruments, contract assets

and lease receivables (Continued)

A)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, lease receivable
or contract asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the
Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an
asset that was previously written
off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in
the period in which the recovery
occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)

B)

Policy applicable prior to 1
January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an
“incurred loss” model was used
to measure impairment losses
on financial assets not classified
as at FVPL (e.g. trade and
other receivables, available-for-
sale investments and held-to-
maturity debt securities). Under
the “incurred loss” model, an
impairment loss was recognised
only when there was objective
evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of
impairment included:

- significant financial
difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract,
such as a default or
delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

- it becoming probable
that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (Continued)
(B) Policy applicable prior to 1

January 2018 (Continued)

- significant changes in the
technological, market,
economic or legal
environment that have
an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged
148 decline in the fair value
of an investment in an
equity instrument below
its cost.

If any such evidence existed, an
impairment loss was determined
and recognised as follows:

- For trade and other
receivables and other
financial assets carried
at amortised cost,
impairment loss was
measured as the
difference between the
asset’s carrying amount
and the present value
of estimated future
cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s
original effective interest
rate, where the effect of
discounting was material.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I RR M ()
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTEHXR®)
POLICIES (Continued)
(n) Credit losses and impairment of n) FEFEREEREE)
assets (Continued)
() Credit losses from financial () £@MIRE - EHEER
instruments, contract assets HEERREBEZEEE
and lease receivables (Continued) B(E)
(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 B RZE—NF—A

January 2018 (Continued)

This assessment was made
collectively where these financial
assets shared similar risk
characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and had not
been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which
were assessed for impairment
collectively were based on
historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the
amount of an impairment loss
decreased and the decrease
could be linked objectively
to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss
was reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss was only recognised
to the extent that it did not
result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which
would have been determined
had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial

instruments, contract assets

and lease receivables (Continued)

(B)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Policy applicable prior to 1
January 2018 (Continued)

When the recovery of a trade
debtor or other financial
assets carried at amortised
cost was considered doubtful
but not remote, associated
impairment losses were
recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group was
satisfied that recovery was
remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable was written off
against the gross carrying
amount of those assets directly.
Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged
to the allowance account were
reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in
the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off
directly were recognised in profit
or loss.

Annual Report 2018

1

FESHBE®)

(n)

FEBEREERE#®)

(i)

SRMIE GHNEER

HERWREZEES
B#E)
B RZE—NF—AH

— B A#E A R B R
(&)

fid 3t A B 35 A AN 7))
R O B W AR AR S
fib & B0 & & 1 A
B 1% 3% 3B % B A TR
e OIS G
o RIA BE AR E
BRERLEERA
BRe MEBERR
Yo Bl 14 - H
A48 2 1 AT [El &Y
THEERRZTE
E B AR T 42 18 i
3o SRR AR
RE RN ERME
& U m o H R R
AR PEE - BiE
RHMEMmEH LA
1% U [B] 5% AT B 5% M
HH 2 BEHNER
RER ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I RR M ()
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESHEBER®)
POLICIES (Continued)
(n) Credit losses and impairment of (n) GEBEREEREE)
assets (Continued)
() Credit losses from financial ) £=®MIE EHNEER
instruments, contract assets HERRREBBZEERE
and lease receivables (Continued) B#E)

For available-for-
sale investments, the
cumulative loss that
had been recognised
in the fair value
reserve (recycling) was
reclassified to profit
or loss. The amount
of the cumulative loss
that was recognised in
profit or loss was the
difference between the
acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment
and amortisation) and
current fair value, less
any impairment loss on
that asset previously
recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses
recognised in profit
or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity
securities were not
reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value
of such assets was
recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial

instruments, contract assets

and lease receivables (Continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1
January 2018 (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised
in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale debt securities
were reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value could be
objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised. Reversals
impairment losses in such
circumstances were recognised
in profit or loss.

(ii) Credit losses from financial
guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee
(the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(ii)

Credit losses from financial
guarantees issued (Continued)
Financial guarantees issued are
initially recognised within “trade and
other payables” at fair value, which
is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction
for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the
actual rates charged by lenders when
the guarantee is made available with
the estimated rates that lenders would
have charged, had the guarantees
not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the
amount initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as
income from financial guarantees
issued.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial
guarantees issued (Continued)

A)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Policy applicable from 1 January
2018

The Group monitors the risk that
the specified debtor will default
on the contract and recognises
a provision when ECLs on
the financial guarantees are
determined to be higher than
the amount carried in “trade
and other payables” in respect
of the guarantees (i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group
considers changes in the risk
of default of the specified
debtor since the issuance of the
guarantee. A 12-month ECL is
measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default
has increased significantly since
the guarantee is issued, in which
case a lifetime ECL is measured.
The same definition of default
and the same assessment of
significant increase in credit
risk as described in note 1(n)(i)

apply.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial
guarantees issued (Continued)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

As the Group is required to make
payments only in the event of a
default by the specified debtor in
accordance with the terms of the
instrument that is guaranteed, an
ECL is estimated based on the
expected payments to reimburse
the holder for a credit loss that
it incurs less any amount that
the Group expects to receive
from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any
other party. The amount is then
discounted using the current
risk-free rate adjusted for risks
specific to the cash flows.

Policy applicable prior to 1
January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, a
provision would be recognised
if and when it became probable
that (i) the holder of the
guarantee would call upon the
Group under the guarantee
and (ii) the amount of the claim
on the Group was expected to
exceed the amount carried in
“trade and other payables” in
respect of the guarantee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(iii)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Impairment of other non-
current assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

investment property;

- other property, plant and
equipment (other than properties
carried at revalued amounts);

- pre-paid interests in leasehold
land classified as being held
under an operating lease;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries and
associate in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(iii)

Impairment of other non-
current assets (Continued)
Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)
(iii) Impairment of other non-
current assets (Continued)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Recognition of impairment
losses

An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-
current assets (Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

FESHBE®)

FEBEREERE#®)

(iii) HiIFERBEERE
()
- B R

MEENINNEE
msE - WANAEE
A] Y B & B fib 5T
HIREFES) B
REBES TR
18 7% 2 #Y Rl 18 &5 18
Term -

1 [ 1 R {E R 1R A
EREFEYEE
RBEEENER
TREBENEE
REHESR - &M
H) R &5 18 T A T
R E ) FE AR
UNiEal

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A

159



160

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(iv)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect of
the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 1(n)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill
are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no
loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim
period relates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all costs
of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(q)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see
note 1(x)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In
such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 1(q)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration
is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost

using the effective interest method less
allowance for credit losses (see note 1(n)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured
initially at fair value less transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 1(2)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance,
with policy set out in note 1(n)(j).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B= 1715 E )

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

P UAREST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits
and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid
annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Contributions to appropriate local
defined contribution retirement
schemes pursuant to the relevant
labour rules and regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted
to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the binomial option
pricing model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments
(Continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected
to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss
for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of
options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it
is included in the amount recognised in
share capital for the shares issued) or
the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
at the earlier of when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

v)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on
the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

v)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal
of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

v)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and
are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Group intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority
on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities,
which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B= 1715 E )

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

P UAREST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Provisions and contingent

(x)

liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods, the
provision of services or the use by others of
Group's assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Revenue and other income
(Continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customers, or the lessee has the right to
use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition polices are as
follows:

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the
customer accepts and takes the
control of the products. Revenue
represented the sales value of goods
sold less returns, discounts, rebates
and value added tax (“VAT”).

In the comparative period, revenue
from sales of goods was recognised
when the customer had accepted the
related risks and rewards of ownership.

(i) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset.
For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e.gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 1(n)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Revenue and other income
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

E-commerce service income
E-commerce service income is
recognised when the consigned
goods from distributors sold through
the Group’s online shops are took
possession and accepted by end
customers.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised
in the statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised
as revenue in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same year
in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for
the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised
in profit or loss over the useful lives
of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Unconditional discretionary government
grants from the local municipal
government authorities are recognised
in the profit or loss as other revenue
when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(v)

Revenue and other income
(Continued)

(v) Rental income from

operating leases

Rental income receivable under
operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during
the year are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated, of
fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling of dates, the fair value
was measured.

The results of operations outside mainland
China are translated into Renminbi at the
average exchange rates for the year which
approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are
translated into Renminbi at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside mainland
China, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

(aa)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of
the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Research and development

Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the year
in which it is incurred. Expenditure on
development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to
complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the cost of materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Other development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the year which it
is incurred.

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(bb) Related parties

(@)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

M

(i)

)

has control or joint control over
the Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

()

(i)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or
joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures
of the same third party.

Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(bb) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(iv)

(i)

(viil)

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified
in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

The entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B= 171 &)
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1 FESTTEHER®E)
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(iv)

(vii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(cc) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
statements provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

The Group operates in a single segment of
sale of menswear goods. Accordingly, no
segmental analysis is presented.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are the sale of
menswear and related accessories in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). Revenue represents
the sales value of goods sold less returns, discounts
and value added taxes.

Disaggregation of revenue by sales channels is as
follows:

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

i

AEEZ EREH /NP EARLME
(B ) sHE S K KRR MM - Wasir
EmmEEBERERE - T IEE
i o

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2018 2017
—E_N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
Online shops R E 430,481 283,169
Offline shops N
Wholesales HeE 309,812 328,560
Consignment (A i=! 535,853 508,722
Self-owned =l 1,431 42,263
847,096 879,545
Less: Products repurchased W RRIEERS
for consignment business fBEEMR (4,104) (73,608)
Net Revenue FUE 1,273,473 1,089,106

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group had two (2017: three) customers with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue. The amount of sales to these customers
during the year ended 31 December 2018 was
RMB269,814,000 (2017: RMB358,045,000). Details
of concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in note 27(a).

HE T \E+-_A=+—HILF
E AEBERG(ZE—+F: =4)
BEFHRZHBEHAEBERZEMN10% °
Hz_=2—N\F+=-A=+—81
FERNZEEFPHNHEEEAARK
269,814,000 c(—ZF —+tF : AR®
358,045,0007T) - EZERFFIEE
HEREERBFFEHNMITE27() °

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I RR ML ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

3 OTHERINCOME 3 HigA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®ET T
Interest income MEMA 14,775 13,515
Government grants (i) BT BN (i) 34,973 13,909
Rental income from investment & % & WA (i)
property (ii) 2,634 -
Depreciation of investment KREMFEITE
property (1,607) -
Net gain on sale of promotion HEHE RER
and display materials MARE) F U 1,084 1,347
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain ~ 4ME (E518) /Ua 25 /58 (6,322) 9,089
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of HEWE - BE&KRED
property, plant and equipment Uz (&8 ) E58 1,362 (3,236)
Net fair value gain on financial BT ERT ABERAY
assets at fair value through TRIEERN N TE
profit or loss S 846 2,323
Investment income on AEHESRIEED
available-for-sale financial FEWRA
assets - 234
Others HA 10,355 5,605
180
58,100 42786
Notes: Htat -
0] Government grants in the years ended 31 December 0] REBEE-TZ—tFER=T—)\F+=A

(i)

2017 and 2018 represented unconditional cash awards

granted by government authorities.

Total future minimum lease payments receivable by the (ii)

Group:

Total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in place at the reporting
date will be receivable by the Group in the future periods
are as follows:

=+ — R IFEORTHEBEERTBPIR

T EVEIFITR S 52E -

REE YA R R EEEE R RAEER

R¥fE B HAEEO TR EEEERK
REEENFERES A ARRERIATARRK

HARJ R

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

within 1 year —FR 3,677 -
After 1 year but with 5 year —FRERAFA 11,950 -
After 5 year hFE - -
15,627 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

(a)

Finance costs

Interest on bank
borrowings and
discounting of

BB R A

RITERAE R

RITAGELEIRRRIR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BBITIERESS » UAARKEST)

B Y4

A i A
BEAEFID IR

2018
—B-N\F

RMB’000
ARBTR

2017
Tt
RMB’000
ARET T

bank acceptance bills 19,891 16,555
(b) Staff costs BIRA&

Contributions to defined REHFRIRETE

contribution retirement R (FIEE24)

plans (note 24) 5,763 5,158
Equity settled share-based 1z 4EE AR &

payment expenses EMmN R

(note 25) (M97%25) 1,167 360
Termination benefits BEREF 4,206 3,826
Salaries, wages and other & ~ TE& MEMEF

benefits 73,821 70,412

84,957 79,756
ZE-N\FFER FEREFERLA A

181



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 4 BRFATER (@)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRBLATRFIE 0B (T A)
(crediting):
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
(c) Otheritems Hitig g
Amortisation s
— land lease premium - THHEER 501 501
- intangible assets -BmEEE 6,162 5,313
Depreciation e 8,126 11,805
Provision for/(Reversal of)  JB{EE1E
impairment losses s, (B8)
— trade and - B 5 R HAEWKRIE
other receivables 661 (18,957)
182 Operating lease charges BRI
in respect of properties HEEA
— minimum lease - EAERK
payments 9,714 18,256
— contingent rentals - BHE 224 5,503
Auditors’ remuneration Gl 3,443 3,241
Research and B 25 AR (ii)
development cost (i) 24,300 27,224
Cost of inventories (i) 158 B (i)
(note 17(b)) (MI3E17(0)) 736,740 585,327

Notes: Btat -

(i) The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at (i) AEEER-_Z—N\F—A—HEKEAR
1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, 30 % B 75 R 5 E B 25 15 5% I BB B 7% 3R
comparative information is not restated. see note 1(c). HAERIFE QTR o IRIBFTIRIBRBIE T E

WSS LLERE R - 2RMFE1(C) °

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2018, research and (i) HE-ZT-N\F+-_A=+—HIFE "
development costs include staff costs of employees in R A D R B ERAT ~ FFFE REAEEEM
the design, research and development department of EEMBINAARK 13,407,000 (=
RMB13,407,000 (2017: RMB17,961,000) which are T—+F: AR¥17,961,0007T) * B
included in the staff costs as disclosed in note 4(b). SREET MG 4(0) TR TR B TRARA -

(il Cost of inventories includes carrying amount of (il FERABREEFENREERTFEM
inventories sold and write down of inventories. o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

INCOME TAX IN THE 5
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(@) Income tax in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income

represents:

ReBAsRkEMEZERKERT
KR EH

mERERHEMEEKER
RSB

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR®ET T
Current tax BIHA® 18
PRC Corporate FR B T S PTIS A (iif)

Income Tax (iii) 84,936 59,847
Hong Kong Profits Tax (i) ~ &&FISH (ii) 28 682
Under-provision BEFENRETR

in respect of prior years 43 1,417
PRC withholding tax FR B TE AR

— dividend (iv) - BB (iv) 8,500 7,400

— others - Hi 1,902 401

95,409 69,747
Deferred tax ELEBE
Origination and reversal &4 & 8 [0 BT R 1
of temporary =58 (fIrE 16(0)
differences (note 16(b)) (14,701) 11,821
80,708 81,568
Notes: Biat -

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

(ii) For the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017, the provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax was calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, taking into
account a reduction granted by the Hong
Kong SAR Government of 756% of the tax
payable for the year of assessment 2017-18
subject to maximum reduction of $30,000 for
each business (2017: a maximum reduction of
$20,000 was granted for the year of assessment
2016-17 and was taken into account in
calculating the provision for 2017).

—_ZF—

BEFRESHERAERLES
((HBEZES]) WKL FOR
B AEEHBABMRESRER
REELZRSNERMAEH -

HE-_Z—\FR-_ZT—+F
TZA=Z+—HILFE  &FF
BREBEERTRMETERTER
B16.5%ETE + & REBRE
BEFE#R-E—tE— \FHE
ERHORR  BEMSEERS
TRIER) 75% + S=m %R 30,0007
T(ZE—tEF T —RZE
—HFF EE &5 20,0008
THREYEEHE T —+tF
MBS RT &) ©

NEER FEREHFRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

5

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

INCOME TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income
represents: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

The statutory income tax rate applicable to
the Company’s subsidiaries in the mainland
China is 25% for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: 25%), except a newly set-up
subsidiary which was registered in Xinjiang
Uygur Autonomous Region Khorgos Economic
Development Zone and entitled to a 5-year
income tax exemption from the first year that it
generates its operating income.

According to the Corporate Income Tax Law and
its implementation rules, dividends receivable
by non-PRC corporate residents from PRC
enterprises are subject to withholding tax at
a rate of 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties
or arrangements, for profits earned since 1
January 2008. In addition, under the Sino-Hong
Kong Double Tax Arrangement and its relevant
regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident
will be liable for withholding tax at the rate of 5%
for dividend income derived from the PRC if the
Hong Kong tax resident is the “beneficial owner”
and holds 25% or more of the equity interests of
the PRC company. Deferred tax liabilities have
been provided for in this regard based on the
expected dividends to be distributed from these
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future in respect
of the profits generated since 1 January 2008.
The Group adopted 5% withholding tax rate for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (before 5
August 2017: 10%, since 5 August 2017: 5%).

Dividend withholding tax represents tax
charged by the PRC tax authority and dividend
distributed by the Group and subsidiary in the
mainland China during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

meEakEMEZEKERS
HPATER (&)

INCOME TAX IN THE 5
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax (b)
expense and accounting profit at
applicable tax rates:

BRI X RIRE AR E
M EHEF AR :

2018 2017

—®-N\F  —E—t%

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AR¥EFIT

Profit before taxation BRA AT A 290,951 284,781
Notional tax on profit HEANSHBER

before taxation, EER KT E R

calculated at the B B AT g A1) A

standard tax rates HEDIA

applicable to the

respective tax

jurisdictions 72,693 71,834
Effect of non-deductible AT HIFE S U2 &

expenses 1,007 2,369
Effect of non-taxable BARMARFE

income (642) (401)
Effect of tax losses not RERTIBEENZE

recognised 3,672 1,879
Statutory tax concession  JEEFRIEEE - (1,966)
Under-provision BEFER

in prior years BETE 43 1,417
PRC dividend A B AR B TR AR

withholding tax (MfzE16(0))

(Note 16(b)) 1,748 6,543
Other withholding tax H A B 1,902 401
Others HAm 285 (508)
Actual tax expense BERMIER 80,708 81,568

ZE-N\FFER FEREFERLA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

6 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 6 EEHM
The details of directors’ emoluments are disclosed EEFMFBREOT ¢
as follows:
Salaries, Equity-settied
allowances Retirement share-hased
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary ~ scheme payments
fee inkind  bonuses contributions  Sub-total (note ii)
R
¢ B
BER UG gEf% —B-N\F
ESHe  BURA  BRRA 3 Nt (W) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AT ARMTR AR%Tn AR%Tn AR%Tn ARETn ARETx
Executive directors yrEE
M. Ziming Yang RERLE - 16 - 2% 4 - 4
Mr. Siu Keung Ng Rb#E%E 143 299 - 54 49 37 533
— Mr. Rongain Ke R E 165 158 - 45 368 153 521
Mr. Qiang Wei () ZBEE) 64 56 - 15 135 - 135
186 ’
Independent BUkuTEs
non-executive directors
M. Yung Kiwok Toui Gy 307 - - - 307 - 307
Mr. Honghui Chen RRBEE 307 - - - 307 - 307
Mr. Ming Shu Leung PERE 307 - - - 307 - 307
Total @t 1,293 529 - 139 1,961 190 2,151

Cabbeen Fashion Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 6

(Continued)

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Salaries,
allowances
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary

fee in kind bonuses  contributions

iz
RMB000

E5id

RMB'000  RMB'000

Retirement

RMB'000

(BBITIERESS » UAARKEST)

BEEHM @

Equity-settled
share-based
scheme payments
Sub-total (note i)

AR A

RIRGHE
RMB'000

RMB'000
ARETR ARETn ARMTR ARETT ARBTT ARMTR ARMTR

RMB'000

Executive directors UnEs
Mr. Ziming Yang FEREE - 16 - 15 31 - 31
Mr. Siu Keung Ng RPuLE 138 247 47 37 469 - 469
M. Ronggin Ke MBS 172 189 53 2 443 3 476
Mr. Qiang Wei R 168 145 42 22 377 - 377
Independent BUkdnER
non-executive directors
M. Yung Kwok Tsui BAERE 3 - - - 31 - 3
M. Honghui Chen RLBLE 281 - - - 281 - 281
M. Ming Shu Leung PBSEE 311 - - - 311 - 311
Total @t 1,381 597 142 103 2,223 33 2,256
Notes: BT
0] Mr. Qiang Wei resigned as an executive director with 0] EREERB T/ \FRA T LAEE
effect from 19 May 2018. EMITES -
(i) These represent the estimated value of share options (i) ZECREBRBEARQG ZERETEIRE

granted to the directors under the Company’s share
option schemes. The value of these share options is
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies
for share based payment transactions as set out in note

1(u)i).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted, are
disclosed under the paragraph “Share Option Schemes”

in Report of The Directors and note 25.

FROWEREOMGHEER - ZSBE
BB (B TYARHR P 5 1 (u)(ii) P78 7 5 [ 3 A
B BERN AR ZOEHBERMAE

ZEBVEMNFE  RIEEEERLAE
LB ES B RN ES SRS [ EREE)
—B RHisE 25 EE -

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A

187



188

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

7 INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST 7
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
2 (2017: none) are directors whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 6 above. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining individuals
are as follows:

REFHMAL

TEERTMATHBREREES(Z
T—t+F &) RERIFMN XXM
EOHEEE o AT ERIA T HE B A EE L
B

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETT

Salaries and other emoluments ¥ & Fz E 4t 5 A 2,834 3,949

Contributions to retirement RIREFET B

benefit scheme 86 74

Discretionary bonus BB TEAL - 871
Equity settled share-based VARS {7 2 EE T B i e

payments HEENR 343 60

3,263 4,954

The emoluments of the three (2017: five) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following

=R (ZE—tF AR BReFMAL
HYFE BT T RS EE

bands:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —FT—+F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A8
HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000 500,000t & 1,000,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 %702 1,500,000 % 7T
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /%71 % 2,000,000 7T 1 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

8 EARNINGS PER SHARE 8 BREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) SBREXREBEF

The calculation of basic earnings per share BIREAXRBRNITIAKRRRE B
is based on the profit attributable to ordinary BamFB AEG R )SZ FNKN
equity shareholders of the Company and the MEZETETBARME TS
weighted average number of 668,157,000 668,157,000 % ( = T — + F :
ordinary shares (2017: 689,547,000) in issue 689,547,000 % ) & & £z & W
during the year, calculated as follows: N
Weighted average number of ordinary EERMETHE
shares

Issued ordinary shares at  H—H—HWEETEBER

1 January 667,264 711,478
Effect of share options IIPEREN TR

exercised (note 26(c)(iii) (FF5E 26(c)(iii)) 893 244
Effect of shares BERNIE

repurchased (M 5E 26(c)i))

(note 26(c)(ii) - (22,175)

Weighted average number A+ —A=+—HH
of ordinary shares ERARINAE 2
at 31 December 668,157 689,547

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

8 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 8 BREFE
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BRESRR
The calculation of diluted earnings per share BRESER AN T AR A 7 E R
is based on the profit attributable to ordinary A ARG R & mAR Ntk
equity shareholders of the Company and the 15 £1668,907,000 A% ( = ZF—+
weighted average number of ordinary shares F 1 690,042,000% ) AEEFE
of 668,907,000 shares (2017: 690,042,000), N

calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary EZERMETL S (E5E)
shares (diluted)

- = Weighted average number A+ —-A=+—H

of ordinary shares B 3 R N S B
190 at 31 December 668,157 689,547
S— Effect of deemed issue of  RIEIRIEAN A R R

shares under the NEREBHITROZE

Company’s share option  (Fff{z£25)
scheme for nil
consideration (note 25) 750 495

Weighted average number A+—-HA=+—H
of ordinary shares B 3 R N T B
(diluted) at 31 December  (#5%) 668,907 690,042

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Cost:
At 1 January 2017
Reclassification from other property

9

RMB’000
ARBETTT

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

REW=R

BA

N —_
i
AT

—tF—HA—H -

BEMYE - BE&

plant and equipment HBEEFOLE 42,990
_At31December20tg R=F-N\FT=A=t-H 42,990

Accumulated depreciation: ZIHE .
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H -
Reclassification from other property BEMME  BEK

plant and equipment HBEEFOLE 1,776
Charge for the year FRNMR 1,607
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-—N\F+=_A=+—H 3,383
Net book value: BRMEFE -
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—-NF+ZA=+—H 39,607
At 31 December 2017 RZZB—+F+-_A=+—H -

Investment property of the Group is situated in the
PRC.

Assets leased out under operating
leases

The Group leases out an investment property under
operating leases. The lease typically runs for an
initial period of 5 years, with an option to renew
the lease after that date at which time all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased
every 5 years to reflect market rentals. The lease
does not include contingent rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of investment
property are classified as investment property.

Included in investment property, property of
RMB39,607,000 (2017: nil) is held under operating
leases that would otherwise meet the definition of
investment property. The carrying amount of the
investment property was not materially different from
its fair value as at 31 December 2018.

AREBENREMERLNPE -

REHERMEHNEE

AEBBREGCEHERHREDE - A
EMVIETFEBERERSTF - HiER
BIBETAY  BRATEIEEENRE
e HENKBEERF LFH—AUK
MmiSHE - MEXTEERAEE -

REEHRER N HBENRENERITH
BREVNEERENERREDE -

REMEBESEHER TRERTHR
EREYETREN AR 39,607,000 7T
ZE—+F E)NYWE - RZZE—N
¢+—H =+—H REMEHEEEB
EENFERALTESERAER -

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

10 OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND 10 HiY%¥ - BEKRRE
EQUIPMENT
Furniture,
Leasehold  Plant and Motor fixturesand Construction
improvements  machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
G £E
AENEEE REREE A& Rkl ERIR s
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBIOOO
ARETL ARETR ARETR BTt ARETR ARETR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2017 R-E-+%-F-H 37,067 1,406 11,321 26,078 38,002 113874
Addtions e 888 7% 33 439 07,403 33530
Disposals hE (11,307) - (294) (476) - (12,077)
Transfer ?’:ﬁ;% 1,730 40,851 - 24 (42,605) -
Exchange adjustment 5 A2 (20) - (107) (16) - (143
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+E+-A=1-H
and 1 January 2018 R=F-N\E-F-H 08,358 43,053 10953 30,002 280 135186
Addtions AE 4 6,186 303 1252 07,567 38,054
B— Disposals & (4,784 (4458) (150) (1813) - (11,209)
192 Transfer k1 2,761 33,183 - - (35,044) -
Reclassffication o BMNEERENE
investment property - 42,990) - - - (42,990)
Fxchange adjustment [EJBE 14 - 76 119 - 209
 At31 December 2018 REB-NFT2A=t-B 6305 4074 14082 29860 1443 119454
Accumulated depreciation: i1 -
At 1 January 2017 R-F-+F-P-H 24,142 814 9,818 21,579 - 56,353
Charge for the year Fil 6,592 1941 220 3052 - 11805
Witten back on disposals Hifs%@ (5:371) (184) i (330) - (5.968)
Fxchange adjustment BN A% 20) - (48) (12) - 80)
At 31 Decernber 2017 RZE—+F+ZA=1-H
and 1 January 2018 R=Z-\F-F-H 05,343 2571 9913 24,083 - 62,110
Charge for the year FRi 1935 1693 28 2659 - 6,519
Wiitien back on disposals ~ HiE & (4.457) (616) (96) (1,652) - (6,821)
Reclessification o ENNEERENE
investment property - (1,776) - - - (1,776)
Fxchange adjustment EEEE 14 - 1 21 - %
_ At31December2018 REF-NETAZT-B 28% 1812 10110 ¢ 31 - 60,128 _
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\E+-f=t-H 3560 33,10 3972 449 14443 59,306
At 31 December 2017 i i i 3015 40,482 1,040 5719 22,820 73,076

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

11 INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND 11 KEHETHEEAZEEL
HELD FOR OWN USE UNDER Mz REES
OPERATING LEASES

RMB’000
AREFTE

Cost: B
At 1 January 2017 RZET—+F—H—H 23,400
Additions NE 494
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+F+—_A=+—HK

1 January 2018 —ET-N\F—H—H 23,894
Additions NE _
At 31 December 2018 R—ZE—N\F+=-_A=+—H 23,894

Accumulated amortisation: e - —

At 1 January 2017 R-_ZE—tF—H—H 81 198
Charge for the year FRHIBR 501 -
At 31 December 2017 R_ZE—+F+_A=+—H 582

Charge for the year FRHBR 501

At 31 December 2018 R_ZE-N\F+_A=+—H 1,083

Net book value: BRIEFHE -

At 31 December 2018 W_ZE—)\F+_A=+—H 22,811

At 31 December 2017 R_ZE—t+F+_A=+—H 23,312

Interests in leasehold land held for own use under KEHETHIFERZHEET 2 s
operating leases represented the Group’s land use BASEMRF B BE iz T
rights on leasehold land located in the PRC. FAHE -
At 31 December 2018, the remaining useful life of RZE—N\F+_A=+—H  LifF
the land use rights was 46 years (2017: 47 years). R FRFERFHA46F(ZE—+

F4TF)

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

Computer
software Others Total
EiEH Hith et
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT ARKETT
Cost: RS
At 1 January 2017 R-_ZF—+F—H—H 48,788 9,050 57,838
Addition NE 10,698 - 10,698
Disposals & (17) - (17)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZT—+F
and 1 January 2018 +=-A=+—HK
—FT—-N\F—H—H 59,469 9,050 68,519
Additions NE 3,612 - 3,612
Disposals e (320) - (320)
—_ At 31 December 2018 R-ZT—/\4F
+=—A=+—H 62,761 9,050 71,811
104 |
Accumulated Rt
amortisation:
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+F—H—H 20,753 2,237 22,990
Charge for the year FRMER 5,313 - 5,313
Written back A E R D
on disposals @) - @)
At 31 December 2017 HR-ZT—+4F
and 1 January 2018 +ZA=+—HK
—F—-N\F—H—H 26,064 2,237 28,301
Charge for the year FRNMkR 6,162 - 6,162
Written back R ER D
on disposals (45) - (45)
At 31 December 2018 MR =ZT— \F
+=-A=+—H 32,181 2,237 34,418
Net book value: AREDFE
At 31 December 2018 R =T — )\4F
+=—HA=+—H 30,580 6,813 37,393
At 31 December 2017 R-ZT—+F
+=—HA=+—H 33,405 6,813 40,218

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

12 |BLEE
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13.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The amortisation charge of intangible assets for
the year is included in “administrative and other
operating expenses” and “selling and distribution
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Particulars of the associate which is an unlisted
domestic enterprise in the PRC whose quoted
market price is not available:

Particulars of

issued and paid

Name of associate up capital

ERTRE

BenAER BRERHE

Guangzhou Huazhi RMB100,000,000

Investments Co,, Ltd. AR%100,000,0007C
(*Huazhi Investments')* (note)

BNEERABRAT
(FZ8RE ) ()

12

13

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

BIEEE (&)
FERNEREESBEER Y A GAE%
REMEERATE T [THEEM
BRI | R (RS ] -

R—EBE QR ER
ZHMEDE (A—BREE ETHEAR
% ATISHELTAR) HFENT -

Proportion of ownership interest

Group’s

effective

interest
AREW
ERER

33%

BRERELA
Held by the Held by a
Company subsidiary Principal activity
it
rAfEE  MAfRE IEED
- 33% Properties construction
ISt

* The English translation of the Company name is for
reference only. The official name of the Company is in
Chinese.

Note: The associate is accounted for using the equity method
in the consolidated financial statements. Summarised
financial information of the associate, adjusted for
any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled
to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed below:

Y RAEEREEERRFERER - EXNE T
ARBREAHI
MIEE : B RREREREER S MERE

MARR o & R RINIMEE R EIME
HEASARRERAR - AEESTTE
R ABRE (EETTHRRIR R BRI T

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

13. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 13 R—REEE ATINER (8)

RMB’000
ARBT T

Gross amounts of the associate  Et& A RIHIAASEE

Current assets MENE EE 253,022
Non-current assets IEMENEE 3
Current liabilities VNN (136,611)
Non-current liabilities EmEBIE -
Equity P HE 116,414
Revenue Wiz -
Loss for the year FNEE (686)
Total comprehensive income 2HEWALERE (686)
Reconciled to the Group’s EAZRES BB R A R R H R
interests in the associate
Gross amounts of net assets g NAEEFEERE
of the associate 116,414
196 Group’s effective interest AEBENERER 33%
| Group’s share of net assets AEEELBEAREEFE
of the associate 38,417
Goodwill i 10,932
Carrying amount in the WiRE R AR BREE
consolidated financial
statements 49,349

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 RHBARNKRE

The following list contains only the particulars of THREHINEAEEFEE EEHEBE
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, BERZENMBRARFE -BREEE
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares BASN - FTIER D B E AR -

held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

L 1 A
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation issued and effective Held by the Held by the
Name of company and business  paid up capital interest Company subsidiaries Principal activities
AR EBR AREN NG HEAR

ARER XY BREAGHE ERiEs fis® fisE  IEED

Cabbegn Clothing China PRC HK$50,000,000 100% - 100% Wholesale of menswear
Co,, Lid* (note) hE 50,000,000/7 HEZR
(‘Cabbeen China)

RE R (PE) BRAR (M)

([~EhE))

Guangzhou Cabbeen Clothing PRC HK$20,000,000 100% - 100% Wholesale of menswear
Co., Ltd." (note) hE 20,000,007 HEBR

BT SEREARAT (W)

Quanzhou Mijie Electronic PRC Nil 100% - 100% Wholesale of menswear
Commerce Co., Ltd.* (note) hE ES HESR

SHTEREFERARAT(H)

Guangzhou Zixi Enterprise PRC HK$8,000,000 100% - 100% Trademark holding and
Management Co,, Ltd. el 8,000,007 retall of menswear
(note) AERERFRTE

BATZEARERARAT
(HfzE)

Guangzhou Cabbeen Clothing PRC RMB6,000,000 100% - 100% Onling sales of menswear
Trading Co., Ltd.” hE ARE6,000,0007C EEERHE

BIFERHESERAA

Guangzhou Huazhi PRC RMB65,000,000 60.6% - 60.6% Real estate development
Developmen t Co, Lt i AR 65,000,0007C FHERE

RNEEEXERARAT

Niujiaoling Real Estate PRC RMB65,000,000 60.6% - 60.6% Real estate development
(Guangzhou) Co, Lid* ote) R ARH65,000,0007 EHERE

T (R ERATI (R

Note: These are wholly foreign-owned enterprises in the PRC. Biet : 2SRRI ATREINGBERE -

*

The English translation of the companies’ names is for
reference only. The official names of these companies are
in Chinese.

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14

(Continued)

The following table lists out the information relating
to Niujiaoling Real Estate (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. and
Guangzhou Huazhi Development Co., Ltd. (“Huazhi
Development”), the two subsidiaries of the Group
which have material non—controlling interest (NCI).
The summarised financial information presented
below represents the amounts before any inter—
company elimination.

Niujiaoling Real Estate (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd.:

RBATNERE (@)

TREJIEHETAEER (BN ERA
ANEMNEERERERERAR] ([
HR]) (REEWEREAERIFERE
wmZ MBRE) 2EFR - THIMBER
MERHR A QR AT 2 &5

FaEaEXR (RN ARAR

NCI percentage

Current assets

Non—current assets

Current liabilities

Non—current liabilities

Net assets

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

(Loss)/profit for the year
Total comprehensive income
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI

Dividend paid to NCI

Cash flows from operating

activities

Cash flows from investing

activities

Cash flows from financing

activities

IR B AL

MBEE
FRBEE
mBAE
FRBEE
BEFE
IR R EE

Yo zm
FR(E1E) SRR
EHE AR
DECE IR
2 (E18) |
IR T IR Bt s 2 BB

RERPAR/RTRE
KREZPFHRTRE

RERDAFRERE

39.4% 39.4%
64,973 5,215
- 64,118
2 (922)
64,971 68,411
25,599 26,954
(3,440) 3,411
(3,440) 3,411
(1,355) 1,344
2 (34)
- (65,840)
- 65,930

Cabbeen Fashion Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14

(Continued)

Huazhi Development:

(B B77#585& 5 - AN EEZR)
RHB A RIMIRE (&)

EFEHR

2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
Fr
NCI percentage TR ER A L 39.4%
Current assets MENEE 47,984
Non-current assets ERBEE 49,810
Current liabilities mREBEE (32,003)
Non-current liabilities EmEBAE -
Net assets BEFE 65,791
Carrying amount of NCI SRR SR EE 25,922
Revenue Wz -
Loss for the year FREIE (209)
Total comprehensive income EHEWEERE (209)
Loss allocated to NCI DB E TR R 2 B8 (82)
Dividend paid to NCI AT T SRR AR 2R 2 AR B -
Cash flows from operating KEESEReRE
activities (16)
Cash flows from investing REEHFFRERE
activities (97,840)
Cash flows from financing BMEEFABRENE
activities 98,000
B EEH | FRBHERLT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

15.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

OTHER LOANS RECEIVABLE

Other loan receivables as at 31 December 2017
consisted of two loans. One of the loans was a loan
to a third party with face value of RMB15,840,000
and bears an interest at 30% above PBOC base
interest rate and is repayable by July 2019.
The second loan receivable as at 31 December
2017 was an additional loan with face value of
RMB50,000,000, which was interest free and
carried a conversion option to acquire 33% equity
interest in a company (the “Huazhi Investments”,
see note 13) holding a piece of land in Guangzhou
City, the PRC. Conversion option would be lapsed
by July 2019 should the conversion criteria are not
met and the loan would become due and payable.
Both loans were guaranteed by the third party’s
50% equity interest in Huazhi Investments. Loans
receivable were recorded at amortized cost as non-
current other loans receivable while the conversion
options was recorded as other financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss as at 31 December
2017. In August 2018, the Group received the
repayment of other loans receivable amounted to
RMB65,840,000 from the third party, and invested
in Huazhi Investments via the newly established
subsidiary, Huazhi Development (Notes 13 and 14).

Annual Report 2018
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HbEWER
R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—HEEMmE
WERBEMBER - B —BERTY

BRY-—HEE=ZFNEF FAEAAR
#515,840,000 T R iEHF B A RIBITE
EFE FIZ30%TEBLER TN
F+AREE - RZ_ET—+F+_A
—t+—HNE_BERKERA—EEA
BA A R# 50,000,000 TTHIFIEE K -
HARBUWAKE —HFEE —iEPH
BN A AR ([EZRE ] B
7T 13) 33% R A IR - HARTTFE
BIZERZERE R EEE  ZER
EER-_ZE—NFLtAKK - ZMEBEE
B = HRELILE R 50% AR EIEE
ReRZFE—+tF+=-A=+—8" &
WESRTIRBER AR AIERE EM
JEWE K - s ARSI Ak A FE
AABSZHEMERMEE - NZF—N
FNR AEEBBF=ZFRBARKE
65,840,000 STLHY EL A FEE FUE SR - W0
BRI LOMB AT ESERIRER
ERRE (13 % 14) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

(b)

Current taxation in the
consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

16

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BBITIERESS » UAARKEST)

eV BAARRRABEHR

(a)

wRE B HEIR R 2 A A9 BN EA R
HiE -

2018 2017
—EB-N\EF —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
PRC Corporate Income Tax * Bl 1R P57 34,084 19,293
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNEH 811 636
34,895 19,929

Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) CHEINELHBEBEERE

recognised: & :
() Movement of each component of () EZEBEEEREEN
deferred tax assets and liabilities BZE D2

The components of deferred tax
assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during
the year are as follows:

&R & B SRR &k R
EERBEE,/ (BRE)
BIAR R B o I A B a0
T

PRC dividend
withholding tax
relating to the
undistributed
profits of the
Inventory  Allowances for Accrued Unrealised  Company's PRC
Deferred tax arising from: provision  doubtful debts expenses profits ~ subsidiaries*
RRALT
L%
R
WPEBRELEERE FERE FERRA  PEREENG
RMB'000 RMB000
A1 Janvary 2017 RIE—rE-A-8 4583 3489 1008t 19683 (1577 26,209
Creditedcharged) to ith/ (he) B
oftorloss oe5) (i) 8439 (3469 (il (12312 &7 (11821
At 31 December 2017 R-E-tEr-fzt-8
and 1 January 2018 h=%-)\#-A-H 18022 - 4715 131 {10,720 14,388
Credited to proft AR
orloss fnote 5] (Fts) 2871 165 2743 2164 6752 14701
At 31 December 2018 “E-J\Et-A=1-A 15,899 165 7458 9,53 (3968) 29,089

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

16 INCOME TAX IN THE 16 SREMBRRIRANAES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF (&)
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) EEIANELEHEEERES
recognised: (Continued) &:#)
() Movement of each component of (i) EZEHEEEREEN

deferred tax assets and liabilities

(Continued)

* The amount included the provision
of withholding tax on profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to
RMB1,748,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: RMB6,543,000),
and the reversal of deferred tax liabilities
on withholding tax upon distribution of
dividends amounting to RMB8,500,000
during the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: RMB7,400,000).

202

(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated (ii)

statement of financial position

B BE (&)

ZeHeEREE=T
—N\F+ZA=+—H1t
FEZHEMEA T
EH BRI B E AR
1,748,000t ( —F — &
F: A R #6,543,000
L) RREEZZT—N
FHZA=+—HIFE
PR EEMTENBIEL &
BRI B EREARE
8,500,0007C( = F — +
F: A R ¥7,400,000
JT) °

RE M HIRR R R

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Net deferred tax asset RERE BB R
recognised in the R IR
consolidated statement WMIEEEFE
of financial position 33,257 26,158
Net deferred tax liability RERE BB
recognised in the R IR
consolidated statement MIEBEFE
of financial position (4,168) (11,770)
29,089 14,388

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I RR M ()
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

INCOME TAX IN THE 16 ZEMBMRRERANFAEH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF (5&)

FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not (c) KRERWELZEHRIEEE
recognised
The Group did not recognise deferred tax REEW EIERE W@ E T B
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of BARIMBRHBEEBEEARK
certain PRC subsidiaries of RMB14,761,000 14,761,000 (ZF—+EF : A
(2017: RMB9,408,000), which will expire in X 9,408,000 7T ) B9 iE iE 7% 18
five years under the current tax legislation. BE EEBROHEETERR
The tax effect on such tax losses has not Figlgme e ARNHEERBERET
been recognised as it is not probable that ARl e PO AR BT 542 1 B B FA LA
future taxable profits against which the losses HIH BB H) FEER TR N - B AR
can be utilised will be available in the relevant BREBAZEVEBENT B
tax jurisdiction and entity. 2.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not (d) RERWEZEHREEE

recognised

Deferred tax liabilities in respect of the PRC
dividend withholding tax relating to certain
undistributed profits of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries were not recognised as the
Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries. Based on the assessment
made by management as at the end of each
reporting period, it was determined that the
undistributed profits of RMB900,710,000
(2017: RMB708,785,000) of the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries would not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

W R EARF P BB AR
8 T AR 9 K& ) A B 89 AR
EEINNEEHIEEE  RA
BARNRIEGIZENEB A AR
BHBE - KBREBREBENSREH
EREEHOFE  BERATEARR
7] B KB A R R R 99 R s A A
R #900,710,000t( = & — &
F: AR¥ 708,785,000 7T) #
SRR RERDIK ©

—E-N\FER FEREHFRA A

203



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

17 INVENTORIES 17 &8
(@) Inventories in the consolidated () HEMBERRARNEEER
statement of financial position ¥

comprise:

2018 2017
—E-NF —F—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT R ARETTT

Raw materials R ¥ 22,373 12,582
Finished goods BIRK 361,205 324,470
383,578 337,052

(b) The analysis of the amount of
inventories recognised as an
expense and included in profit or
loss is as follows:

204

(b)

ERABMXLH ABENE
EEEAFWT :

2018
—E-N\F

RMB’000
AR®TR

2017
—E—tF
RMB’000
AREET T

Carrying amount of EHEFENREE
inventories sold 694,730 551,493
Write down of inventories 17 & U 42,010 33,834
736,740 585,327

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

18 EZRHMEWKIE

2018 2017

—E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBEFIT
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 363,867 334,017
Bills receivable e - 12,500
Less: Loss allowance B e (661) -
Trade and bills receivables E 5 WA & R 363,206 346,517
Prepayments to suppliers M FERE AN TR 124 7,414

Other deposits, prepayments Hipiz e - EAFEK

and receivables (Note) PR IE (B3E) 143,063 91,898
506,393 445,829

All of the current trade and other receivables are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense
within one year, except for the Group’s deposits of
RMB1,966,000 (2017: RMB2,201,000), which are
expected to be recovered after more than one year.

Note:

Included in other deposits, prepayment and receivable,
as at 31 December 2018:

(1) there are two loans with face value of RMB15,840,000
and RMB32,000,000 to Huazhi Investments which are
repayable by July 2019 and August 2019, respectively.
Both loans bear an interest at 30% above The People's
Bank of China (“PBOC”) base interest rate. The loans
were recorded at amortized cost as at 31 December
2018;

(2) there is one loan with face value of RMB 25,610,000
to one of the minority shareholders of the Group, which
was secured by above shareholder’s minority interest in
the Group’s subsidiary.

FTEBRVERE 5 & H fh FE UL IB TR BB
—FRKREIKERAEAY - HBEEER
MR- FREBNAEENEE AR
#1,066,000L( — T —+F: AR¥
2,201,000 7T) R

M RZE-NF+-A=+—-—HHNEMREK
& BNFAEREYFARLRE

MBETESREANEEEAARY
15,840,000 7T & A & # 32,000,000 7T £
WBEER  DRlER=ZE—NFLtAR=
E-NFNAEE MEEREPHA
RIBIT(THRBRAREIT]) EEFE LF
30%ETE c REERIR_T—\F+=
A=+—BREBHEKANE

OBEFAEE —BLHEREH—IEQAF
HEAARE25610,000THER - ThH
RN AR BT A A6 DB
FIHEAR -

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EZ N HEMEIFIE (&)

206

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(Continued)

The Group accepts bank acceptance bills from
major banks in the PRC for settlement of trade
debts. The management considered that the risk
of these bills relates substantially to credit risk.
Accordingly, when these bills were transferred
by either discounting or endorsement, they
were derecognised as a financial asset. At 31
December 2018, the Group transferred bank
acceptance bills totalling RMB257,030,000 (2017:
RMB293,280,000), and derecognised them as
financial assets. These bank acceptance bills will
mature six months from the date of issue.

(@) Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are
trade and bills receivable with the following
ageing analysis based on invoice date and
net of loss allowance as at 31 December
2018 and 2017 are as follows:

AEERGEEESEEEMTRRHEER
THORITRHLRER - BEEERRZER
BEHRkFZEHEERREH - ALt
EREEZBREBMANEEEER - Z
ZERDRIERAEREE - NZZ
—NF+ZA=+—H A£EEHE
EBEE A NR¥257,030,000L( —F
—+ & AR#293,280,0007T) A iR
TERRERE URIETERERERE
E o ZFRITAHER S EHITAEE
ET/NE A EER -

(@) HRERDHT
RZE-N\EFERZFT—+tF+=
A=+—HF# AE S kHAmEK
RIERE 5 WA R B R
Mk EBRERBEEZEAHN
BRERDATZAT

2018 2017

—E-\F —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Within 3 months =EANUA 292,839 254,317
More than 3 months but ~ =1& A LA_E7XE A AR

within 6 months 69,794 76,356

More than 6 months but ~ 7~MELA A E—F AR

within 1 year 573 15,814

More than 1 year —FLAE - 30

363,206 346,517

Trade and bills receivables are due within
180-270 days from the date of billing. Further
details on the Group’s credit policy are set
out in note 27(a).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EZ N EHMEWRIE &)

(Continued)
(b) Impairment of trade and bills (b) ESZEUREREVREEN
receivables R AE
The movement in the loss allowance for trade FAZE SRWIBEERES
receivables during the year is as follows: EJ O
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
At 1 January Rn—H—H - 13,957
Impairment loss R, (BE)REEIE 661 (13,957)
recognised/(reversed)
Uncollectible amounts 6= NI EIE ¢z - -
written off
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 661 - 507

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

19 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

19 Htbe@MEE

At At At

31 December 1 January 31 December

2018 2018 2017

RZB-N\%F RZB-N\% NS 3

+=A=1+-H —-A—-H +-A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T R ARETR AREFT

Avallable-for-sale financial assets () I HESRIEE () - - 188,000
Financial assets at fair value BRATERAER

through profit or loss LEREE

- Convertible Loan (note 15) - AERER (T 15) - 52,404 -

— Conversion option - T AHE - - 5,159

— Wealth management products (i) — B8 f (i) 60,000 248,000 60,000

60,000 300,404 253,159

Note: Upon the adoption of IFRS 9, an opening adjustment Bifat - PRERANBIRR B IS s S AERIZE 958 - =

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

as at 1 January 2018 was made to reclassify the entire
Available-for-sale financial assets and entire convertible
loans to financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets as at
31 December 2017 were seven principal-
guaranteed wealth management products
issued by banks in the PRC with principal
amount of RMB188,000,000. These wealth
management products were matured in
2018.

Included in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as at 31 December
2017 and 2018 were principal-guaranteed
wealth management products issued by a
bank in the PRC with maturity period within
one year, amounting to RMB60,000,000
(2017: RMB60,000,000).

Annual Report 2018

(i)

T N\F— A AEHHNRARAER
DR A HEESREERD R ER
BRERAFEAABSENEREE -

RZE—+F+=_A=+—H"
AHHEsREERTERTE
ZRITETHRAEIRI E -
& %A AR #188,000,000
Lo ZERMERER=ZZ—N
FAEIE -

MRZB—tFR_F—\F
+ZA=Z+—BERQAFETFA
BEazemEERERAYR
RITEITHOR —F AR EMR
AABHER ©EAARK
60,000,000 ( = —+F : A
R #60,000,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

20 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 20 CEFLITHEXK
Bank deposits have been pledged as security for RITEREERERENRRE (MisE23)
bills payable (note 23) and banking facilities. The NRITEREMER - EEPRITERS
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the RBERBEENZBRIIRITRED R
settlement of relevant bills payable and expiration of fERR

21

banking facilities.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 RERBEEEY

(@) Cash and cash equivalents (a) BRERBREEYWERE
comprise:

2018 2017
—EBE-N\HF —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Cash at bank and on hand #RITFK K& FEERS 211,198 122,978
Other deposit Hih 7R 9,286 11,615

Cash and cash equivalents F4RE BIFSRAR A

in the consolidated RekREFED

financial position 220,484 134,593
At 31 December 2018, cash and cash RZE—NF+ZA=+—8"
equivalents placed with banks in the mainland GFERTRERHMEITHIRE KR
China amounted to RMB210,877,000 (2017: ©EEMRAREE210,877,0007C
RMB112,658,000). Remittance of funds out (ZZ—+%F : AR®112,658,000
of mainland China is subject to the relevant TL) e BREAMENNE S EE
rules and regulations of foreign exchange ST AR R T A 40 9 SN B 1) 9 4
control promulgated by the PRC government. BRI SR -

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 BERBEZEY &)

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before (b) BRBIADEFERLETE TS
taxation to cash generated from REWHER :
operations:

2018

2017

—E2-N\F —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% TR ARBF T
Profit before taxation BRBCATE A 290,951 284,781
Adjustments for: AR
Depreciation e 4(0) 8,126 11,805
Amortisation of B EESH 4(0)
intangible assets 6,162 5,313
Amortisation of lease METERFIE
prepayments igis 4(0) 501 501
Share of loss of DR E QA
an associate BB 190 -

210 Finance costs BEMK 4(a) 19,891 16,555
Net foreign exchange INEEE,

. BN loss/(gain) (zs) 58 7,838 (7,638)
Interest income FEHA 3 (14,775) (13,515)
Net (gain)/loss HEME - B&E

on disposal of i (W)
property, plant e
and equipment 3 (1,362) 3,236
Net loss on disposal of HERFEE
intangible assets BEFE - 15
Net fair value gain on BATERABR
financial assets at fair E’U@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\]
value through profit or loss N EFRE 3 (846) (2,323)
Investment income on AEHESRE
available-for-sale BEN
financial assets BEWBA 3 - (234)
Equity settled share-based %ﬁ?’i%ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂ%’ﬁﬁ
payment expenses WONHAZ  4() 1,167 360
Changes in working capital: $ é”\“ f
Increase in inventories Ti‘fi'ﬂ]ﬂ (46,526) (8,239)
(Increase)/decrease in B 5 REMER
trade and other FIE (M), R
receivables (14,295) 50,037
Increase in trade and B2 REAMER
other payables AL 7,847 33,690
Cash generated from rERESMEHRE
operations 264,869 374,344

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21
(Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising

from financing activities

The table below details changes in the
Group’s liabilities from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated cash flow statement as cash
flows from financing activities.

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

REeERREEEW®)

(c) MEEBRELARBZHE
NERBIMEARDEEAKE
BEZEHFE  BREREMIE
R8s MELIBELCZARE
ERERECHRKRRETER
RAKRBEABESRERNA

ARELTHELZHERENE

(R

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
Bank loans Bank loans
and other and other
borrowings borrowings
2018 % 2017 F
12A31H 12 H31 H
RITERER RITERK
H & HAbER
$°000 $'000
Frx Tt
(Note 22) (Note 22)
(FEE22) (FfzE22)
At 1 January ®n—B—H 288,097 127,095
Changes from financing BREREHREHE :
cash flows:
Proceeds from new FIRITERZFNEIE
bank loans - 324,749
Repayment of bank loans (B RITE K (17,372) (147,095)
Other borrowing costs paid & 15 EAth &Rk A - (4,367)
Total changes from BMEBRERE
financing cash flows ZEEEE (17,372) 171,953
Exchange adjustments [E % 8% 15,194 (12,285)
Other change: Hiherg) .
Amortization on other  HEfthf& 7 K A< 8%
borrowings cost 1,533 -
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H 287,452 288,097
—E—\FFR FEREFERLA A




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

22 $RITER

22 BANK BORROWINGS

212

Bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

RITERTIRIATHIRERE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T

Withinoneyear LA IR SR 52566| 16,636
After 1 year but within 2 years R EEZRBR2FR 234,886 49,908
After 2 years but within 5 years A2 F1&BR5F K - 221,553
287,452 288,097

Bank borrowings as of 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2018 were unsecured, carried at
amortized cost and were denominated in Hong
Kong Dollar. The bank borrowings were drawn
down under a loan facility of HK$350,000,000.
Pursuant to the facility, the controlling shareholder
shall maintain his equity interest and voting rights
in the Company at a certain level, and at the same
time it is subject to the fulfiiment of covenants
relating to certain of the Group’s financial ratios. A
breach of these undertakings would result that the
drawn down facilities and interest would become
payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. As at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2018, none of
the covenants relating to the drawn down facilities
had been breached.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2018

R_E—+F+_A=+—BK=_Z
—N\F+-— A=+ BRRTERAE
R R AT E RABTTETE ©
SR1T 8 SR TH IR B B 5Bk & 350,000,000
BITHRER o IRIBFZIERE - 1ERRAR RS
HRAR R BRI R I R ERTRE
K RIEEESEBAERE T
TELL R o B RZERHGERAT
REABERF BB BRERKEE - &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 EBSRHMEMAFIE

At At At

31 December 1 January 31 December

2018 2018 2017

R-E-N\F R=-B-N\F RZE—+F

+=A=1+-H —-A—-H +-A=1+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T AREFT

Trade payables BHRMNHIE 123,153 142,578 142,578

Bills payable (note (b)) ESGET ) 345,784 311,851 311,851
Trade and bils payables (note () & ZENFIER

AESACIEAR)) 468,937 454,429 454,429

Receipts in advance (note () TEULGRIE (FiFE (@) - - 13,904

Contract liabilities BHEE 52,381 52,445 -

Other payables and accruals Hi N FIERETER 76,077 83,168 121,709

597,395 590,042 500,042

213
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 EBZRHMENRKIE @
(Continued)
All of the trade and other payables are expected to FIBE 5 KEMENFRIBTEIR N —F
be settled or recognized as income within one year WNEENIERRBRASIELERER -

or are repayable on demand.

(@ As a result of the adoption of IFRS15, @  HERERMER SRS ZERIZE 15
receipts in advance is included in contract R BRRBEEINAEGNER
liabilities (see note 1(p)). (RFEE1()) °

(b)  Bills payable as at 31 December 2018 ) Z=ZZTE—-—N\F+ZA=1T—HHE
were secured by pledged bank deposits of NEBUBERRITERARE
RMB140,485,000 (2017: RMB105,015,000) 140,485,000t (ZZF—+4F © A
(note 20). R #105,015,000 7T ) E K #8 (Fff

#£20) -

©)  An ageing analysis of the trade and bills ) EBIHENRIBRENZEBRREE
payables based on the invoice date is as FSHHMERESTOT -
follows:

214

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARKETT
Within 3 months ={EALAR 320,370 346,551

More than 3 months but ~ =1E A LA_E7X & A AR
within 6 months 140,323 103,326

More than 6 months but ~ 7~E A LA E—5F AR

within 1 year 5,147 2,909
More than 1 year —FLAE 3,097 1,643
468,937 454,429

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT
BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the PRC municipal and
provincial government authorities whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions at
the rate of 14% to 20% of the eligible employees’
salaries to the Schemes. The Group has accrued for
the required contributions which are remitted to the
respective local government authorities when the
contributions become due. The local government
authorities are responsible for the pension
obligations payable to the retired employees
covered under the Schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for
the payment of pension benefits beyond the
contributions described above.

24

I RR M ()
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B STHBEIN - HAREAIT)
EERIKEFN

REMFRMAKEE
AEENTEMHBAR2ERFETR
Ko AR BURT HERE AT B S B9 SR (R FGR AR
wAMEEI(T5H 8 1) T\t B
BRABIANGEREEHEMNI4%E
20% WLL R [Aa At B R - AEH
BEREZAHEHER - REREIRSENS T
E3h 77 BT o 377 IR A st (R0 2%
AERENRKEE X NRKERER
o

AEBTRERBRHIEAREE R EME
7 BRBBEBIEOIE T BLEERE
ArREERMATIERTESE S (M58
EEaTEl]) - BIESF S AHBILRE
ANEEHFE HFORIRETE] - RIBBRTE
T8 BEREEBRBARSIH
R HREREEERKRATNGY. - H
TS B & A HERIULA 30,0008 TH) L
BR o matEIE L HRENES R R o

B EXFT RSN - REBREAREE
M HTEEMEASE -

—E-N\FER FEREHFRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has two share option schemes
namely, the Pre-IPO Employee Share Option
Scheme (the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme) and
the Share Option Scheme, which were adopted on
8 October 2013.

(a)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 8 October 2013, the Company granted
options to subscribe for an aggregate
of 8,520,000 shares of the Company to
its directors, employees and one of its
distributors, under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme at an exercise price of HK$2.024,
being 80% of the initial public offering price.
No further option could be granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme after 8
October 2013. Options granted had vesting
periods of 1 to 3 years commencing from 28
October 2013, being the date of the listing of
the Company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Each option gives the holders the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
the Company.

Pursuant to the rules of the share option
scheme, options will lapse when the grantee
ceases to be an employee of the Group
for reasons other than death, permanent
disability, retirement and transfer of
employment to related parties, or terminates
the business with the Group.

Annual Report 2018
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PSR B BERESS (BRRME
ERIERAERT 8 RBAERT 8 %F
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(a)

BXRAMBRERBRETS
RZZE—=F+HNB ' K17
BIEERARESRIBREE
MEES - EERESERZ—
AT 3R B8 & $£8,520,000 A% A%
NAIRD 2 ERE THEER
2.024 L (B R RAEEEZ
80%)  R=—E—=F+AHN\H
BAAREE X AAESRIER
REFTEIR N A iERE - ER W
EBhiEsBBERAEE T —=F
+ A=+ /\B(BIARREREER
FrER EMBE) RBET1E3F o
BHERER TRAE ARENRE
—RAR RN B EBAY -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 REEREEURGOGAEENRKS

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (%)

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (@) BRABMBREAERESE
(Continued) (&)
The number of pre-IPO share options REE B RMARITE LA TITEZ
outstanding and exercisable as at year end BRAAHESHBRESE N
dates are as follows: T

Outstanding as R—A—BERTE
at 1 January 6,199,000 7,189,000
Exercised during the year FRE1T{E (1,329,000) (550,000)
Lapsed during the year FRBEKRK (1,720,000) (440,000)
Outstanding as R+ZA=+—HRHKRTE
at 31 December 3,150,000 6,199,000
Exercisable as R+ZA=+—BaF{7E
at 31 December 3,150,000 6,199,000
The weighted average closing price FA - REBRERETEB SR
immediately before the date on which share Z I mER2.558 (=
options were exercised during the year was T—+F :24087T) °

HK$2.55 (2017: HK$2.40).

The share options outstanding at 31 RZE—-NF+ZA=1+—8E
December 2018 had a weighted average RITEERE 2 INEFHFEHRE
remaining contractual life of 4.8 years (2017: HWFEHB48F(ZE—+F : 5.8
5.8 years). F)o

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Share Option Scheme

(i)

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme,
the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to
invite eligible participants, including
employees and directors of any
company in the Group, to take up
options at a nominal consideration
of HK$1 to subscribe for shares
of the Company to a maximum of
70,000,000 shares.

Pursuant to the rules of the share
option scheme, options will lapse when
the grantee ceases to be an employee
of the Group for reasons other than
death, permanent disability, retirement
and transfer of employment to related
parties, or terminates the business
with the Group.

On 3 August 2017 (the “Date of Offer”),
options were offered by the Company,
which were accepted by one director
and certain other employees on
3 August 2017 to subscribe for
6,000,000 shares of the Company
under the Share Option Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$2.19. The
closing prices of the Company’s
shares immediately before the Date
of Offer and on the Date of Offer were
HK$2.18 and HK$2.19, respectively.
The options have vesting periods of 5
years commencing from the Date of
Offer and have a contractual life of 10
years. Each option gives the holders
the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(i

(Continued)

On 13 June 2018 (the “Date of Offer”),
options were offered by the Company,
which were accepted by two directors
and certain other employees on 13
June 2018 to subscribe for 7,400,000
shares of the Company under the
Share Option Scheme at an exercise
price of HK$3.54. The closing prices
of the Company’s shares immediately
before the Date of Offer and on the
Date of Offer were HK$3.58 and
HK$3.54, respectively. The options
have vesting periods of 5 years
commencing from the Date of Offer
and have a contractual life of 10 years.
Each option gives the holders the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share in
the Company.

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

25 EHEEHEURNDAERNRS

(#8)

(b) EEREFE (2
i &)

RZZE—-NFXA+=H8
(TZXHBH])  RRRIR
BERETSIREERE
YR=ZFE—N\FRA+=
HEMBESERETHM
EEHM  AlE3.548 7T
K171 E7R%E 7,400,000 %
KRB o NAF KD
EERENHBIIERED
HHEAm W mEH 5 &3.58
BT R3.54BTC - XL
BRENEBHREEHNB
HIREETSF - G HFHA
106 - §IPEIRER T
BAEFRE —BRAAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 REREEURGCAERENRKS

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (&)
(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (b) EERESE(2)
() (Continued) M @&
Details of movements in the share EIRBERER SR LA
options which have been granted BEREZESFFEHI W
under the Share Option Scheme are Nk
as follows:
Options granted  Options granted
on 3 August 2017  on 13 June 2018
with exercise with exercise
price of HK$2.19 price of HK$3.54
R-B-—+F R-B-N\fF
NAZAEEN KSAT=ZARLEN
TEER2198T THEERISIET
8 AR 8 R
Outstanding at RZT—+4F
220 1 January 2017 —AR—H
- kAT - - -
Granted B 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
Outstanding at RZE—+F
31 December 2017  +ZA=+—H
and 1 January 2018 &-Z—\&F
—RA—REATRE 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
Granted BT - 7,400,000 7,400,000
Lapsed BRM (400,000) - (400,000)
Outstanding at RZE-N\F
31 December 2018  +=-A=+—H
mAITER 5,600,000 7,400,000 13,000,000

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

There were 13,000,000 (2017:
6,000,000) share options outstanding
and none of which was exercisable
as at 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2018.

The share options outstanding at
31 December 2018 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of
9.1 years. (2017: 9.6 years)

Annual Report 2018
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25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

25 EHEEHEURNDAERNRS

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (&)
(b) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (b) HBRESTEE)
(i)  Fair value of share options and (i) BREAFERBR

assumptions

The fair value of services received
in return for share options granted
is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based
on a binomial option pricing model.
The contractual life of the share option
is used as an input into this model.
Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the a binomial option

TERIE B Z B3R
WERZ IR 2 RFETIZ
RAFIRLBEREZ 2TE
M&tE - AIREBREZ
fEEt A ERA ZAEAH
BEEBERAGE - B
ZEHFRERZENZ
— IR AR - IRR1TE
BHEMAZIEAREE
BE -

pricing model.
2017
—E—tF
Fair value at measurement date Rt EHEIZ AF(AE HK$ % 7T 0.58-0.59
Share price B HK$ &7T2.19
Exercise price I E HK$#7T2.19
Expected volatility (expressed TEERR IR (32 — I = e
as weighted average volatility RAETERFTERAZ
used in the modelling under TR IESR)
binomial lattice model) 40.56%
Option life (expressed fERR A AR (i — 1H =\ B
as weighted average life BRRIE NREBEHEA 2
used in the modelling under N EEIYR)
binomial lattice model) 10 years
Expected dividends TEHARR B 5.84%
Risk-free interest rate (based on & [& FI| & (1B 4%
Hong Kong Government Bond)  &ABITEHSH) 1.53%

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(ii)

Fair value of share options and

25 EHREHEURDAERNRS

(#&)

(b) HBRESTSEE)
i) BRELAFEERRBAR

assumptions (Continued) (#&)
2018
—=E-N\F
Fair value at measurement date ~ RETEHHZ AFE HK$ 7%t 0.99-1.01
Share price IR (B HK$ % Jt 3.54
Exercise price 1TE(E HK$ 7 T 3.54
Expected volatility (expressed TEHRR iR (e —1E =\ B
as weighted average volatility BAIB TN EREA 2
used in the modelling under IEFIDRIESR)
binomial lattice model) 37.30%
Option life (expressed AR A (i = 1A BhfE
as weighted average life used RAIBETERFTRAZ
in the modelling under binomial ~ ANkEFHFHIFIIR)
lattice model) 10 years
Expected dividends TEHARR B 4.80%
Risk-free interest rate (based on GG FI R (R1%
Hong Kong Government Bond)  &ABMNEHEL) 2.35%

The expected volatility is based on the
historic volatility (calculated based on
the weighted average remaining life of
the share options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility
based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a
service condition. This condition has
not been taken into account in the
grant date fair value measurement of
the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the
share option grants.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 26 BX - #HERRKRE

DIVIDENDS

(@) Movements in components of (a) REZIHEF
equity
The reconciliation between the opening and REEGFEEARZTHDNFIR
closing balances of each component of the FREANERENGaERE
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the K o ARRERERE D NF
consolidated statement of changes in equity. MEFEOEEFIFHI AT -

Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:

Capital
Share Share  redemption Capital  Exchange  Retained
Company capital premium reserves reserve profits

L% Bx Rl - EXRR  EARG  RERA
Nofe  RVBOOD  RMBOO ' RVBOO  RVBOOD B00
Wi ARETT ARETL  ARETR  ARETR T

Balance at 1 January 2017 R=E-tF-f-B

ifedd 5,583 4712 - 5424 1,168 61,630 78517
Changes in equity for 2017 Z5—tEf
EREY.
Total comprehensie income. FRZANGLAE
for the year - - - - B%) 178 13808
Shares ssued under share REBRETE
option scheme £l 26(0)i) 4 1,348 - (£00) - - %2
Transfer betieen reserves b - - - (430) - 40 -
Eouty seitled share-based ~ EREENRAA
fransactions AR5 - - - 30 - - 30
Dividends declared BERRE 26(0) - - - - - (66,418) (66,418)
Shares repurchased BERA o 68 - W - N Y I )
Balance at 31 December 2017 A=Z-t%+27
and 1 January 2018 =t-8R
ZE-)\E
- - AMEe 3 5203 6,060 34 4954 (4813 46,133 57,921
Changes in equity for 2018: ~ —F-NNEH
EngE .
Tota comprehensive income ERZENELE
for the year - - - - 3,01 1634% 166,566
Shares ssued under share REERE 2
option scheme i 2600 1 313 - 072 - - 2174
Transfer betwegn reserves FiEEAR - - - (1454) - 1454 -
Equity setfled share-based ERENRAA
transactions ERNRS - - - 1,167 - - 1,167
Dividends declared BERE 260) - - - - - {1238 (12239
Balance at 31 December 2018 A=Z-N\E+=7
=t-BfEs 31 5214 9,1% 34 3,6% (1,74 88,754 10550

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 26 EX - #ERRE @
DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(b) Dividends (b) KE
() Dividends payable to equity (i) FERAFEEEMNARAF
shareholders of the Company Rz AR R AR B

attributable to the year

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Interim dividend declared EEIR&;E XA
and paid of HK$0.132 7 HAAR B
per ordinary share BRERER
(2017: HK$0.06 per 0.1327% 7T
ordinary share) —E—+F
_ BARE @R
004 0.06/%7L) 76,658 34,956
- Final dividend proposed MRS BRE R %
after the end of the R B R ERRR B,
reporting period of BARE @A
HK$0.048 per 0.048 7T
ordinary share 5
(2017: HK$0.085 per BARE @A
ordinary share) 0.085/%87T) 27,524 46,225
104,182 81,181
The final dividend proposed after the RS H 4 RIE R B R
end of the reporting period has not HARR B0 B AF ¥R 5 B R 7
been recognised as a liability at the REAE-

end of the reporting period.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

BN LE-VBRFEER

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 26 EX - FERKRE @)
DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(b) Dividends (Continued) (b) BE#E)
(ii) Dividends payable to equity (ii)

shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the

A EHEAE RORA 0 FE A
AR EEmBR B

year
2018 2017
—E—N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Final dividend proposed MRS B RZ
after the end of the FER B9 R EAAR B,
reporting period of BARE @A
HK$0.085 per 0.085 87T
ordinary share Tt
(2017: HK$0.05 per BARE @A
ordinary share) 0.05%7T) 45,670 31,462
(c) Share capital (c) B’=
() Authorised and issued share (i) ZEERSBITERA
capital
2018 2017
ZE-\E “5tE
No.ofshares  HK$'000  RMB'000 No.ofshares  HK$'000  RMB'000
RAEE TEr AR®TR FiES AL ARETR
Authorised: iR
Ordinary shares of BRAGOATL
HK$0.01 each LEER 10,000,000,000 100,000 79,208 | 10,000,000000 100,000 79,208
Ordinary shares, issued ~ BRTHRLER :
and fully paid:
At1 January i ahl= 667,264,000 6,672 5,203 711,478,000 7115 5,583
Shares issued under share  RIZEETRIERTBIRITIRG
option scheme (Bz+ 26(c)in)
{ote 20l 1,329,000 14 11 550,000 5 4
Shares repurchased BERN
(note 26(c)() (PzE 26(c)h) - - - (44,764,000) (448) 384)
At 31 December RtZA=1+-R 668,593,000 6,686 5,214 667,264,000 6,672 5203
SENEER | FEBARAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 26 EX - FHERKRE @)

DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(c) Share capital (Continued) (% NE )
() Authorised and issued share (i) ZEERCBITRAE
capital (Continued)
The equity shareholders are entitled EmRRA RN EE
to receive dividends as declared from KB E - WAEMEETR
time to time and are entitled to one BORAARIREREARE L
vote per share at meetings of the R—F - iAEBERIMAN
Company. All ordinary shares rank NEIFHREEZEREZM
equally with regard to the Company’s A7 e
residual assets.
(i) Shares repurchased (i) BERSG

During the year ended 31 December
2017, the Company repurchased its
own shares on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited as follows:

BE-F—+%+-5
=t+—RLLEE ARH
NEBBARFHERA
ABEILEFRAWT -

226 .
Number Highest Lowest
~— B of shares price paid price paid Aggregate
Month/Year repurchased per share per share price paid
=53] gEff
/R BERGHA SRESE SREEE Ef4E
HK$ HK$ RMB’000
BT BT ARETT
April 2017 —E—+%MA 18,487,000 2.66 2.29 40,426
August 2017 —E—+F)\A 26,277,000 2.44 2.21 51,872
44,764,000 92,298

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

The repurchase was governed by the
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands.
The shares had been cancelled
after buy-back. The total amount
paid on the repurchased shares of
RMB92,298,000 was paid wholly out
of retained profits.

There is no such repurchase of shares

during the year ended 31 December
2018.

Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

(iii)

Shares issued under share
option scheme

During the 31 December 2018,
options were exercised to subscribe
for a total of 1,329,000 (31 December
2017: 550,000) ordinary shares in
the Company at a consideration of
RMB2,174,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB952,000), of which RMB11,000
(31 December 2017: RMB4,000)
and RMB2,163,000 (31 December
2017: RMB948,000) were credited to
share capital and the share premium
account respectively. The amount of
RMB972,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB400,000) has been transferred
from the capital reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with
policy set out in the note 1(u)(ii).

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, the funds in the
Company’s share premium account
are distributable to the shareholders
provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the course of business.

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

26 EX - #HEEKRKRE @

(c) B
(iii)

(d) fEE
(i

—E-N\FER

(#&)

BREBREST ST
iz 3
R—ZE—-—NF+ A
=+—8 BT HERE
REE A $£1,329,000/% (=
ZE—+t+tF+_-_H=+—
H : 550,000/% ) & 2 A
TER REAARK
2,174,000L( = T — &
F+-A=+—H8: AR
#952,0007T ) H & A
R¥11,0000(=ZE—t
F+-A=+—H: A
R #4000 ) M AR
2,163,000 (=T —t4F
+ZA=+—H: AR
948,0007T) B9 RllET A
AEBMDRER - BEA
R#Q972,000T(=F—+
F+-A=+—H8: AR
¥ 400,000 7T) BB R ER
B 1)) FTEBCR B &
INEBERE SR RER -

HMEER AR

A0 EE
REAEHSRRDE - K
NEEDHEER ENES
ADRTHRR BIRRA
EREERREREERZ
& AREIDBRENESE
BBRETFEDHRIE -

FEREHFRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 26 BX - RERRKRE (=
DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (d) REAEERARE)
(Continued)
(i) Capital reserve (i) EXRFEE
Capital reserves comprise the BEARREBIEATIESR -
followings:
2018 2017
—E—N\E —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARKETT
The Group rEE
Equity settled share-based #EmAs & ARN &
transactions (Note 25) EMHR 5 (H5E25) 3,556 4,815
Arising from reorganisation BEE/HES
— (notes (i) and (ii)) (BHFE () K (i) 37,493 37,493
228
41,049 42,308
The Company AT
Equity settled share-based #EmAis & ARD &
transactions (Note 25) EMHR 5 (H5E25) 3,556 4,815
Arising from reorganisation P EAHZE 4 (B 5 (i)
(note (ii)) 139 139
3,695 4,954

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(Continued)

(ii) Capital reserve (Continued)

Notes:

0

On 18 May 2009, the controlling
shareholder sold his entire equity
interest in Cabbeen China to Cabbeen
China Investments Limited (“Cabbeen
Investments”), so that Cabbeen
Investments became the holding
company of Cabbeen China. The
consideration for the transaction was
RMB11,200,000. The difference of
RMB37,354,000 between the initial
cash consideration and the capital of
Cabbeen China was recorded as a
capital reserve.

On 31 July 2012, the Company issued
and allotted 100 shares with par value
of HK$0.01 each as a consideration to
purchase the entire issued share capital
of Grandfull International Holdings
Limited (“Grandfull International”) and
Cabbeen International Holdings Limited
from the controlling shareholder. The
difference of RMB139,000 between
the purchase consideration and the
share capital of Grandfull International
and Cabbeen International Holdings
Limited was recorded as an increase
of shareholder’s contribution in capital
reserve.

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

26 EX - #HEEKRKRE @

RENEERAR @)

(i) EXfFHEEE)
it -

[0} RZZEZAFRA+N
B ERBEEBENE
EREHEIRELES
FTREPBEEEBRA
AIRERE]D R
BEREKABFETEK
ERAR - ZXZHR
& A& A K % 11,200,000
T mBRSRERFE
EREEAMMEREA
R #37,354,000 7T 5T A
BARGEM -

(i) R—E—=—F+/=+
—B - AARBEITRE
Z%100% & ix ™ {E0.01
BILHIRG - ERMIE
BRAE B B B E BRI
BERREIESH
B R FEBEBRZERS
BARIZMPEHTRA
WRE - BERERSE
BB &R E R R
BRAFBRAN 2 EH
=58 AR # 139,000 T
EARFEBEBRERRKREL
BEIEINAL

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Capital redemption reserve
Capital redemption reserve represents
the nominal amount of the shares
repurchased.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the
PRC, the Company’s subsidiaries
established and operated in the
mainland China are required to
appropriate 10% of their after-tax-
profit (after offsetting prior year losses)
as determined in accordance with the
PRC accounting rules and regulations,
to the statutory surplus reserve until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before
distribution of profits to parent
companies.

The statutory reserve can be utilised,
upon approval by the relevant
authorities, to offset accumulated
losses or to increase capital of the
subsidiary, provided that the balance
after such issue is not less than 25%
of its registered capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside
mainland China which are dealt with
in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 1(y).

Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(v) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2018, the aggregate
amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company was RMB99,902,000
(2017: RMB52,334,000). After the end
of the reporting period the directors
propose a final dividend of HK$0.048
(2017: HK$0.085) per ordinary share
(note 26()).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for its equity shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of
risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain
a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

26 EX - RHEERKRE®

(d)

(e)

RENMEERBAR#)

(v) f#EENDIKEE
R-ZZF— N E + = A
E+—E| BIE a0 il
N AR IR AR
ﬁ%AEM%mmm
T(ZE—tF: AR%
52,334,0007% )o MR &
HiER1%  EEEZRN
Kﬁﬂﬂﬁ % E A% 0.048
BL(ZF—+4F:0085
BIT) (FEE26(0)) °

EXEE

AEEEREANEZBREAR
FEAKERERLLENEN BB

& FE @\ 7K A E R E B A KA
EEKARESHE  BEAER

Hxﬁ’““):@#&&%ﬁﬁﬂ%\ AR
mXﬂﬁﬁ °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(e)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure with
reference to its debt position. The Group’s
strategy is to maintain the equity and debt
in a balanced position and ensure there are
adequate working capital to service its debt
obligations. The Group’s debt to asset ratio,
being the Group’s total liabilities over its total
assets, at 31 December 2018 was 44%
(2017: 46%).

Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these
risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

(a)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a
counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade and other receivables,
deposits with banks and other financial
assets. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(i

Trade and other receivables
Credit evaluations are performed on
customers requiring credit terms. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s
history of making payments and current
abilities to pay and take into account
information specific to the customer as
well as to the economic environment.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer and
therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. As at 31
December 2018, 23% (2017: 25%)
of the total trade and bills receivables
were concentrated in one customer,
and 58% (2017: 69%) of the total
trade and bills receivables were
concentrated in five customers of the
Group.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group
does not provide any guarantees
which would expose the Group to
credit risk.
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27 SHEMREERAFE®)

AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued)

234

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(i)

Trade and other receivables
(Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances
for trade receivables at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is
not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.

The following table provides
information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for
trade receivables and contract assets
as at 31 December 2018:

(@) FEERRE#E)

(i)

B2 R EMERRRIR
(%)
AEBRERNEEAX
HNEREEEENER
AEESEURIAZ ER
B EERREYIRE
HEITAHE - ARAKER
EMEEERL AR
BEE D WMBRERTRE
BEN . EREERER
EREETSE-—FIRA
SETRTEPER ZME

—SED -

TREIHIR T NF
tT-A=t—BX%KET
AR YEN 30 R k=g S YN
BHRWFTERANEE
MIEHEEERE

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FHEEE RERE - HERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT
Current (not past due) BNER (R H) 0.05% 362,814 (181)
1-90 days past due #WEI1Z=00H 1.00% 125 1)
91-180 days past due AMHEIOTZE180H  50.00% 898 (449)
More than 180 days past due BEB/B180H  100.00% 30 (30)
363,867 (661)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(i

Trade and other receivables
(Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on
actual loss experience over the past
2 years. These rates are adjusted to
reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which
the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

There was no material impact on trade
and other receivables for the initial
application of the new impairment
requirements under IFRS 9 compared
with under IAS 39.

Further quantitative disclosures in
respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 18.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(i)

Trade and other receivables
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group
had transferred bank acceptance bills
totalling RMB257,030,000 (2017:
RMB293,280,000), which were
derecognised as financial asset. The
transferees have recourse right to the
Group in case of default by the issuing
banks. In such cases, the Group
would have to repurchase these bank
acceptance bill at face value. These
bank acceptance bills mature six
months from respective dates of issue
and the Group’s maximum loss in case
of default are RMB257,030,000 (2017:
RMB293,280,000) as at 31 December
2018.

The Group accepts bank acceptance
bills issued by major banks in the
PRC and considers that the credit risk
associated with such bank acceptance
bills to be insignificant.

At 31 December 2018, the Group
lent the two loans with face value of
RMB15,840,000 and RMB32,000,000
to Huazhi Investments, the associate of
the Group, which are repayable by July
2019 and August 2019, respectively.
Based on the financial position and the
economic environment the associate
operates, the Group considers that the
credit risk associated with above loans
to be insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(i

(ii)

(iii)

Trade and other receivables
(Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the Group
lent the loan with face value of
RMB25,610,000 to one of the minority
shareholders of the Group. The loan
was secured by above shareholder’s
minority interest in the Group’s
subsidiary, the Group considers that
the credit risk associated with above
loans to be insignificant.

Deposits with banks

The Group mitigates its exposure to
credit risk by placing deposits with
financial institutions with established
credit rating. Given the high credit
ratings of the banks, management
does not expect any counterparty to
fail to meet its obligations.

Other financial assets

The Group entered into a wealth
management products with bank
during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017. The management
considers that the counterparties are
the banks with high credit rating and,
therefore, the default risk is remote.

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

27 SREMREERAFE®)

(@) EERKE)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

—E-\FFR

B 5 REMERR

(%)
RZFT-—NFE+ZA
=t—R  AfEERAXRX
SEN -2 LBBRRE
H—BEEERARK
25,610,000 TV E 3K © 7%
ERH ERERAA
Al B DRI D B A AE
R AKERAE LM
EXHBNERERRIL T
EwND

RITIER
AEEBERBEEENRE
e BEETIOREE
SRk - ARIRITEEF
MR BEREEEM
HFTHY IS LETHE
o

HttemEE

REBEE-_ZT—N\EK_F
—tF+-A=+—HIE
FE - AEBEHERTEIL
ETEVER - EEER
ARHEFHRESEFEEFNRK
HIERTT - BUEXVRPRIRIE o

FEREHFRA A

237



238
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(B= 1715 E )

P UAREST)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the
Group are responsible for their own cash
management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the management and
directors when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, if any, to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

All non-interest bearing financial liabilities
and discounted bills of the Group are carried
at amount not materially different from their
contractual undiscounted cash flow as all the
financial liabilities are with maturities within
one year or repayable on demand at the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27 SREMREERAFE®)
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RBEEEMEZ)
The contractual undiscounted cash flow and REEIR - RITEROE LK
carrying amount of bank borrowings as at MRBEEREREKEEESR W
the end of the reporting period are set out as N
follow:

Contractual undiscounted cash flow
Morethan ~ More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 year but
Carrying 1 year or on less than lessthan  More than
31 December 2018 amount Total demand 2 year 5 years 5 years

RMB0OO ~ RMB'000  RMBO00  RMBOOO ~ RMB'000  RMB'00
BNRERATRE
—FRE —FRE mENLE
“F-\FTZA=t-H R £ EEX  mENA  BENA RENE
ARBTT ARETL ARMTR ARRTL ARETL ARETR

Bank borrowings RATIER 287,452 310,043 54,267 255,776 - -

287,452 310,043 54,267 255,776 - -

Contractual undiscounted cash flow
More than  More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2year but
Carrying 1yearoron lessthan lessthan More than
31 December 2017 amount Total demand PATE 5 years 5 years

RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
CLESEEE A
—FRE —FRE WENME
“E-tFt-A=t-H REE #xt EER WEMR EFNR EEML
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%TR

Bank borrowings BITER 288,097 325,104 17,254 54304 253546 -

288,097 325,104 17,254 54,304 253,646 -

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from bank borrowings carried
at variable rates, which exposes the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. The effective
interest rate of the bank borrowings of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 was 6.70%
(2017: 6.10%).

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 1% in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s
profit after tax for the year and retained profits
by approximately RMB2,400,000 (2017:
RMBZ2,406,000). Other components of equity
would not be affected by the changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
impact on the Group’s profit for the year and
retained profits that would arise assuming
that there is an annualised impact on interest
income and expense by a change in interest
rates. The analysis has been performed on
the same basis for 2017.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk
primarily arising from bank deposits of
RMB505,000 (2017: RMB1,276,000)
denominated in RMB held by the entities for
which HK$ is the functional currency.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a
general appreciation/depreciation of 1% in
RMB, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s
net profit for the year and retained profits by
approximately RMB4,000 (2017: decreased/
increased by RMB11,000).

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rate had been
applied to re-measure the bank deposits and
bank loan which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the
financial statement of foreign operations into
the Group’s presentation currency.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Fair value

(i)

Financial assets measured at
fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the
fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS
183, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not
available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27 SREMREERAFE®)
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e) Fair value (Continued) (e) 2~FE#E)
() Financial assets measured at (i) BAFEFENEHE
fair value (Continued) E(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NEEZHR(E)
Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2018 categorised into
2018 RIE-\E+"A=1—Hf
NTEHENER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
MATE R FEft E=&
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR
Recurring fair value BEMATEHE
measurements
Assets: EE
Financial asset at fair value AT B ABZE
through profit or loss NEREE
(note 19) (Bi3E19)
- Wealth management - BB ER
products 60,000 - 60,000 -

Fair value at Fair value measurements as at

31 December 31 December 2017 categorised into
2017 R-B-tE+ZA=1t-BN

R=F-t# NYEHEDER

+=A=1+-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
HAYE F-1 | E=R
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

ARETR ARETR AR%ET:n

Recurring fair value REMNTETE
measurements
Assets: BE
Available-for-sale MRLESRERE
financial assets (note 19) ~ (HiE£19) 188,000 - 188,000 -
Financial assets at fair value  RATER ABR
through profit or loss LEBEAE
(note 19) (MzE19) 60,000 - 60,000 -
Derivative financial iTEERIA
instruments:
~ Conversion option - BRERANE
embedded in LBhE
convertble loan (note 19)  (Fffz£19) 5,159 - - 5,159

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e)

Fair value (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets measured at
fair value (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2018, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used
in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of wealth management
products in Level 2 is the estimated
amount that the Group would receive
at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the current
creditworthiness of the wealth
management products counterparties.

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

27 SHEMREERAFE®)

(e)

NREE)

(i)

BAVEFENERE
E(E)
NFEER(E)

BE_ZT—tFR-F
—N\F+ZA=+—RH1t
FE B-REE_LK2
B BT ER - TR
ARBEHE=F - XEE
BEFREHRERRER
8B -

FE_RRFEAEMRAZ
[EREETPELINN ¢/

F_BRNEMERZRF
BEAAEBRHREBSHR
WH Zz fhat 2% - Bt
KRB ERR ST ZE R
B

Significant
Valuation unobservable Weighted
techniques inputs average
BEEART
fLER BERARE fEFEE
Conversion option Binomial lattice Expected volatility (2017: (2017:
embedded in model TRER B 25.15-51.53%) 37.51%)
convertible loan ZIEH Bhfe (ZF—tF: (ZF—+t5F:
AIEHRETAZ B3t 25.15251.53%) 37.51%)
B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e) Fair value (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets measured at
fair value (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

The fair value of conversion option
embedded in convertible loan was
determined using binomial lattice
model and the significant unobservable
input used in the fair value
measurement was expected volatility.
The fair value measurement was
positively correlated to the expected
volatility. As at 31 December 2017,
it was estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an increase/
decrease in the expected volatility by
5% would have increased/decreased
the Group’s profit by RMB313,000.
The convertible loan was repaid at
August 2018 (note 15).

The movements during the period in
the balance of these Level 3 fair value
measurements are as follows:

MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

SREMREERATE®

(e) 2FEE)

(i) BAFEFENEHE
E(E)
EEE=—QRLATEFAEZ
B (E)

AEBRERAN S 2SR
ZRFETRA B
mEXET maFE
AEMAZEETIEE
BABBEABHERE - A
T EAEEERFBEIE
R e R —+F
+-—A=+—8 " #FE
TEERR IR B T FE 5%
FiEEMmEERFNE
RNEE 2% F A58 0,6
AN R #313,0007T ° A]
BHERER T —/\F
NRAEE (MFE15) ©

HANZEE=RAFE
BESRIEHWT

2018 2017
—E2-N\F I
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETF T
Conversion option AERETA
embedded in LB
convertible loan:
Reclassification EFiipay 47,245 -
At 1 January/Onissue day ~ W—A—H, #7178 52,404 2,835
Changes in fair value HIRNR B ER
recognised in < AT EEE
profit or l0ss
during the period (2,865) 2,324
Repayment of the loan BHER (49,539) -
At 31 December K+—A=+—H - 5,159
Total gains or losses HmERRAFEE
for the period included St ABR BA
in profit or loss for assets Wk Es B Az
held at the end of
the reporting period (2,865) 2,324
—E—\FFR FEREFERLA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27 SHEMREERAFE®)
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e) Fair value (Continued) (e) 2FEE)

(i) Fair value of financial assets (i) WEFTBAFEIERzZE
and liabilities carried at other MEENREENATE
than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s RZE—tFR_ZT—N
financial instruments carried at cost F+-—A=+—8'&*%
or amortised cost were not materially %] 42 B AN o B 85 K AR B BR
different from their fair values as at 31 BT AEMBREESREE
December 2017 and 2018. NEEITEEREE -

28 COMMITMENTS 28 &I
(@) Capital commitments (a) BEAREE

Capital commitments outstanding at RZFE—-—NF+ZA=+—8"

31 December 2018 not provided for in the R E R IRBEARET

financial statements were as follows: BAEENT -

246 2018 2017
—E-N\HF —T—+F
— RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Contracted for B&I& 7,790 19,248
Authorised but not EREMEARGTL
contracted for 22,272 26,683
30,062 45,931
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

28 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Operating leases commitments

At 31 December 2018, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are payable as
follows:

28 RIE (@)

(b) EEHERE
RZZF-N\F+ZA=1t—H8"
BT AR AT & B R A RO K
REBEREMNFEERT -

2018 2017

—2-\F Tt

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T ARET T

Within 1 year —FR 5,864 9,991
After 1 year but within —FERAFER

5 years 210 7,106

After 5 years h & - _

6,074 17,097

The Group leases a number of properties
under operating leases. The leases typically
run for an initial period for one to six years,
at the end of which period all terms are
renegotiated.

AEBREBELEHOEEZIEY
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PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group
entered into the following material related party
transactions.

(@) Operating lease with related

parties

The operating lease charges in respect of
properties paid and payable to Shishi City
Junyuan Development Co., Ltd. (“Junyuan
Development”) (AfimEBIRERBR A
7)) amounted to RMB2,111,000 (2017:
RMB2,907,000) for the year ended 31
December 2017, which constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Junyuan
Development is 100% indirectly owned by Mr.
Ziming Yang, the controlling shareholder. The
disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules are provided in section headed
“Connected Transactions” of the Reports of
the Directors.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINAN

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@) Operating lease with related
parties (Continued)

The total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases that

CIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BBITIERESS » UAARKEST)

20 BERBEHIERZ @)

(a) HEBEBMATHELHEE @)

AR S HETR T EARIR
FRMNBEKERENZRERED

are payable to Junyuan Development as Nk
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Within 1 year —FR 658 1,182
(b) Loans to a related party (b) BFEBEAINER

Amounts owed
to the Group by
a related party
CE VN
AEBIFE
As at

31 December

»®
+=A=+—H
2018
—E-N\E
RMB'000
AR®T

2017
—E—tF
RMB'000
AREET T

Related interest
income
HEF S WA
Year ended
31 December
BE+=-HA=+—H
LLFE
2018
—E-N\E
RMB'000
ARET T

2017
5
RMB'000
AREEF T

Loanstoan & —fEHE
associate NAEIER
(Note) (B3E) 47,840 - 906 -
Note: The outstanding balance with this related party BiaE - B UL BAES J7 B0 A R (B R A eR T

is included in “Trade and other receivables” (note

18).

—E-\FFR

ATESREMERE] (K
18) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 29 ERBABERZ (@)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Key management personnel (b) ETEEEASHMH
compensation
Remuneration for key management personnel AEETFTZEBAEMWE (BRIE
of the Group, including amounts paid to the S FHECATHEMARRIE
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 6 ERMFTARBENE TESE
and certain of the highest paid employees as EEMFIB)IAT :

disclosed in note 7, is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Short-term employee SEEIISEEY]
benefits 6,596 7,297
— Contributions to retirement RRAEFEHEI 5K
250 benefit scheme 582 373
Discretionary bonus By IEAL - 1,583
= Equity settled share-based #m#is & ARG &
payment expenses EMHN AL 1,167 360
8,345 9,613
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” FMasEE N [BITAAR] (Fis:
(note 4(b)). 4(b)) °

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the
judgements and other uncertainties affecting
application of those policies and the sensitivity
of reported results to changes in condition and
assumptions are factors to be considered when
reviewing the financial statements. The principal
accounting policies are set forth in note 1. The
Group believes the following critical accounting
policies involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements.

(@) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. These
estimates are based on the current market
conditions and the historical experience of
selling products with similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of change in
customer preference and competitor actions
in response to the industry situation. Any
change in the assumptions would increase
or decrease the amount of inventories write-
down or the related reversals of write-down
made in prior years and affect the Group’s
net assets value. The Group reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting
period.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

30 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Impairment of trade and other
receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances
for trade receivables by assessing the ECLs.
This requires the use of estimates and
judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors,
and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the
end of reporting period. Where the estimation
is different from the original estimate, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts of
trade receivables and thus the impairment
loss in the period in which such estimate is
changed. The Group keeps assessing the
expected credit loss of trade receivables
during their expected lives.

Bank acceptance bills

As set out in note 27(a)(i), the Group
considers that the credit risk associated with
bank acceptance bills issued by major banks
in the PRC to be insignificant. The Group
monitors the credit risk of issuing banks. The
judgement to derecognise bank acceptance
bills upon discounting or endorsement is
reviewed when the credit risk of issuing
banks deteriorates significantly.

Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(B ST 5 - UABE#ST)

31 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 31 QAFHMBARRE
FINANCIAL POSITION

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Non-current asset FIREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B A RRRE 7,205 6,038
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b U TR IE 213,464 65,501
Cash and cash equivalents REeERBFEEEY 557 2,028
214,021 67,529
Current liability REEE
Other payables and accruals H At A 5RIE & 253
JEETE 115,726 15,646
115,726 15,646
Net current assets REBEEFE 98,295 51,883
NET ASSETS BEEFE 105,500 57,921
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#EE 26(a)
Capitals =N 5,214 5,203
Reserves i 100,286 52,718
NET ASSETS EEFE 105,500 57,921

LKeEFeN _T—-NWF_A-_+-H#t
R R AETI)ES o

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 22 February 2019.

Mr. Siu Keung Ng Mr. Ronggin Ke

ROBEE R EE
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director Executive Director
TR FHNTTEE HITEE

—E-N\EER FEREHFRA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
PR M ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(R B1TIEHE S - UAEBESTR)

32

33

34

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9
at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods
design, comparative information is not restated.
Further details of the changes in accounting policies
are disclosed in Note 1(c)

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTIES

As at 31 December 2018, the directors consider the
ultimate controlling party of the Company to be Mr.
Ziming Yang.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued a number of amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2018
and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the Group.

32

33

34

g 2
AEFER T \F—HF—HBEXE
PR BB B 7% i o 2 B 565 16 55 e BFR B
B S 2RI 95 o RIBBRTT AR
it EEBEBATED - BESTEEK
BHEE — T FBRERMHE(C)

REERTS
R-Z—\F+-A=+—0 EHR
AARRTMREIZE T AGEPFE -

_+ Htiraﬁﬁﬁ
5 RAEMAVERT ~ #e] AR
RENTRERE

BERMBHRATIERE  BERSE
A Ee D \MEIREBE - LAk
2 ZFBT LRI R R RERE
CE - N\F A=+ —HLEFES
RER - AR BBIHRERIARERA - LA
TNRRI LA BERBEN AR -

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

R I3 E#E 2 &

IFRS 16, Leases

BRI R EAER|E 1659% - HE

IFRIC 28, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

Bl p )

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to IAS 28,

Long-term interest in associates and joint ventures

BIFR &5 2RI 28 SRAER
REENrIRAEEE E?E@?féﬁ[
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF

AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far the Group has identified some aspects of
IFRS 16 which may have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the expected impacts are discussed
below. While the assessment has been substantially
completed for IFRS 16, the actual impact upon
the initial adoption of this standard may differ as
the assessment completed to date is based on
the information currently available to the Group,
and further impacts may be identified before the
standard is initially applied in the Group’s interim
financial report for the six months ended 30 June
2019. The Group may also change its accounting
policy elections, including the transition options,
until the standard is initially applied in that financial
report.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BZiTHERES)  UAAREZT)

34

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(k), currently the Group
classifies leases into operating leases, and accounts
for the lease arrangements according to the nature
of the lease. The Group enters into leases as the
lessee.

IFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on
the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once IFRS 16 is
adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, lessees will account
for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the
lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease
liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this
asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use
asset, instead of the current policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases
on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a
practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to
apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e.
where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to
leases of low-value assets, in which case the rental
expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting
as a lessee of leases for properties, plant and
equipment which are currently classified as operating
leases. The application of the new accounting
model is expected to lead to an increase in both
assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of
the expense recognition in the statement of profit
or loss over the period of the lease. As disclosed in
note 28(b), at 31 December 2018 the Group’s future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases amount to RMB6,074,000 (2017:
RMB17,097,000) for properties, the majority of
which is payable within 1 year after the reporting
date. Some of these amounts may therefore need to
be recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding
right-of-use assets, once IFRS 16 is adopted. The
Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis
to determine the amounts of new assets and
liabilities arising from operating lease commitments
on adoption of IFRS 16, after taking into account
the applicability of the practical expedient and
adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated
between now and the adoption of IFRS 16 and the
effects of discounting.
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34

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. The standard offers
different transition options and practical expedients,
including the practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements
are, or contain, leases. If this practical expedient is
chosen, the Group will apply the new definition of a
lease in IFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered
into on or after the date of initial application. If the
practical expedient is not chosen, the Group will
need to reassess all of its decisions about which
existing contracts are, or contain, leases, using the
new definition. Depending on whether the Group
elects to adopt the standard retrospectively or follow
a modified retrospective method of recognising
a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at the date of initial application, the
Group may or may not need to restate comparative
information for any changes in accounting resulting
from the reassessment. The Group has not yet
decided whether it will choose to take advantage
of this practical expedient, and which transition
approach to be taken.
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FIVE YEARS SUMMARY

LEHE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
-\ 2tF ERF T _FIF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AREFTL ARETT ARETT
Revenue Y 1,273,473 1,089,106 1,160,799 1,356,486 1,098,188
Cost of sales HERR (694,730) (551,493) (604,829) (730,032) (636,185)
Gross profi A 578,743 537,613 555,970 626,454 462,003
Other income EtlA 58,100 42,786 51,709 56,805 60,115
Share of loss of an D FBE AT
associate MER (190) - - - -
Seling and distrioution BERNHAX
expenses (179,423) (153,392) (160,425) (121,607) (78,641)
Administrative and other THRAMLERY
operating expenses (146,388) (125,671) (194,198) (166,811) (121,264)
Profit from operations eyl 310,842 301,336 253,056 394,841 322,213
Finance cost BEKK (19,891) (16,555) (5,848) (3,137) (1538)
Profit before taxation il 290,951 284,781 247,208 391,704 320,675
Income tax Fi5H (80,708) (81,568) (65,519) (104,146) (85,173)
Profit for the year ERREH 210,243 203,213 181,689 287,558 235,502
Farnings per share GREF
Basic (RMB) EX(ARE) 0.32 0.29 0.26 0.404 0.35
Diluted (RVB) S 1UN=39) 0.32 0.29 0.25 0.402 0.35
—EB-N\FEH | FERGERAF
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FIVE YEARS SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

LFHE(H)

2018
—g8-N\f

RMB'000
ARBTR

2017
“T+F
RMB'000
ARETT

2016
“TE
RMB'000
ARETTL

2015
“T-HF
RMB'000
AREFT

2014
“T-E
RMB'000
AREFTL

Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties REME 39,607 - - - -
Property, plant and equipment #1% ~ Bis Kk fE 59,326 73,076 57 521 20,817 15,657
Interests in leasehold REfETHIEERY
land held for own use HET 7 ER
under operating lease 22,811 23,312 23,319 - -
Intangible assets R AE 37,393 40,218 34,848 35,297 22,075
Prepayments for acquisiion  WEERRE Rk 2 BATFE
of plant and equipment 1,039 9,744 - - -
Other loans receivables EiENER - 64,118 - - -
Interest in an associate R—ERE LR ES 49,349 - - - -
Deferred tax assets BEEREEE 33,257 26,158 37,786 24,368 16,661
242,782 236,626 153,474 89,482 54,593
Current assets REEE
Inventories F& 383,578 337,052 328,813 066,765 105,024
Trade and other receivables &5 REENFIR 506,393 445,829 465,086 485,917 212,914
Other financial assets Etie AR 60,000 253,159 21,400 10,000 -
Deposits with banks RIBAR=(AMN
with original maturity RTFR
date over three months 443,944 452,860 275,400 288,622 355,231
Pledged bank deposits EEARTER 240,485 105,015 239,068 428,375 307,235
Cashand cash equivalents & REREEFEN 220,484 134,593 222,885 204,543 324,451
1,854,884 1,728,508 1,552,652 1,774,222 1,364,855
Current liabilities RBaE
Bank borrowings FITER 52,566 16,636 127,095 220,479 101,212
Trade and other payables B HREMERFIE 507,395 590,042 555,696 704,182 566,449
Current tax payable JETENERIE 34,895 19,929 30,041 26,758 31,799
684,856 626,607 712,832 951,419 699,460
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings RITIRR 234,886 271,461 - - -
Deferred tax liabilties EXRIEERE 4,168 11,770 1577 15,384 2,781
239,054 283,231 1577 15,384 2,781
Net assets BEFE 1,173,756 1,055,296 981,717 896,901 717,207
Capital and reserves EERiE
Share capital BA 5214 5,203 5,583 5,580 5,578
Reserves [ 1,112,743 1,018,653 976,134 891,321 711,629
1,117,957 1,023,856 981,717 896,901 717,207
Non-controlling interests R HEL 55,799 31,440 - - -
Total equity BiEs 1,173,756 1,055,296 981,717 896,901 717,207

Cabbeen Fashion Limited
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